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A POVERTY-FOCUSED,
NOT-FOR-PROFIT MFI WITH A
MEASURED SOCIAL IMPACT

Vision

“We see all BPL women in rural areas of eastern Uttar
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh / Bundelkhand, Chhattisgarh,
Jharkhand and Bihar having access to microfinance
services, and many utilizing them to lift themselves and
their families out of poverty. At the same time,
we see that their families have become healthy,
and their children are in school.”

Mission

Our Mission is to identify and motivate
BPL women in rural areas of eastern Uttar Pradesh,
Madhya Pradesh / Bundelkhand, Chhattisgarh,
Jharkhand and Bihar, and to deliver financial and
other vital Health and Education services to them
in a honest, timely and efficient manner.
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Lette r from th e

CHAIRMAN
COVID-19 has dealt a blow to the global economy. Almost every country has been affected due to the
lockdown and preventive measures followed by increasing number of infected cases till vaccines were
introduced. Global output has fallen. Emerging markets and developing countries were hit most during this
time. The Microfinance Sector was also affected very severely and revival of beneficiaries’ activities has been
challenging because of their weak capital and poor purchasing power.
The studies on post pandemic impact have found that there is a small but significant number of MFI
borrowers who have still not come out of economic stress and are facing challenges in revival of their
economic and livelihood activities. However, if the results of CASHPOR are seen they reveal that the BPL
borrower base has reached to 11,99,089 as of March 2022 which was 10,12,994 as of March 2020 and
10,75,080 as of March 2021. This indicates revival of activities and start of fresh livelihood activities at a
faster rate. In fact, identifying the challenges timely and taking appropriate steps by CASHPOR to encourage
the BPL borrowers base has been made possible with the dedicated work of the field staff. I compliment them
for this achievement!
The majority of our branches have shown good performance and achieved their Business Plan Targets.
The Total Asset under Management showed 27% growth over the portfolio of March 2021. Similarly, the
number of Active Loan Client (ALC) have shown 12% growth over March 2021. Despite a slump in the
economy, average loan portfolio showed a growth of 14% over March 2021. The PAR >30 days as on
March 2022 has come down to 0.47% showing a reduction of about 16% over March 2021.
The Health and Education modules during the Fiscal benefitted over four lacs borrowers and their family
members by creating awareness on common health issues. CASHPOR’s other Health Services such as
CASHPOR Health Clinics and Mini Health Clinics have provided services to over six lac borrowers and
their family members. Similarly, through our educational services a good number of children are fulfilling
their dreams of getting continued educational services. The number of CASHPOR Education Centers have
increased to 1557 which will enable more number of students to attend tutorial classes for a better future.
With the notification of Reserve Bank of India dated 14th March 2022 on scale based regulations, CASHPOR
Micro Credit has also come under the Category of Regulated Entity and it has to be registered as a NBFCMFI with Reserve Bank of India. This will give new recognition to the Company and provide a platform to
spread its objective of removal of poverty through microfinance. I am sure that CASHPOR will prove its
presence as a provider of microfinance at an affordable cost to BPL households to enable them to alleviate
poverty and also provide them health and educational services to increase their awareness on health issues
and continue the education of their children which will help them to come out of inter-generational poverty.
Sincerely,
David S Gibbons
Founder & Chairman

25 August 2022
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Structure of the CASHPOR Group
CASHPOR TRUST
TRUSTEES
Prof. David S. Gibbons (Chairman)
Mr. Bahram Navroz Vakil
Ms. Moumita Sen Sarma
Mr. Mukul Jaiswal

CASHPOR FINANCIAL & TECHNICAL SERVICES PVT. LTD. (CFTS)
DIRECTORS
Prof. David S. Gibbons (Chairman)
Mr. Bahram Navroz Vakil (Director)
Mr. Mukul Jaiswal (Director-in-Charge)

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
DIRECTORS
Prof. David S. Gibbons (Chairman)
Mr. Bahram Navroz Vakil (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Mukul Jaiswal (Managing Director)
Ms. Moumita Sen Sarma
Mr. Abhijit Sen
Mr. Sudarshan Sen
Mr. Saneesh Singh
Mr. Sanjeev Anand
Mr. Rajiv Kumar

As on 31st August, 2022
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Brief particulars of the

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Founder & Chairman

Prof. David S Gibbons is a PhD holder
in Politics from Princeton in 1968. He
taught subsequently at University Sains in
Penang, under whose auspices he founded
Amanah Ikhtiar Malaysia, the first successful
international replication of the Grameen
Bank of Bangladesh. In 1996, Prof. Gibbons
founded CASHPOR Financial and Technical
Services which is the holding company of
CASHPOR Micro Credit, a Not-for-Profit
MFI working exclusively for BPL Households
in the most backward districts of the Nation.
He was awarded with ‘Contribution to the
Growth of the Microfinance Sector in India’
with an Individual Award in 2011 at Access

Microfinance India Summit. Besides this, he
has also been a member of Policy Advisory
Group of CGAP, World Bank. He has authored
and co-authored many papers and training
manuals on building institutional capacity for
microfinance for poor women. Prof. Gibbons
Chairs the Board of CASHPOR Group of
Companies and provides his strategic guidance
and leadership to the Board and the Company.
Due to COVID-19, the Professor has not been
able to visit India since February of 2020.
At his request the Board Meetings have been
chaired by our Vice-Chair. Through Zoom
technology, however, the Professor has been
able to participate fully in the meetings.

Mr. Bahram
Navroz Vakil

One of the co-founding and senior partners
of AZB and Partners of Mumbai, Mr. Vakil
is amongst India’s foremost infrastructure
and project finance attorneys. Mr. Vakil was
a member of the Bankruptcy Law Reform
Committee (which led to the implementation
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016)
and has also served as a member on various
high-level government committees on financial
reform, foreign direct investment and securities
market reform. Mr. Vakil is on the Board of
CASHPOR Micro Credit since December

2011. He is also a Trustee of CASHPOR
Trust. He also serves on the Board of several
companies in the capacity of Independent
Director and Non-Executive Director. He has
an in-depth knowledge of the microfinance,
regulatory and banking sectors. Mr. Vakil is an
advocate on the Bar Council of Maharashtra
and Goa and also a member of the New York
Bar Council. He holds a Bachelors in Law from
Mumbai University and a Master’s Degree in
Law from Columbia University.

Prof. David S
Gibbons

Hon. Vice-Chairperson
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Mr. Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director

Ms. Moumita Sen
Sarma
Director

Mr. Mukul Jaiswal is a Chartered Accountant
by qualification. He had been in practice
as a Chartered Accountant in Varanasi for
many years and has been associated with the
CASHPOR Group since 1999-2000 in various
roles and capacities. Under the motivation
and guidance of Professor David S. Gibbons,
Founder and Chairman of CASHPOR, he
agreed to join CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
as a Managing Director in 2008 and has been
Managing Director of CASHPOR MICRO  
CREDIT for more than 13 years now. He is
also an ex-officio member of the Financing
Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of
the Board of CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT.
He is a Director-in-Charge of CASHPOR
Financial and Technical Services Private
Limited, the holding Company of CASHPOR
MICRO CREDIT. He is also the Trustee and
CEO of CASHPOR Trust, a public Charitable
Trust & Apex body of CASHPOR group, since
February, 2020. He had been on the Boards of
several other MFIs and institutions in the past.

He has also been on the Board of SA-DHAN,
an association of micro finance institutions and
a RBI recognized Self Regulatory Organisation
(SRO) for the Microfinance Sector as Treasurer,
Co-Chair as well as Chairperson. He is also
member of the Grievance Redressal Committee
of SA-DHAN, SRO. He has over two decades
of rich experience in the field of microfinance.
Under his able guidance and leadership
over the years, CASHPOR has become the
largest not for profit section 8 microfinance
institution and bagged the “Best Microfinance
Institution of 2012” in the large category
award and True Lift Leader Milestone Award
in 2013 and received “2015 Microfinance
Institution of the Year Award” in Asia/Pacific
region from Whole Planet Foundation and
“SKOCH Order-of-Merit Award for Financial
Inclusion and Deepening” in 2015. In the
previous Fiscal, in spite of the global pandemic
COVID-19, CASHPOR received the “Inclusive
Finance India 2020” award under the category
of   “Breaking Ground in WASH Financing”
with his guidance and support.

Moumita Sen Sarma is the Director of Isha
Leadership Academy, an initiative of Isha
Foundation. Its flagship program, “Insight: The
DNA of Success”, has been widely acclaimed
as a unique leadership program that combines
inner sciences with outer management, for
scaling up one’s business as well as one’s own
self. A Chartered Accountant by training, Ms.
Sen Sarma has served the Financial Services
sector for 22 years in several capacities, prior
to joining Isha Foundation as a full time
volunteer in 2010. Till March 2010, she served
as the Head of Microfinance and Sustainable
Development at ABN AMRO Bank, India.
In 2003 she set up the Bank’s Microfinance
business and was also the architect of the ABN
AMRO Foundation India, (later renamed RBS
Foundation India).
Led by her team’s work, the Bank won
many awards and recognition in the area of
Sustainability, including the Global IFC / FT
Sustainable Banking Award in the Emerging
Markets category in 2007. Her team also
produced a Sustainability Report of the Indian
Operations of ABN AMRO, a first of its kind
for the Financial Services Sector in India which

won the Global GRI’s Reader’s choice Award.
She has been a frequent speaker at
conferences on both Microfinance and
Sustainable Development in India and abroad
(incl USA, EU: World Bank/IFC, Tallberg, WEC,
Ethical Corporation, Women’s World Banking,
Euro Market Forum, Sa-Dhan, WRI) as well
as Business Schools  in India (IIM Ahmedabad,
ISB Hyderabad, S.P Jain Mumbai). Ms.
Sen Sarma joined ABN AMRO Bank in the
year 1998 and prior to setting up the Bank’s
Microfinance business in India, worked within
the Bank with several responsibilities ranging
from Risk Management (wholesale credit)
to lending (large Corporate clients). Prior to
joining ABN AMRO, Ms Sen Sarma worked
with American Express Bank for 3 years (19961998) managing corporate relationships; prior
to that she was looking after the leasing and
hire-purchase business of SRF Finance (later
acquired by GE Capital) for 3 years (19931996). She also spent a year in consultancy
with Price Waterhouse Coopers (1993). Ms.
Sen Sarma trained at Price Waterhouse Coopers
for her CA and is a Graduate in Physics from
the Presidency College, Chennai, India.
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Mr. Abhijit Sen
Independent Director

Mr. Sudarshan Sen

Mr. Abhijit Sen retired from Citi India after
serving as the Chief Financial Officer - India
Subcontinent for over 18 years. In this role
he was responsible for the Finance function
in India, Bangladesh and Sri Lanka for the
entire Citi franchise including Controllership,
Corporate Treasury, Financial Planning,
Product Control and Tax. He was a member
of all Policy level Committees as well as
Boards of constituent Citi companies, and
had a significant ongoing involvement in
various areas of management of the franchise
with special emphasis on business planning/
strategy, regulatory aspects, financial planning
and policies and corporate governance/ legal
entity management. He was also responsible
for interfacing with external rating agencies,
banks and investors to broad-base funding of
non-bank vehicles.
In addition to his CFO role, Mr. Sen was
Chairman of Citicorp Services India Limited
which provides a variety of services in the
analytics, financial modeling and planning,
processing and technology space engaging over
3000 professionals serving a variety of Citi

businesses overseas. As Chairman of the Board,
he was responsible for providing governance
oversight and ensuring performance of service
delivery, while protecting regulatory standards.
He also earlier provided oversight to a variety
of functions including Compliance & Control,
Procurement, Premises Management and
Utilities.
On retirement from Citi, Mr. Sen is
engaged in an Advisory role with a Big 4 firm
for their Financial Services practice. He also
currently serves on several Boards including
Kalyani Forge Ltd, Tata Investment Limited,
Pramerica Life Insurance Ltd , Veritas Finance
Ltd, NAFA Ltd, Manappuram Finance Ltd,
and Ashirvad Micro Finance Ltd and in
the past on the Board of National Securities
Depository Limited, IDFC First Bank, Trent
Ltd, Ujjivan Financial Services Limited and
India First Life Insurance Ltd. He also serves
on the Risk Committee of the National Stock
Exchange. Mr. Sen holds an Honours degree in
Engineering from IIT, Kharagpur and an MBA
from IIM-Calcutta.

Mr. Sudarshan Sen is a former Executive
Director of the Reserve Bank of India. As
Executive Director, he oversaw banking
and non-banking regulations. He has had a
long association with bank regulation and
supervision, and was also Principal Chief
General Manager in charge of the Department
of Banking Regulation and Chief General
Manager in the Dept. of Banking Supervision,
of the Reserve Bank. He has represented the
Reserve Bank in the Policy Development Group

and the Supervision and Implementation
Group of the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision. He is currently serving on several
Boards such as on the Board of The Federal
Bank Ltd and PNB Housing Finance Limited
including CASHPOR Micro Credit.
Mr. Sen holds an MBA in International
Banking and Finance from the University of
Birmingham, UK and also holds a master’s
degree in Mathematics from the University of
Delhi.

Independent Director
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Mr. Saneesh Singh
Nominee Director,
Dia-Vikas Capital Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Sanjeev Anand
Nominee Director,
IndusInd Bank

Mr. Saneesh Singh has over 30 years’ experience
in the fields of development banking, financial
inclusion, and social and impact investments.
He is the MD & CEO of Dia Vikas and leads
Opportunity International initiatives in India it’s largest operations globally, reaching out to
over 17 million poor households – providing
access to much needed financial products
and services viz., loans, insurance, savings,
pensions, etc., and catalyzing community
development initiatives viz., health, sanitation,
education, etc.
Saneesh has been engaged in institution
building, mentoring and governance of
major microfinance institutions and has wide
exposure to innovative community finance
arrangements and social investments in India
and abroad viz., ESAF-SFB, NE-SFB, Cashpor,
Satya Micro Capital etc. He has been part of
key committees and industry forums associated
with impact investments, social performance,
responsible finance, supporting SMEs, etc.
Saneesh had earlier worked in senior
managerial capacities at SIDBI and was part
of the core team that initiated SIDBI’s highly
successful microfinance program that today

impacts over 60 million poor households and
was instrumental in creating a Rs.2.5 lakh
crore microfinance sector in India. In SIDBI,
he was involved in significant initiatives
relating to institutional development, capacity
building, technology upgradation, livelihood
financing and financial inclusion. He
successfully implemented prestigious bilateral
project with UKAid, IFAD, World Bank, GIZ
and Swiss Aid during his stint. He also played
a key role in startup support and growth of
Bandhan, the leading Indian MFI which is now
a Universal Bank (Bandhan Bank)
Saneesh is a Chevening Banking Fellow
1999, and alumni of Indian School of Business
and Harvard Business School and is also an
Aspire Fellow. He is a member on the Board
of Studies and the Skill Council of India’s
first National Skill University (SKSU) and
steering group member of Social Finance India
and India Impact Fund of Funds.   Saneesh
is a recipient of The ET Now & World BFSI
Congress’ 101 Most Influential BFSI Leaders
Award 2020 and had co-authored ‘Investing
for Impact in BFSI, Financial Inclusion and
Fintech in India’ released in 2021.

Mr. Sanjeev Anand is an Engineer from IIT
Roorkee and an MBA from McGill University,
Montreal Canada. He is an experienced
corporate banker with 31 years of work
experience of which 28 years have been in the
banking space. Currently, he is working as
Country Head for Corporate, Commercial &
Rural Banking at IndusInd Bank he is involved
in the development of strategy and business
in areas like SME Banking, Mid-Market
corporates, Business Banking, Financial
Inclusion Business and Corporate Agri
business. He is responsible for rural business
cutting across banking products.
Prior to IndusInd Bank he was with ABN
Amro as Head of Commercial Banking where
he set up the SME vertical and also did various

stints in the large corporate space.
He is a keen and active sportsperson. A
regular squash player, Sanjeev has won the
Nationals Men Squash title in the over 40
years category and has represented the Delhi
State Squash team.
Being a sports person and having played
competitive squash at the national level, he
is of the firm belief that sports is a terrific
metaphor for life and besides the physical
benefits, sports gives one the wherewithal to
achieve a high level of emotional quotient.
With this belief, he has also set up IndusInd
For Sports - a non- banking sports vertical at
IndusInd Bank. The vertical is fully functional
and running set-up working with various
partners and collaborators.

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

| 11

Mr. Rajiv Kumar
Nominee Director, SIDBI
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Mr. Rajiv Kumar attended Boulder Micro
Finance Training in 2007 and has worked
extensively in the area of Micro-finance and
was closely associated with the Micro Finance
Institutions (MFIs) operating in Eastern Uttar
Pradesh during his tenure as In-charge of
Branch Office of Small Industries Development
Bank of India (SIDBI) at Varanasi from June
2006 to October 2010.
He was associated with India SME
Technology Services Limited (ISTSL), an
associate of SIDBI as its Director cum Chief
Executive Officer and involved in its turnaround into a profitable entity actively engaged
in providing technology related services for
sustainable development in MSMEs.
Mr. Rajiv Kumar handled loans and
advances operations at SIDBI and Allahabad
Bank (now merged with India Bank) at Head
Office and field levels. Closely worked on
lines of credits and projects funded by various
multilateral and bilateral agencies including the

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

World Bank, etc. for financing and promotion
of sustainable development in MSME
sector through Energy / Resource Efficient
technologies. He was designated as alternate
Compliance Officer of SIDBI and also handled
Fraud Management and Recovery operations
of SIDBI. He has work experience of over 30
years with SIDBI and Allahabad Bank.
Presently, Mr. Kumar is working as
General Manager of SIDBI. He is heading the
Green Climate & Energy Efficiency Centre of
SIDBI at New Delhi which provides financial
assistance as well as other developmental
support aimed at greening of MSMEs.
Mr. Rajiv Kumar holds a Bachelor degree
in Mechanical Engineering and Masters in
Economics and Certified Associate of Indian
Institute of Bankers (CAIIB), Post Graduate
Diploma in Financial Management (PGDFM)
and a Certified Measurement & Verification
Professional (CMVP).

HIGHLIGHTS OF FY 2021-22

HIGHLIGHTS OF

FY 2021-22
The first Quarter of the Financial Year 2021-22 showed resumption of activities which indicated that situation will
normalize with faster recovery. However, the SROs expectation was that things will normalize by the third Quarter
of the Fiscal. It was because Sector’s response on PAR and collection rate was initially not encouraging and there
were apprehensions of recurrence of pandemic. CASHPOR’s results were encouraging both in respect of reduction
in PAR and improvement in collection rates. The challenge was in raising funds as lenders were not able to build a
sound opinion on MFIs because of slow response by the Sector.  

1. Post Pandemic Trends in Different Performance Parameters
As per expectations in the industry CASHPOR had also shown signs of recovery and the performance came on
track by end of third Quarter and reached to its planned growth in subsequent quarter. The Table below shows post
pandemic growth and confirming that the situation was stabilizing and gaining people’s confidence:
Parameters

FY2019-20
(Actual)

FY 2020-21
(Actual)

Business Plan
Target for 2021-22

FY 2021-22
(Actual)

Growth in 2021
over 2020 (%)

Growth in 2022
over 2021 (%)

2935.0

3296.7

4154.3

4192.9

12.3

27.2

No. of Borrowers (Active)

10,12,994

10,75,080

11,81,030

11,99,089

6.1

11.5

Average Portfolio
Outstanding per borrower
(In INR)

28,973

30,664

35,175

34,967

5.8

14.0

154,629

62,086

1,05,950

1,24,009

(59.8)

99.7%

0.16

0.57

–

0.47

256.3

(15.8)

99.92

99.06

>99%

99.03

(0.86)

(0.03)

Total Portfolio
(Rs. in crore)

No.of fresh borrowers
Added
PAR>30 Day %
Repayment Rate in %
(Average)

The Table shows that there is progressive improvement post-COVID-19 in almost all parameters. The portfolio
growth in FY 2021-22 has shown 27% growth over the Fiscal 2020-21. The New borrowers added during the
FY 2021-22 is showing more than 99% increase which indicates that there is high demand for credit to start the
livelihood activities.

2. Credit Guarantee Scheme for MFIs
In the first Quarter of the Fiscal, the banks/lenders were hesitant in accepting the loan requests of MFIs borrowers
on the grounds of financial results of MFI Sector in spite of the fact that CASHPOR had performed well and given
encouraging results. However, there was the announcement of NCGTC for launching of Scheme named as Credit
Guarantee Scheme for MFIs. The Scheme aimed to provide guarantee to eligible lending institutions for funding
provided by them to MFIs for on lending to eligible small borrowers in COVID -19 environment. A good amount
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of fund was made available with a view to disburse within given time frame. This enabled the Company to fulfill
the need of BPL households who were struggling for resumption of their activities. The status of the fund received
under this Scheme is as under:
Parameter

Fund Received (Rs. in Crore)

Share %

Total Fund Received During the Fiscal 2021-22

1830.0

100

Fund Received under CGS - MFIs

925.0

51

The above Table shows significant contribution of funds received under Credit Guarantee Scheme for MFIs which
provided good support in portfolio growth and also enabled the Company to provide Micro Credit at affordable
cost.

3. HEALTH INITIATIVES
CASHPOR Health Initiatives are one of the important services provided to our borrowers and their families. In
fact, this is one area where substantial part of poor beneficiaries’ earning is spent which creates an impact on their
net earnings and is a bottleneck in their effort to move out of poverty. CASHPOR has realized this problem of the
poor since beginning and has been providing different health services to the beneficiaries. The current status of few
important Health Services are listed below:
Health Initiatives -Status as on 31 March, 2022

Beneficiaries

Health Education Modules for the benefit of BPL beneficiaries (No. of borrowers)

413,500

WATSAN  Loan (for construction of Toilets and Repair of old toilets) & ENERGY
Loan (for purchasing of Solar-energy operated products, smokeless stoves etc.) (No.)

49,412

Borrowers and their family members benefited during the FY through CASHPOR
Health Clinics and  Mini Health Clinics (No.)

345,331

Clients Enrolled for Health Package (No.)

262,606

4. INTEREST RATE REDUCTION
From time to time the Management has reduced the interest rate charged to the beneficiaries as per its policy
and has been charging the lowest possible rate of interest in comparison to other NBFC-MFIs working   in its
operational area. The Company has brought down its rate of interest to beneficiaries to 17.50% from January
2022. The Table below gives a trend of reduction in interest rate of CASHPOR:
Month / year

Jul-08

Jul-10

Jul-11

Dec-13

Aug-17

Jul-18

Jan-22

Rate of interest

30.40%

25.76%

23.94%

21.17%

19.17%

18.05%

17.50%

The revised interest rates are applicable on fresh loans disbursed from the date of reduction in rate of interest.
TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22
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5. SCALE BASED REGULATION OF NBFCs
The RBI has recently brought in a Notification on scale based regulation for MFIs where all the MFIs having a
portfolio of Rs. 100 Crore or above have to be registered as NBFC-MFIs with the RBI. The Notification of RBI
Master Direction is No: RBI/DOR/2021-22/89 DoR.FIN.REC.95/03.10.038/2021-22 dated 14 March 2022 on
Master Direction-Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions 2022.It has
given broad guidelines on operational processes of Regulated Entity and the broad changes in previous guidelines
can be summarized as below:
S.No.

PARAMETERS

1

Household
Income cap

2
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PREVIOUS REGULATION
FOR NBFC-MFI

NEW REGULATION

Rural household annual income not
exceeding Rs.1,25,000 or urban and semiurban household income not exceeding
Rs.2,00,000.

Annual household income up to Rs.3,00,000

Indebtedness

Total indebtedness of the borrower does
not exceed Rs.1,25,000 Provided that
Loan if any availed towards meeting
education and medical expenses shall
be excluded while arriving at the total
indebtedness of a borrower.

Limit on the outflow on account of repayment of
monthly loan obligations of a household as 50%
of the monthly household income.

3

Loan Pricing

10/12% Margin cap or 2.75 times of
average base rate of top 5 Banks whichever
is lower.

• A well-documented interest rate model/
approach for arriving at the all-inclusive
interest rate;
• Delineation of the components of the interest
rate such as cost of fund, risk premium,
margin, etc. in terms of the quantum of each
component based on objective parameter;
• The range of spread of each component for a
given category of borrowers; and
• A ceiling on the interest rate and all other
charges applicable to microfinance loans.

4

Other Charges

There shall be only three components in
the pricing of the loan viz. the interest
charge, the processing charge and the
insurance premium (which includes the
administrative charges in respect thereof )

Any fee to be charged to the microfinance
borrower by the RE and/or its partner/agent
shall be explicitly disclosed in the fact sheet. The
borrower shall not be charged any amount which
is not explicitly mentioned in the fact sheet.

5

Penalty Charges

There will be no penalty charged on
delayed payment or pre-payment

There shall be no pre-payment penalty on
microfinance loans. Penalty, if any, for delayed
payment shall be applied on the overdue amount
and not on the entire Loan amount.

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

6

Fair Practice
Code

Applicable for NBFC-MFIs

A fair practice code (FPC) based on these
directions shall be put on by all REs with the
approval of their boards. The FPC shall be
displayed by the RE in all its offices and on its
website. The FPC should be issued in a language
understood by the borrower.

7

Third Party
Product
Bundling

Forced bundling not Allowed

Issue of non-credit Products shall be with full
consent of the borrowers and fee structure for
such products shall be explicitly communicated
to the borrower in the loan card itself.

8

Qualifying
Asset & PSL

Not less than 85% of its net assets are in
the nature of "Qualifying assets."

• NBFC-MFI is required to have a minimum of
75% of the total asset.
• NBFC that does not qualify as an NBFCMFI, cannot extend microfinance loans
exceeding 25% of its total assets.

9

Qualifying
Asset Criteria

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)

(vii)

Loan which is disbursed to a
borrower with household annual
income not exceeding Rs.1,25,000
and Rs. 2,00,000 for rural and
urban/semi-urban households,
respectively;
Loan amount does not exceeds
Rs. 75,000 in the first cycle and
Rs.1,25,000 in subsequent cycles;
Total indebtedness of the borrower
does not exceed Rs. 1,25,000
(excluding loan for education and
medical expenses);
Minimum tenor of 24 months for
loan amount exceeding Rs.30,000;
Collateral free loans without any
pre-payment penalty;
Minimum 50% of the aggregate
amount of loans for income
generation activities; and
Flexibility of repayment periodicity
(weekly, fortnightly, or monthly) at
borrower's choice.

The definition of “Qualifying assets” of NBFCMFIs is now being aligned with the definition
of “Microfinance Loan”. A Microfinance loan
is defined as a collateral-free loan given to a
household having an annual household income
up to Rs 3,00,000
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6. IT INITIATIVE
1. Moving towards digitalization and client information security, CASHPOR has met one of the most
important requirements, E-KYC, by collaborating with IndusInd-Bank. It is efficient and significantly
easier for customers too. We are now at the stage when we enroll the potential clients through the
AADHAAR services of UIDAI (Unique Identification Authority of India), as it is a statutory authority
established under the provisions of the AADHAAR (Targeted Delivery of Financial and Other Subsidies,
Benefits and Services) Act, 2016 (“AADHAAR Act 2016”) by the Government of India, under the
Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology. This is an authorized facility for Banks and NBFCs
Institutions to enroll their customers. The days are very close to when CASHPOR will be a fully digital
and secure organization in the IT and Microfinance sectors.
2. A new Business Intelligent Dashboard has been developed and deployed for Management and 2nd level
supervisors for automating the process of report uploading and analytical viewing. Through this, ease of
decision has been employed.
3. The disciplinary process has been automated through a web-app named DPS (Disciplinary Proceeding
System). All the disciplinary actions can now be implemented by this. Through this application, the
disciplinary process time has been shortened and automated.

18 |

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

SECTION-1

OPERATIONAL
ACTIVITIES
AND SERVICES

O PE RATI O NA L ACT I VI T I ES A ND SERVI CES

The studies on post pandemic impact have now revealed that there are small but significant number of MFI
borrowers who have still not come out of economic distress and are facing challenges in revival of their livelihood
activities. In fact, CASHPOR had initially realized that its borrowers will encounter such challenges.   In the
beginning of the financial year there were challenges of arranging funds as the lenders were not positive due to
the overall performance of the Sector which was creating challenges for MFIs in managing resources to meet the
demand of borrowers struggling for survival.
In the month of June, 2021 the Credit Guarantee Scheme for MFIs was announced with the purpose of providing
guaranteed coverage to eligible lending institutions for the funding provided by them to NBFC-MFIs or MFIs
for on lending to eligible small borrowers in the context of COVID-19 and this has given confidence to lenders
for funding the MFI Sector. Thus funding position started improving in second half of the Fiscal and remained
satisfactory till the end of the Fiscal. This enabled CASHPOR to achieve our portfolio Target.

I) OUTREACH TO POOR HOUSEHOLDS
The objective of CASHPOR is to provide affordable credit to more number of targeted borrowers and the Table
1 below gives details. This shows the number of total active borrowers with CASHPOR as on 31 March 2022 &
amount of loan outstanding under Own as well as Managed portfolio in each Operational Region.
TABLE 1: OUTREACH TO POOR HOUSEHOLDS
S.No

Zone

Region

Own ALC

Amount (INR)

ALC Under

Amount

ALC

Amount

Managed

Outstanding

Under BC

Outstanding (INR)

Total ALC

Total AUM (INR)

(INR)

Deputy COO-1
1

North East
Zone

MUZAFFARPUR

37,120

1,545,231,565

1,251

30,945,868

16,221

629,404,157

54,592

2,205,581,590

2

North East
Zone

SAMASTIPUR

10,582

253,220,663

210

3,112,990

-

-

10,792

256,333,653

3

North East
Zone

SITAMARHIDARBHANGA

32,946

1,097,115,821

1,007

24,773,728

2,983

111,151,085

36,936

1,233,040,634

4

North East
Zone

EAST
CHAMPARAN

29,380

1,181,621,728

895

21,162,143

11,426

465,164,803

41,701

1,667,948,674

5

North East
Zone

SARAN

40,960

1,746,658,233

1,662

44,921,833

18,397

767,721,570

61,019

2,559,301,636

6

North East
Zone

SIWAN

34,034

1,411,864,306

1,526

40,906,051

12,867

514,053,474

48,427

1,966,823,831

185,022

7,235,712,316

6,551

165,822,613

61,894

2,487,495,089

253,467

9,889,030,018

North East
Zone Total
7

South East
Zone

GARHWA

2,444

108,080,235

2

54,849

51,278

1,877,558,578

53,724

1,985,693,662

8

South East
Zone

GIRIDIH

6,682

219,982,341

3

77,767

9,062

195,613,974

15,747

415,674,082
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S.No

Zone

Region

Own ALC

Amount (INR)

ALC Under

Amount

ALC

Amount

Managed

Outstanding

Under BC

Outstanding (INR)

Total ALC

Total AUM (INR)

(INR)

9

South East
Zone

HAZARIBAGH

14,818

528,913,592

430

10,350,240

13,947

326,439,915

29,195

865,703,747

10

South East
Zone

AURANGABAD

38,128

1,430,208,210

1,812

42,098,254

14,853

549,889,875

54,793

2,022,196,339

11

South East
Zone

BUXAR

28,238

1,127,008,963

1,876

48,086,164

14,731

615,725,009

44,845

1,790,820,136

12

South East
Zone

KAIMUR
ROHTAS

4,712

198,471,065

5

113,078

43,540

1,585,740,757

48,257

1,784,324,900

95,022

3,612,664,406

4,128

100,780,352

147,411

5,150,968,108

246,561

8,864,412,866

South East
Zone Total
13

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-2

MIRZAPUR

25,821

943,110,020

724

18,393,918

16,702

524,565,775

43,247

1,486,069,713

14

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-2

SATNA

14,085

329,991,474

570

9,730,908

-

-

14,655

339,722,382

15

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-2

TIKAMGARH

40,548

1,144,338,172

1,859

39,337,406

129

13,170,000

42,536

1,196,845,578

80,454

2,417,439,666

3,153

67,462,232

16,831

537,735,775

100,438

3,022,637,673

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-2 Total

Deputy COO-2
16

North West
Zone

AZAMGARH

2,809

124,747,534

6

71,869

42,738

1,555,221,961

45,553

1,680,041,364

17

North West
Zone

BALLIA

17,028

808,221,638

822

22,747,658

26,781

865,402,771

44,631

1,696,372,067

18

North West
Zone

JAUNPUR

24,477

950,184,503

502

11,135,379

17,839

563,763,967

42,818

1,525,083,849

19

North West
Zone

AMBEDKAR
NAGAR

37,016

1,425,332,367

2,401

61,710,504

11,287

393,013,781

50,704

1,880,056,652

20

North West
Zone

GORAKHPUR

4,629

168,838,728

207

5,027,587

46,431

1,707,273,517

51,267

1,881,139,832

21

North West
Zone

KUSHINAGAR

3,005

111,108,604

13

198,073

50,328

1,786,405,906

53,346

1,897,712,583

88,964

3,588,433,374

3,951

100,891,070

195,404

6,871,081,903

288,319

10,560,406,347

North West
Zone Total
22

South Zone

BILASPUR

9,551

165,274,893

304

4,328,437

-

-

9,855

169,603,330

23

South Zone

JASHPUR

32,225

892,388,060

2,411

53,312,505

3,435

113,177,510

38,071

1,058,878,075
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S.No

Zone

Region

Own ALC

Amount (INR)

ALC Under

Amount

ALC

Amount

Managed

Outstanding

Under BC

Outstanding (INR)

Total ALC

Total AUM (INR)

(INR)

24

South Zone

RAIGARH

5,100

89,449,858

199

2,791,917

-

-

5,299

92,241,775

25

South Zone

CHANDAULI

19,679

885,807,233

798

21,824,673

23,664

843,124,819

44,141

1,750,756,725

26

South Zone

SARGUJA

38,196

1,091,251,245

1,564

34,783,429

4,057

140,896,855

43,817

1,266,931,529

27

South Zone

SONEBHADRA

12,587

615,854,900

4

136,122

33,512

965,177,724

46,103

1,581,168,746

117,338

3,740,026,189

5,280

117,177,083

64,668

2,062,376,908

187,286

5,919,580,180

South Zone
Total
28

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-1

CHITRAKOOT

15,913

623,474,977

327

8,125,548

22,259

556,625,136

38,499

1,188,225,661

29

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-1

HAMIRPUR

42,521

1,235,408,544

2,437

53,498,700

81

8,410,000

45,039

1,297,317,244

30

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-1

PRATAPGARH
& FATEHPUR

19,584

641,041,832

889

20,974,881

19,007

525,372,623

39,480

1,187,389,336

West
(Bundelkhand)
Zone-1 Total

78,018

2,499,925,353

3,653

82,599,129

41,347

1,090,407,759

123,018

3,672,932,241

Grand Total

644,818

23,094,201,304

26,716

634,732,479

527,555

18,200,065,542

1,199,089

41,928,999,325

II) PORTFOLIO CONCENTRATION AND PORTFOLIO QUALITY
The portfolio concentration is an important tool to assess the risk. Although CASHPOR’s objective is to provide
microcredit services to poor and selected areas for operation with high concentration of poor households it always
does take precautions to ensure that portfolio concentration is not too high in any particular geographical area.
The Table-2 below gives status of state wise portfolio concentration as well as state wise status of Portfolio at Risk.

TABLE-2: STATE WISE PORTFOLIO CONCENTRATION & PORTFOLIO QUALITY
FY 2021-22
STATE
ALC
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% SHARE

AMOUNT
(IN CRORE)

% SHARE

PAR > 30 DAYS

UTTAR PRADESH

589,453

49.16%

2,065.50

49.26%

0.48%

BIHAR

372,540

31.07%

1,430.57

34.12%

0.34%

CHHATTISGARH

94,909

7.92%

252.28

6.02%

1.32%
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JHARKHAND

98,866

8.25%

329.66

7.86%

0.11%

MADHYA PRADESH

43,318

3.61%

114.89

2.74%

1.17%

ODISHA

3

0.00%

0.01

0.00%

0.00%

TOTAL

1,199,089

100.00%

4,192.90

100.00%

0.47%

The Company started its activities from Eastern Uttar Pradesh and therefore portfolio concentration is high in
UP followed by Bihar. However, results and portfolio in these two states have come down significantly. After
COVID-19 the PAR has also shown improvement and in Chhattisgarh State it could not show recovery due
to imposition of lock down in some districts of Chhattisgarh during the Second Wave of COVID-19. Madhya
Pradesh is also showing higher rate PAR which is due to few centers where beneficiaries of a specific group have
migrated. The overall PAR has been satisfactory as compared to the PAR of the Industry.

III) NON INCOME GENERATING ACTIVITIES
CASHPOR has been always considering credit facilities for non-income generating purposes responsible to bring
improvement in social infrastructure. These loans are creating awareness among the poor households about
health and social infrastructure. There are institutions providing support to increase such activities which also
create empowerment amongst poor. Table-3 gives status of such activities during last three years.
TABLE 3: LOANS UNDER NON INCOME GENERATING ACTIVITIES IN LAST THREE YEARS
SEGMENTS

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

NO. OF

AMOUNT

NO. OF

AMOUNT

NO. OF

AMOUNT

BENEFICIARIES

OUTSTANDING

BENEFICIARIES

OUTSTANDING

BENEFICIARIES

OUTSTANDING
INR

INR

INR

SANITATION LOAN

FY 2021-22

73,173

503,912,252

36,041

274,162,058

46,147

355,509,616

250

595,412

103,494

188,701,583

242

556,747

7,112

22,003,323

2,341

5,901,178

1,157

3,128,426

45

  43,054

342

1,877,010

4,286

16,241,663

NON-IGL through
FLEXI

67,482

924,963,251

46,808

598,447,444

47,224

682,176,646

TOTAL

148,062

1,451,517,292

189,026

1,069,089,273

99,056

1,057,613,098

SAFETY LOAN
ENERGY LOAN /
UJJAWALA
MOBILE LOAN
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IV) PURPOSE WISE CLASSIFICATION OF FLEXI LOAN
Introduction of Flexi loan has gained popularity as it is not only enabling the borrowers to meet their emergent
business needs but also protecting the clients from evils of multiple borrowings. It is also enabling them to meet
their funding needs required for non-business purposes and protecting them from diversion of fund. (Table-4)
TABLE 4: PURPOSE WISE CLASSIFICATION OF FLEXI LOAN DISBURSED DURING FY 2019-20 TO FY 2021-22
SEGMENT

FY 2019-20
NO. OF
BENEFICIARIES

FY 2020-21

AMOUNT
(INR)

NO. OF
BENEFICIARIES

FY 2021-22

AMOUNT
( INR)

NO. OF
BENEFICIARIES

AMOUNT
(INR)

A) FLEXI LOANS (IGL)

209,337

4,645,747,000

202,166

4,656,507,000

431,221

9,709,043,000

AGRICULTURE &
ALLIED

89,437

1,810,977,000

  124,757

2,796,051,000

296,610

  6,515,953,000

MSME (Micro Enterprises,
Micro Transportation,
Handloom, Handicrafts)

55,093

1,282,470,000

63,561

1,548,245,000

114,496

  2,738,102,000

FLEXI IGL [IGL Purpose]

64,807

1,552,300,000

13,848

312,211,000

20,115

454,988,000

  -

-

-

-

-

-

B) FLEXI LOANS
(Non IGL)

54,454

1,236,187,000

22,099

508,813,000

37,673

840,072,000

Education

3,788

75,792,000

747

14,874,000

  1,554

  28,062,000

Emergency

4,147

87,403,000

1,721

32,219,000

  2,120

  39,949,000

129

3,156,000

9

220,000

6

130,000

House Repairing

28,353

672,343,000

13,015

317,465,000

22,130

515,583,000

Marriage

5,343

130,764,000

1,965

  48,622,000

  3,519

  84,251,000

Medicine

6,899

135,417,000

2,423

  46,186,000

  3,738

  67,556,000

Natural Disaster

1,826

40,815,000

33

724,000

32

659,000

Social Work

2,255

55,099,000

  158

3,759,000

98

2,300,000

Loan to repay Money
Lender

1,714

35,398,000

2,028

  44,744,000

  4,476

101,582,000

263,791

5,881,934,000

224,265

5,165,320,000

468,894

10,549,115,000

Funeral

Total Flexi Loans

The Table shows that out of total flexi loans disbursed during FY2021-22 of Rs.1054.91 crores (approximately)
within which the flexi loan disbursed for Income Generating purposes is Rs.970.90 crore which constitutes 92%.
Among the non IGL purposes highest Credit demand is for House repair followed by loans to repay the Money
Lenders. This also indicates that the Company has extended loans to save more than four thousand clients from
the clutches of money lenders.
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V) ACTIVITY WISE NUMBER OF LOANS AND
PORTFOLIO OUTSTANDING
Table 5 gives broad classification of outstanding portfolio among the broad activities of Priority Sector loans. It is
showing that about 43.84 % of total portfolio is outstanding under Agriculture and allied to agricultural activities
and 35.53% portfolio is under MSME Sector.
TABLE 5: ACTIVITY WISE NUMBER OF LOANS AND PORTFOLIO OUTSTANDING
FY 2019-20
PURPOSE

%
SHARE

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING
(INR)

%
SHARE

NO OF
LOANS

%
SHARE

537,010

38.23%

11,555,398,159

39.37%

560,203

36.51%

466,303

33.20%

12,760,061,717

43.48%

484,736

148,062

10.54%

1,451,517,292

4.95%

Other IGL

253,325

18.03%

3,582,604,623

GRAND TOTAL

1,404,700

100.00%

29,349,581,791

AGRICULTURE &

NO OF
LOANS

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING
(INR)

%
SHARE

NO OF
LOANS

%
SHARE

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING
(INR)

%
SHARE

13,454,029,968

40.81%

701,090

39.72%

18,383,098,163

43.84%

31.59%

14,015,212,216

42.51%

478,818

27.13%

14,896,302,024

35.53%

189,026

12.32%

1,069,089,273

3.24%

99,056

5.61%

1,057,613,098

2.52%

12.21%

300,256

19.57%

4,428,101,357

13.43%

486,244

27.55%

7,591,986,040

18.11%

100.00%

1,534,221

100.00%

32,966,432,814

100.00%

1,765,208

100.00%

41,928,999,325

100.00%

ALLIED
MSME (Micro Enterprises,
Micro Transportation,
Handloom, Handicrafts)
SOCIAL INFRA LOAN
(Health Loan, Energy
Loan, Safety Loan, Women
Empowerment, FL Non
IGL)

VI) IMPACT ON LEVEL OF LIVING
Increase in spending capacity is indicative of increase in level of living. Further use of mobiles, improving house
infrastructure by improving household facilities such as toilet facilities, availability of safe drinking water, using
mobile’s and LPG cylinders also indicates rise in standard of living. The Table below gives year-wise Trend of
Average Loan Outstanding, Average Loan Disbursement and Loans taken for Non-Income Generating Activities
to improve Social Infrastructure.
ZONE

FY 2016-17

FY 2017-18

FY 2018-19

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

CAGR %

Average Loan
Outstanding

15,591

20,767

25,561

28,973

30,664

34,967

14.41%

26,635

32,415

39,246

40,362

40,594

46,433

9.71%

312,545,793

493,877,624

961,474,789

1,451,517,292

1,069,089,273

1,057,613,098

22.53%

(INR)
Average Loan
Disbursement
(INR) Borrower
Investment
in Social
Infrastructural
Development
(INR outstanding)
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SECTION-2

NON-FINANCIAL
SERVICES

HEALTH SERVICES
Introduction
CASHPOR provides services to the beneficiaries in
a timely and effective manner, to uplift their living
standard and also to ensure that they do not fall back
into poverty again by providing them vital services of
Health and Education.
The medical expenses can severely impact the savings
and finances of the rural poor. Health education and
awareness services are conducted through Community
Health Facilitators (CHFs) who promote Health,
Hygiene & Sanitation practices and promote quality
Health products at an affordable price at their door
steps in deep rural interior regions. Similarly, a basic
education is the gate way to salaried income. Hence,
CASHPOR has offered cost effective services of Health
& Education to its beneficiaries. Initially CASHPOR
provided qualified medical practitioners who conduct
Mini Health Clinics and Health Camps in its regions.
After the onset of the Pandemic CASHPOR introduced
Telemedicine/ Doctor on Call in CASHPOR regions.

HEALTH EDUCATION
AWARENESS PROGRAM
Community Health Facilitator (CHF)
Program
Though the states are providing optimum health
services one needs collective action by the community
for an adequate improvement in health status of
an area. Health education, through CHFs creating
awareness to help women are essential for ensuring
an acceptable health status in a community. Ensuring
proper sanitation in the village, access to safe drinking
water, providing renewable energy stoves for LPG
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CASHPOR HEALTH
SERVICES
Doctor
on Call
CASHPOR
Health Clinic

Water ,
Sanitation &
Energy

CHFs Health
Education
Awareness

FIGURE 1

connection, access to affordable health products & services and other steps to prevent disease outbreaks, first
aid and symptomatic curative measures in those habitations that are too far away from any medical help are
examples of measures that a community needs to take to ensure adequate health care for itself.

Status of Beneficiaries Covered Through Health Education Awareness
S.No.

Particulars

1

Number of CHFs

2

Beneficiaries covered under Health
Education Awareness Program

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

2311

2735

2993

3081

3081

2094

234,240

226,460

393,190

329,060

486,720

413,500

FIGURE 2

Livelihood Program
The Livelihood Program is aimed to ensure sustainable Livelihood for the Community Health Facilitators through
awareness of Health & Hygiene Education amongst people in rural areas as well as ensuring them the access to
quality Health Products at an affordable price. So far CASHPOR has offered through its CHFs the health products
to the following beneficiaries:
PARTICULARS
Beneficiaries covered with quality and affordable Health product

2018 to 2022
760,275

CASHPOR Offering its Beneficiaries Telemedicine/ Doctor on Call Services
CASHPOR through its partners provides health services through telemedicine/doctor on call. The arrangement
provides medical advice and consultancy via phone, video call or other means assisting and facilitating all support
services by supplying health-related information, data and gives medical advice on the phone or other means of
communications by due complying the applicable laws, regulations and professional etiquette by such practitioners
through the call centre service.
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Doctor on Call: The core Node of the product is a tele-doctor service. Utilizing mobile forms of communication
(phone calls, chat messaging, and video), beneficiaries can call this service and receive a consultation from a
certified doctor. Depending on the condition, the doctor may diagnose and recommend treatment or medication.
In some cases, the doctor will refer the customer to E-Clinic (i.e., 444 CASHPOR E-Clinics) (Clinics with primary
health care and video consultation facility). In all cases, the doctor will maintain a digital medical record for each
beneficiary and will follow-up after an initial consultation. This facility can also be utilized by all beneficiaries’
family members.

Status of Beneficiaries Covered by CASHPOR Health E-Clinic
S.No

Particular

1

CASHPOR E-Clinic

2

No. of beneficiaries benefited

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

30

306

444

3,960

526,970

308,762

Mini-Health Clinic (MHC)
Through CASHPOR Mini Health Clinic our aim is to provide health check-up/diagnostic kit/treatment prescription
facilities at those interior operational areas which are extremely difficult to reach the beneficiaries who do not have
easy access to medical facilities. Specialist doctors on rotational basis cover our sick beneficiaries and their family
members on regular interval which helps them to diagnose their disease and create an awareness about their health
issues in proper and timely manner.

Objectives
• To provide effective medical assistance to our poor beneficiaries.
• To reduce health expenses.
• Indirectly increase their working hours
S.N.
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Particulars

1

CASHPOR Mini Health
Clinic

2

No. of beneficiaries
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2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2021-22

54

81

177

280

94

20,569

65,157

130,702

238,000

36,569

FIGURE 3

Water, Sanitation & Energy Program
In light of Company’s Mission, CASHPOR is also providing services for Health Awareness and clean water. The
Company had also launched a Water and Sanitation Loan Product in 2012-13 with an objective to discourage
open defecation and providing financial assistance to construct toilets. The Financial assistance is provided for
construction of new toilets/improvement of existing toilets and providing water arrangement.

Program Objective

Water and Sanitation

The short-term objective

The long-term

facilities are

of the Program would

objective of the

complimentary

be to ensure availability

Program is to

in promoting

of WATSAN Loan for

significantly

community as well

gaining access to safe

improve the health

as personal hygiene

water and Sanitation

indicators of the local

and are essentials to

services. This loan

population including

eliminating diseases

should be offered as

elimination of the

and improving health

supplementary loan to

practice of open

conditions.

the Income Generating

defecation.

Loan.
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Key Objectives
1. To promote Health Education with objective to bring improvement in Health practices.
2. To increase awareness about water borne diseases.
3. To discourage open defecation & encourage using toilets.

Energy Program
CASHPOR has always tried to raise the standard of living of its beneficiaries and has been working and keeping
in mind their health and has accordingly introduced safe Loan products. In this respect, Company has recently
decided to introduce a product named as CASHPOR Energy Loan to enable our beneficiaries to buy Solar-energy
operated products, smokeless stoves, etc. The amount of energy loan would be up to Rs. 5,000/-.
As most of our beneficiaries reside in remote rural areas where either there is no facility of electricity or, if available,
is not available for a longer duration and at the required time due to which the beneficiaries have to resort to the
traditional mud made stoves for cooking food and use kerosene lamps for lighting their houses.  These activities
lead to emission of smoke containing high amount of carbon-dioxide which is extremely harmful for them and
their families. The use of Kerosene Lamps by children during evening while studying pollutes the surrounding
environment. Thus, the Company with a view to light up the dark houses of the beneficiaries and considering the
health of their families has decided to provide them with CASHPOR Energy Loan.
NUMBER OF WATSAN & ENERGY LOANS DISBURSED
S.No.

Particular

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

2020-21

2021-22

1

Number of WATSAN Loan Disbursed

34011

53454

33079

74256

27788

48140

2

Number of Energy Loan Disbursed

11541

3251

6169

7249

1471

1272

FIGURE 4

53454
33079

6169
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EDUCATION SERVICES
Introduction
To achieve its objective “one child from each rural BPL family must pass class 10th Board Examination” CASHPOR
started “CASHPOR Education Centre” (CEC) Program in 2015 to provide assistance/support to improve the
standard of education of enrolled children. On 24 Dec 2015 first CEC was established at Nawagarh Village of
Madanpur Branch in Aurangabad Region. Since then, CASHPOR has established 1557 CECs in its 30 Regions
covering 637 Branches.
Through these Education centers, more than 94,971 children have taken the benefit of CEC Program till 31
March 2022 and currently 50,993 active children are enrolled in the Program who are taking benefit of Education
programs and enhancing their knowledge. This feat is achieved because of qualified tutors who are taking classes
at CEC of which 41.08% are Intermediate (at Jr. CEC Only), 49.20% Graduate and 9.72% are Post Graduate.

Adopting Integrated Approach
In context to strengthening the monitoring and supervision system under Integrated Services and with the
increasing portfolio of the Company taking into consideration the future perspective of Microfinance Sector,
CASHPOR will face competitive challenges from other MFIs in the coming years. Thus, to prepare and to
overcome the challenges, the Management has decided to implement the integrated services (Microfinance cum
Health & Education services) in all  CASHPOR’s operational area in FY 2021-22 so that, at least 51% of our
CASHPOR beneficiaries’ families lift themselves above poverty, utilizing the integrated services and CASHPOR
itself remains a financially sustainable microfinance institution for the poor. Hence, the newly adopted methods
of integrated approach will certainly help to achieve the core objective of our Group Tuition Program.

CEC Operating Plan for FY 22-23
1. In FY 22-23 it is planned to open 549 new CECs of which 206 will be Sr. & 343 will be Jr. CECs.
2. Further it is planned to extend the children outreach to 76,348 of which 26,343 will be at Sr. & 50,005 will
be at Jr. CEC level.
3. Total 30 Sr. CECs will be converted into Model CEC where classes will be online followed by E-content/
E-Gyan Channel of Govt. of India.
4. Total proposed Budget for FY 22-23 is INR 11,71,06,850 of which, INR 8,87,18,722 (75.76%) will be from
CMC and INR 2,83,88,128 (24.24%) will be by parent’s contribution.
5. Out of total Budget 85% will be utilized on operating expenses of existing and newly opened CECs & 15%
will be one time set-up cost of new proposed CECs.

New Initiative for FY 2022-23
Considering today’s completely changed scenario wherein, effective learning comes through utilizing electronic
technologies to access educational curriculum outside a traditional classroom, CASHPOR is very firm to launch
the “SMART CEC” Concept at the ground level and start E-classes at our Senior CECs.
A Total of 30 Sr. CECs will be converted into Model CECs where classes will be online followed by E-content/
E-Gyan Channel of Govt. of India.
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FIGURE 5

 RENT A SPACE
• DIGITAL SETUP AT CEC

SMART CEC
OPERATING
MODEL

• TUTOR'S TRAINING
• CLASSES THROUGH E-VIDYA
AND OTHER PLATFORMS
• TEACHING CONTENTS
• EXPERT ADVICE

TABLE 7 : YOY NO OF CECs’ AND CHILDREN ENROLLED IN JUNIOR AND SENIOR CEC
Financial Year

No of CEC

No of Children Enrolled during the FY

No of children enrolled in Junior & Senior CEC
Jr. CEC

Sr. CEC

2018-2019

771

29,003

23,147

5,856

2019-2020

1,118

31,522

28,218

3,304

2020-2021

1,178

35,175

19,133

16,042

2021-2022

1,557

50,993

33,371

17,622

TABLE 8: YOY ANALYSIS OF NO OF CHILDREN PASSED 10TH CLASS
Table below represents year- wise passing percentage of our CEC children appeared in Class 10th Board Examination.
TREND OF LAST 3 YEARS OF CLASS 10TH CHILDREN PASSING
S. No.

Financial Year

No. of Children Appeared

No. of Children Passed

Passing %

1

FY 18-19

396

367

92.68

2

FY 19-20

1108

1078

97.29

3

FY 20-21

3341

3341

100.00

OPERATIONAL EXPENSES OF EDUCATION SERVICES
To operate Children Education Program (CEC) the expenses of operating Education Services are as under:
TABLE 9: LAST 4 YEAR EXPENSES ON EDUCATION SERVICES
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Financial Year

No. of CECs

Total

FY 2018-2019

772

27,692,048

FY 2019-2020

1,129

71,218,419

FY 2020-2021

1,178

49,711,333

FY 2021-2022

1,557

73,797,529
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The Financial Year 2021-22 commenced with slow and cautious approach on funding to Microfinance activities.
Although CASHPOR had performed well but Sector’s response towards collections and managing Portfolio at
Risk was not encouraging. However, launch of Credit Guarantee Scheme for MFIs by National Credit Guarantee
Trust Company (NCGTC) has been instrumental in easing credit flow to MFIs and from August 2021 credit
inflow started picking momentum. Apart from this, the half yearly results of the Company raised the confidence
of lending institutions on CASHPOR which ensured smooth credit inflow during rest of the year.

I. Funding Arrangement
CASHPOR’s funding arrangement is normally based on funding requirement projected to achieve the planned
growth of portfolio. It is obvious from Table 10 that CASHPOR focuses on arranging total funding need and
therefore funds are arranged through term loans exceeding funding requirement projected as per Plan. However
total funds arranged during the year were 103% of the projected funding need in the year 2020-21 and 100%
in the Fiscal 2021-22 (including off balance sheet arrangements).
TABLE 10 : Funding Arrangement Projected vs Achievement for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22
S.
No.

Source of
Funds

Projected Fund
Requirement FY 2020-21

Funds Arranged

% Achievement

(Rs in Crore)

(Rs in Crore)

Projected Fund
RequirementFY 2021-22

Funds Arranged
(Total Sanction)

% Achievement

(Rs in Crore)

(Rs in Crore)

1

Term Loans

1090.0

1359.5

125%

1740.8

2025.0

116%

2

Direct
Assignment/
NCD

0.0

175.0

-

0.0

67.9

-

3

BC Arrangement

1624.7

1260.9

78%

2270.5

1913.4

84%

TOTAL

2714.7

2795.4

103%

4011.3

4006.2

100%

II. Quarter Wise Funding Status
The Company Plan also projects quarter wise funding need to ensure smooth and uniform growth. However,
Table 11 gives the status which reflects that lenders priorities are major determining factor on periodical fund
arrangement. Quarter-2 and Quarter-4 are half yearly and annual closing period where lenders are more
aggressive to achieve their targets. Moreover, the Credit Guarantee Scheme was based on the guarantee fund
allocated and to be utilized within a time frame which also compelled lenders to be focused to use the guarantee
fund at the earliest.
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TABLE 11: On Balance Sheet Quarter Wise Funds Received in FY 2021-22
QR-1
FUNDS PROJECTED AS PER PLAN
TOTAL FUNDS RECEIVED
OF ABOVE UNDER CREDIT
GUARANTEE SCHEME for MFIs
% Achieved

QR-2

QR-3

QR-4

TOTAL

31.47

505.24

437.76

766.31

1740.78

0.00

768.00

351.00

711.00

1830.0

–

533.0

276.0

116.0

925.0

0.00%

152.01%

80.18%

92.78%

105.13%

III. Off Balance Sheet Exposure
CASHPOR is arranging funds through off balance sheet arrangements with a view to provide financial assistance
to higher number of BPL households. Moreover, the legal structure also restricts leveraging of fund and sourcing
of fund through off balance Sheet mode is focused area and accordingly CASHPOR plans to keep 50% or
more portfolio outstanding under off balance Sheet segment out of total portfolio outstanding of the Company.
However, CASHPOR ensures that single BC partner’s exposure should not exceed 70% of total off balance sheet
portfolio outstanding. The Table 12 is showing two years’ comparative status of off Balance Sheet exposures.
TABLE 12: Off Balance Sheet Exposure
As on 31 March 2021
S.
No.

Source

A

BC ARRANGEMENT

1

INDUSIND BANK

2

Limit(Rs
in Crore)

Exposure

As on 31 March 2022

% Sharing in
Total Exposure

Limit (Rs in
Crore)

Exposure

% Sharing in
Total Exposure

1100.0

1053.7

72%

1100.0

1067.0

57%

IDBI BANK

250.0

224.8

15%

250.0

248.3

13%

3

ICICI BANK

250.0

83.1

6%

350.0

272.8

15%

4

KOTAK MAHINDRA
BANK

125.0

67.6

5%

150.0

132.4

7%

B

PARTNERNERSHIP ARRANGEMENT
24.9

2%

100.0

99.6

5%

3.1

0.2%

63.5

3%

1457.2

100%

1883.5

100%

SIDBI
C

100.0

DIRECT ASSIGNMENT
STATE BANK OF INDIA
GRAND TOTAL

1825.0

1950.0
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Table 12 shows that IndusInd Bank BC arrangement has highest exposure followed by ICICI Bank and IDBI
BC. The exposure under IndusInd BC arrangement was 72% as of March 2021 which has been brought down
to 57% as of March 2022. However the BC with ICICI Bank has shown marked improvement and its exposure
has reached 15% under total off balance sheet exposures which was only 6% as of March, 2021. The BC
arrangement with Kotak has also increased its share to 7% as of March, 2022 against 5% share as was in
March 2021.

FIGURE 1 : The below presentation shows the BC / Partner wise share in total off balance sheet exposure as of March 2022.

15%

FIGURE 2

Institutional Efficiency Trend of last 5 years

IV. Institutional Efficiency
We measure institutional efficiency
through following four parameters
as administrative cost ratio,
financial cost ratio, total cost ratio
and yield on portfolio, a graphical
presentation of which is given for
last five years showing trends of
improvement in efficiency of the
Company. (Fig. 2)

30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

22.2%
20.1%
11.8%
6.9%

20.3%

18.7%

18.9%

19.1%

10.6%

17.6%
10.8%

17.1%
10.5%

16.9%
10.4%

6.7%

6.0%

6.1%

5.9%

Mar / 19

Mar / 20

Mar / 21

18.0%

5%
0%
Mar / 18

ACR
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TCR

YOP

FCR

Mar / 22

V. Capital Adequacy Ratio

FIGURE 3

The strength of capital is measured
and as per RBI guideline the Capital
Adequacy ratio should be 15% or
more for NBFC–MFIs. The graphical
representation shown in Figure 3
gives the status of Capital Adequacy
Ratio for five years.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
25%
20%

20.3%

19.2%

15%

18.8%

16.9%

Mar / 20

Mar / 21

16.8%

10%
5%
Mar / 18

Mar / 19

Mar / 22

VI. Cash Management
The efficient cash management is one of the important task of Financial Management. The collections are received
at branches and deposited to their Current Accounts and many times collections are kept idle for longer period.
To ensure that cash collections received are pooled at Head Office for its judicious and timely utilization, the
CASHPOR has availed various facilities/ services to ensure efficient use of money and number of branches using
these facilities are given in Table 13.
The Policy of closing current accounts maintained with non-lending Bank Branches necessitated to have alternate
cash management services. Power Jyoti Facility of State Bank of India has been taken by CASHPOR’s most
branches because of its availability at nearest location.
TABLE 13: Cash Management Services
Cash Management Facility

No. of Branches using the facility

Percentage of Branches using the Facility

FY-20-21

FY-21-22

FY-20-21

FY-21-22

Auto sweep / pull out Facility

265

149

40%

22%

FCMBR Facility (PNB Challan)

133

112

20%

17%

Power Jyoti Facility (SBI Challan)

189

336

29%

51%

NEFT / RTGS Facility

69

68

11%

10%

Other

0

3

0%

0

Total

656

668

100%

100%
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VII. CASHPOR’s Last Five Year Performance Table
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

FY 17-18

FY 18-19

FY 19-20

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

5

5

5

5

6

Regions

23

26

29

30

30

Districts

62

73

86

86

89

Branches

504

552

656

656

668

49,939

51,990

58,486

60,816

65,175

1,009,888

1,106,647

1,404,700

1,534,221

1,765,208

73,124

36,396

237,204

108,699

180,118

1,275,461

1,311,857

1,546,203

1,654,902

1,835,020

122,555

101,033

101,325

84,516

112,305

12.0%

10.1%

9.0%

7.0%

8.2%

New Borrowers per year

167,839

130,287

267,444

191,278

287,027

A) Own Clients

477,037

419,933

486,735

574,914

644,818

B) BC Clients

395,733

417,599

487,852

491,970

527,555

0

20833

38407

8196

26716

Total Active Loan Clients
(Cumulative) (A+B+C)

872,770

858,365

1,012,994

1,075,080

1,199,089

Net Increased Active Loan
Clients

19,872

-14,405

154,629

62,086

124,009

A) Own Portfolio
Outstanding

9,445,643,070

10,974,344,441

14,819,639,283

18,393,686,533

23,094,201,304

B) BC Portfolio Outstanding

8,678,801,265

10,520,537,500

13,919,803,028

14,541,909,486

18,200,065,542

0

445,870,270

610,139,480

30,836,795

634,732,479

18,124,444,335

21,940,752,211

29,349,581,791

32,966,432,814

41,928,999,325

4,827,178,521

3,816,307,876

7,408,829,580

3,616,851,023

8,962,566,511

20,767

25,561

28,973

30,664

34,967

108,953,944,253

133,022,706,253

165,887,113,253

196,332,329,253

241,235,610,253

22,921,633,000

24,068,762,000

32,864,407,000

30,445,216,000

44,903,281,000

7,030,625

7,806,319

8,846,228

9,816,276

11,153,500

No. of Loan Disbursed / Year

838,637

775,694

1,039,909

970,048

1,337,224

Average Loan Disbursed / Year

27,332

31,029

31,603

31,385

33,579

Average Loan Disbursed
(Cumulative)

15,497

17,040

18,752

20,001

21,629

State

No. of Centers
No. of Loans
Net New Members per year
Cumulative Members
Dropouts per year
Dropout Rate per year

C) Securitized Clients

C) Securitized Portfolio
Outstanding
Total Portfolio Outstanding
(Cumulative) (A+B+C)
Net Increased Amount
Outstanding / Year
Average Loan Outstanding /
Per Active Loan Client
Amount Disbursed
(Cumulative)
Amount Disbursed / Year
No. of  Loan Disbursed
(Cumulative)

(All amounts are in INR)
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PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

FY 17-18

FY 18-19

FY 19-20

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

Total Portfolio in Rural

18,123,848,285

21,940,665,735

29,349,495,325

32,966,346,368

41,928,999,325

Total Portfolio in Urban

596,050

86,476

86,466

86,446

-

Total ALC in Rural

872,519

858,339

1,012,971

1,075,059

1,199,089

Total ALC in Urban

251

24

23

21

  -   

No. of Scheduled Castes
Clients

329,986

325,534

384,685

403,894

446,245

No. of Scheduled Tribes
Clients

52,141

60,789

86,813

100,798

126,057

No. of Other Backward
Classes Clients

378,035

373,806

436,871

457,559

501,481

No. of  General Clients

110,263

95,978

101,667

109,550

121,534

No. of Others Clients

2,345

2,256

2,958

3,279

3,772

No. of Hindu Clients

787,767

772,793

910,103

966,246

1,080,376

84,583

85,140

102,339

108,126

117,839

420

432

552

708

874

29.8%

34.8%

39.3%

38.7%

32.5%

Micro Transportation

4.6%

3.7%

2.7%

2.6%

2.0%

Agriculture & Allied

56.6%

44.0%

39.4%

40.8%

43.8%

Handicrafts

1.2%

0.9%

0.6%

0.4%

0.3%

Handloom

1.5%

1.4%

1.0%

0.8%

0.7%

Flexi IGL

3.5%

10.8%

12.2%

13.4%

18.1%

0.002%

0.001%

0.002%

0.572%

0.001%

CASHPOR Urja
Loan(Energy Loan)

0.03%

0.10%

0.08%

0.02%

0.01%

CASHPOR Mahila
Sashaktikaran Loan (Women
Empowerment -Mobile Loan)

0.00%

0.00%

0.0001%

0.0057%

0.0387%

CASHPOR Swasthya Loan

1.31%

0.85%

1.72%

0.83%

0.85%

Flexi Non -IGL

1.39%

3.43%

3.15%

1.82%

1.63%

Principal Due/year

15,945,894,557

18,215,167,965

23,647,648,379

25,284,178,436

32,804,448,837

Due Principal collected / Year

15,889,191,805

18,194,570,358

23,627,695,818

25,046,308,098

32,486,226,931

Repayment Rate during the
year

99.64%

99.89%

99.92%

99.06%

99.03%

No. of Minority Clients
No. of Others Clients
Income Generating Loan Portfolio (in %)
Micro Enterprises

Non Income Generating Loan Portfolio (in %)
CASHPOR Suraksha Loan
(Safety Loan)

(All amounts are in INR)
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PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

FY 17-18

FY 18-19

FY 19-20

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

Total Repayment collected
/ Year

18,094,454,479

20,252,454,124

25,455,577,420

26,858,498,204

35,940,714,489

Total Repayment collected
(Cumulative)

90,829,499,918

111,081,954,042

136,537,531,462

163,396,029,666

199,336,744,155

On Time Repayment Rate

99.85%

99.93%

99.90%

99.42%

99.56%

Total Interest Income / Year

3,305,427,007

4,028,796,769

4,991,637,274

5,330,818,456

6,887,744,216

Portfolio At Risk (Amt.)>30
days

37,341,891

32,892,628

46,661,079

187,083,646

199,144,507

0.21%

0.15%

0.16%

0.57%

0.47%

36,822,123

32,681,252

43,899,513

170,389,329

188,199,460

Portfolio At Risk (%)>60
Days

0.20%

0.15%

0.15%

0.52%

0.45%

Client with PAR >30 days

1,382

286

549

6,056

4,455

Clients in Default

1,698

2,583

2,912

9,194

19,894

161,971,430

92,158,777

98,312,344

48,400,000

-   

12,924,489

4,169,441

-

-

48,150,000

0.07%

0.02%

-

-

0.11%

180,182,386

219,628,293

267,897,503

243,376,077

306,123,058

Total Field Staff (CM/SCM)

2,212

2,409

3,041

3,431

3,163

Bonus / Sup. & Support Staff

53,559

59,444

60,789

47,320

57,488

3,383

3,693

4,549

4,943

4,541

Borrowers per field staff

401

361

342

322

342

Borrowers to per Total staff

258

232

223

217

227

17

17

17

18

18

1,732

1,555

1,544

1,639

1,795

Portfolio per field staff

8,325,422

9,222,679

9,895,341

9,876,103

11,966,039

Portfolio to per Total staff

5,357,506

5,941,173

6,451,876

6,669,317

7,927,585

362,932

422,019

502,054

542,068

643,329

35,961,199

39,747,740

44,740,216

50,253,709

62,767,963

Employee Benefit Expenses

919,906,272

1,023,225,560

1,204,920,344

1,520,418,103

1,727,297,173

Administrative & Other
Operating Expenses

257,045,002

343,164,244

421,607,069

314,993,215

656,286,305

1,068,959,851

1,100,741,711

1,376,925,438

1,658,754,293

2,010,424,653

Portfolio At Risk (%)>30
Days
Portfolio At Risk (Amt.)>60
days

Loan Loss Provision
(Expense)
Amount of loans written off
% of Portfolio written off
Total Staff Incentive

Total Staff

Borrowers per Centers
Borrowers per Branches

Portfolio per Centers
Portfolio per Branches

Financial Costs

(All amounts are in INR)
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PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

FY 17-18

FY 18-19

FY 19-20

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

79,246,600

47,440,072

48,945,379

57,338,910

96,276,628

Financial Costs Ratio (FCR)

11.8%

10.6%

10.8%

10.5%

10.4%

Administrative Costs Ratio
(ACR)

6.9%

6.7%

6.0%

6.1%

5.9%

Health & Education
Program Costs Ratio (HCR)

0.3%

0.3%

0.4%

0.4%

0.5%

Loan Loss Expenses Ratio
(LLER)

1.1%

0.5%

0.4%

0.2%

0.1%

20.1%

18.0%

17.6%

17.1%

16.9%

113.7%

116.2%

114.2%

119.6%

117.9%

22.2%

20.3%

18.7%

18.9%

19.1%

319,417,567

403,579,971

482,809,252

716,189,817

979,261,193

10,234,101,731

11,184,377,961

15,193,666,280

20,332,287,867

24,165,729,024

289,942,229

236,173,336

200,100,000

199,844,546

100,029,478

10,524,043,960

11,420,551,297

15,393,766,280

20,532,132,414

24,265,758,502

223,275,561

202,840,000

200,100,000

199,844,546

100,029,478

66,666,668

33,333,336

-

-

-

1,630,478,028

2,072,621,098

2,619,782,199

3,184,832,147

4,158,800,042

369,629,468

440,604,829

526,162,353

217,290,236

41,200,000

Total Capital

2,000,107,496

2,513,225,927

3,145,944,552

3,402,122,383

4,200,000,042

Total Risk Weighted Assets

9,993,085,061

11,850,663,591

16,000,507,485

20,115,662,200

25,029,711,063

19.2%

20.3%

18.8%

16.9%

16.8%

Impairment on Financial
Instruments

Total Cost Ratio (TCR)
Operational Self Sufficiency
(OSS)
Yield on Portfolio (YOP)
Surplus/ (Deficit) of
Total Income over Total
Expenditure
Secured Debt
Unsecured Debt
Total Debt
Subordinated Debt
Unsubordinated debt/
Unsecured Debt
Tier I Capital
Tier II Capital

Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR)

(All amounts are in INR)

FCR

: (Total Financial Expenses less Income from pledged FD/CC) / Monthly Average Portfolio (Own)

ACR : (Employee Benefit Expenses + Administrative & Other Expenses+Impairment on Other Financial Assets, excluding HCR, Financial aid to
rural women & LLER) / Monthly Average on Total Portfolio
HCR : (Health & Education Program Expense) /Monthly Average on Total Portfolio
LLER : (Loan Loss Provision Expenses) / Monthly Average on Total Portfolio
TCR : (FCR+ACR+HCR+LLER)
YOP : (Income from operation (Own portfolio) / Monthly Average Portfolio (Own)
CAR : (Total Equity / Risk Weighted Assets)
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DIRECTORS'

REPORT

Dear Members,
CASHPOR Micro Credit
Varanasi
Your Directors are pleased to present the 20th
(Twentieth) Director’s Report of CASHPOR together
with the Audited Financial Statement and the Auditors’
Report for the financial year ended on 31st March,
2022.

1.

Financial Highlights
For the FY ended
on 31st March, 2022

For the FY ended
on 31st March, 2021

% Change as compared
to FY 2020-21

Total Revenue (in crores)

546.96

426.77

28.16%

Total Expenditure (in crores)

449.03

355.15

26.43%

Surplus (in crores)

97.93

71.62

36.74%

Particulars

CASHPOR had a comfortable Financial Year in
terms of the Financial Performance despite of facing
challenges and operational obstructions due to the
second wave of COVID-19, imposition of lockdown
in various parts of operational areas during the month
of April and May, 2021. These challenges affected the
Microfinance Operations carried out in the beginning
of the financial year.
Following its rich tradition of sharing its Surplus and
Economies of Scale with the beneficiaries of its program
as well as to recognize beneficiaries’ contribution as
good repayment rate of loans and to show credibility
with CASHPOR at the time of Covid-19 when there
was financial criticality, CASHPOR has rewarded all
the beneficiaries by reducing interest rates on its OWN
products to 17.50% from 18% and 18.05%. Further,
5, 08,030 BPL beneficiaries who were in their second,
third and subsequent loan cycles were distributed
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financial aid in the form of rebate of one installment,
amounting to a total of 23,73,41,212.
The Company also allocated Rs. 107.06 Lacs from
CASHPOR’s CSR budget towards helping the needy
members through various medical and skill development
services. Along with this, being a not for profit
institution, CASHPOR has maintained its status of the
lowest interest charging organization in the MFI sector.

2. Impact Assessment Survey
The Internal Audit Department carried out Impact
Assessment Sample Survey of 13,646 beneficiaries of
4th & above loan cycle of CASHPOR’s Microfinance
Program in 23 mature regions to define the impact on
their living standard. The results for the period ranging
from April, 2021 to December, 2021 are presented in
Table of Comparative Analysis.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS
April 2021 to
December 2021

April 2020 to
December 2020

4 or more loan cycle
(Total Survey=13646)

4 or more loan cycle
(Total Survey=13800)

Increased in CHI

70.75%

61.51%

Decreased in CHI

3.66%

6.41%

Who had come out of Poverty (PPI>29) since joining
Cashpor

58.58%

48.38%

Beneficiaries where PPI Increased but less than 30

35.13%

39.24%

Total % of Beneficiaries whose PPI increased

93.71%

87.12%

Beneficiaries with no Changes in PPI

1.66%

1.92%

Percentage of Beneficiaries whose PPI decreased

4.63%

10.96%

CASHPOR’s loans and services are Very Good

62.69%

57.91%

CASHPOR’s loans and services are Good

37.21%

41.94%

CASHPOR’s loans and services are Not so Good

0.10%

0.17%

Safe drinking water

94.34%

93.73%

Sanitary toilet facility at client’s house

73.83%.

73.69%.

Seasonal employment only

44.26%

47.04%

Children attended CEC Beneficiaries responded as ‘A
lot of Impact’

38.97%

14.31%

Children attended CEC, Beneficiaries recorded some
useful

58.21%

39.21%

Children attended CEC, Beneficiaries have response
None useful

2.82%

46.48%

Who have attended CHC, Beneficiaries responded as a
lot useful

0.26%

9.94%

Who have attended CHC, Beneficiaries recorded Some
Useful

99.24%

8.36%

Who have attended CHC, Beneficiaries have response
None

0.49%

81.70%

Beneficiaries were aware about the total weeks she had
repaid

60.24%

67.38%

CASHPOR's rate of interest is lower in compare to that
of other MFIs.

99.49%

98.66%

Need assessment of loan

99.96%

99.92%

Checked her loan repayment capacity

99.90%

99.85%

Satisfied about staff’s behavior

99.88%

99.77.%

Parameter
SN

2

3

4

5

6

6

Heads

PPI

Client Satisfaction

Level of Living (LOL)
Income

Beneficiaries Satisfaction
with Health and Education
Services.

Client Awareness and
financial Literacy

Compliance with Sa-Dhan
Code of Conduct

As per report 93.71% of the Mature Loan Beneficiaries who had borrowed 4 or more times from CASHPOR
had experienced considerable decline in their poverty since they started borrowing from CASHPOR and 58.58%
had entirely came above poverty line, with a PPI score of more than 29.
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3. Review of Operations
Cashless Disbursement and Collection

and stoppage of center meetings in the villages during
the lock downs due to COVID-19 pandemic.

Cashless Disbursement of Micro Loans directly into
the Bank Accounts of the Beneficiaries of CASHPOR’s
Microfinance Program had already commenced on
full scale with effect from Financial Year 2018-19 to
mitigate the risk arising out of cash handling of large
size loans, their disbursement as well as the frauds and
pipelining incidences related with the same. With the
support of all the employees and the beneficiaries as well
as excellent IT infrastructure, the Company had rolledout collections of weekly installments in cashless mode
from its beneficiaries having loan size of Rs. 70,000 and
above looking into the risk of contracting with COVID
in the second wave of COVID-19 by center managers,
prohibition on physical movement of center managers

Since the beginning of FY 2021-22, business of the
Company has been adversely affected, like all other
financial institutions, particularly the micro-finance
institutions, due to the operational disruptions during
the second wave of Covid-19 pandemic. During the
year, the focus of CASHPOR continued to be largely
on increasing the impact of its Poverty Reduction
Program through implementation of New Growth
Strategy, bringing efficiency into its processes with
the use of Information Technology in the form of
Cashless Disbursement and Collections in cashless
mode, improving credit discipline and expanding the
outreach of its Health and Education Services and other
supporting social services amongst its BPL beneficiaries.

Operational Highlights
Particulars

as on 31/03/2022

as on 31/03/2021

% Change

668

656

1.83%

6

5

20.00%

Active BPL Micro-Credit Beneficiaries

1,199,089

1,075,080

11.53%

Total Portfolio Outstanding (Rs. in Crore)

4,192.90

3,296.64

27.19%

Avg. Portfolio per Beneficiary

34,967

30,664

14.03%

Flexi Loan Beneficiaries

469,614

320,861

46.36%

Flexi Loan Portfolio (Rs. in Crore)

827.42

502.65

64.61%

PAR > 30 days

0.47%

0.57%

-16.31%

Operational Self-Sufficiency

117.89

119.60

-1.43%

Percentage of mature borrowers coming
above the poverty line

58.58%

48.38%

21.08%

Number of Branches
No. of States
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Achievement of Operational parameters against Planned Targets
Planned Target
For FY 2021-22

Achievement

% Achievement

Active BPL Micro-Credit Beneficiaries

105,951

124,009

117.04

Total Portfolio Outstanding (Rs. Crore)-Own

376.03

470.05

125.00

Total Portfolio Outstanding (Rs. Crore)-Managed

481.67

365.82

75.95

Total Portfolio Outstanding (Rs. Crore)-securitized

–

60.39

–

Total Portfolio Outstanding (Rs.)

857.71

896.26

104.49

Avg. Portfolio Outstanding per Beneficiary

35,176

34,967

99.41

Flexi Loan ALC

273,033

201,205

73.69

Flexi Loan Portfolio (Rs.)

386.71

324.76

83.98

PAR > 30 Days

0.500%

0.47%

94

Parameter

The Company over-achieved its planned operational
targets against all the aforesaid parameters despite
facing multidimensional challenges viz. operational
disruptions during second wave of COVID-19,
imposition of lockdown in operational areas and
severe disruptions in the personal and financial lives
of its employees and beneficiaries who have lost their
near and dear ones in this pandemic. Further, the
Company hopes that it will continuously maintain its
good portfolio quality with the support of its diligent
and dedicated staff and faith of its BPL beneficiaries
on the organization.
Impact of Covid-19 on Operations and Financial
Health
At the beginning of the Fiscal year, we all confronted
the outburst of second wave of covid-19 pandemic
which distorted the health infrastructure facilities of
the country leading to spillage of its effect to all the
sectors of the economy. The Company was not an
exception to this, and thus it also encountered these
hurdles and altogether tried its best to cope up with
the situation while helping its employees and BPL
beneficiaries with medical and financial assistance.

Considering the seriousness of the condition, the
Company’s focus continued in ensuring the health
and well-being of all BPL beneficiaries and employees
and on minimizing disruption to services for all its
BPL beneficiaries in its Operational areas. For this
purpose, many changes took place in various policies
and procedures for smooth and effective functioning
and the Company efficaciously met the challenges by
continuing the earlier practices which were adopted
during the first wave of COVID-19 like creating
awareness among its BPL beneficiaries and staffs,
educating them about preventive measures against
the COVID-19 infection, providing them mask and
sanitizers. Additionally, vaccination camps were
organized for its BPL beneficiaries and employees
both at the field level as well as the Head Office level.
For ensuring the safety and availability of timely
medication, CASHPOR also provided medical kits at
the branches with prescribed COVID-19 medicines to
be used by the staffs in case of COVID symptoms.
CASHPOR ensures to run its 3 dimensional service
areas viz. Financial, Health & Education services and
successfully drive its mission further towards providing
TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22
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Financial, Health & Education services effectively &
efficiently to poor households of its operational areas
under its Poverty Reduction Program.
Micro-Savings Services
CASHPOR realizes that Micro-Savings is an essential
component of Microfinance Services and its efforts
to bring the BPL families out of poverty will not
be fruitful without these families having access to
formal and safe savings facilities. Micro-Savings
Services are essential if full financial inclusion of
these BPL Households is to be ensured.   A summary
report of the Micro-Savings facilities provided to its
beneficiaries as a BC of Banks as at 31st March, 2022
is as under:
Particulars

ICICI Bank

IndusInd Bank

No. of Savings A/C

234,251

118,820

No. of savings
balance > 0

160,233

118,558

Average savings
balance of those A/C

403.78

1033.29

64,677,691

122,504,714

Cumulative Savings
Balance

Micro-Pension Services
Earlier, BPL beneficiaries of CASHPOR’s Program
were facilitated with Micro-Pension Services by
the Company under Central Government’s New
Pension Scheme (NPS) Lite’s (Swavalamban) OldAge Pension Yojana wherein for every Rs. 1,000
contributed by CASHPOR’s beneficiary during the
Year, the Government also contributed Rs. 1,000 to
her Pension Account for 5 years. During FY 15-16,
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the Government of India had introduced Atal Pension
Yojana (APY) under which any person between the
ages of 18 to 40 years is eligible to open a Pension
Account and receive the desired guaranteed Pension
amount after 60 Years. Beneficiaries aged 41 years to
60 years will continue under the erstwhile NPS-Lite’s
Pension Scheme.
As on 31st March 2022, CASHPOR had 1,83,626
Lakhs subscribers under the erstwhile New Pension
Scheme (NPS) Lite’s (Swavalamban) Old-Age Pension
Yojana and 4596 subscribers under Atal Pension
Yojana (APY) in association with IndusInd Bank.
The total contribution mobilized during FY was
Rs. 3,13,400 from 297 subscribers under NPS-Lite
Swavalamban and APY scheme.
Non-Financial Services (Health & Education Services)
It is well recognized by the Board that not only the
microfinance services but also Health and Education
Services are also core verticals of the Company and are
essential services so as to ensure that its BPL Members
are able to lift themselves out of Poverty. Board feels
that Health and Education Services are as important as
is its core Microfinance Services and must be provided
to all its BPL beneficiaries if their poverty has to be
significantly reduced through CASHPOR’s loans.
Therefore, during the year, Board of Directors largely
focused on expanding the outreach and increasing the
impact of its Social Services like Health and Education
Services, Skill Development Program and Financial
Literacy and such other social services. A detailed
report on achievement against projected performance
in terms of Health and Education Services has been
given below and Report on Social Services has been
given in the CSR Report annexed as Annexure 1.

Achievement against projected performance of Non-Financial Services (Health & Education Services) is as
follows:
Particulars

Projection

Achievement

Achievement (in %)

3401

3182

93%

486,000

413,500

85%

0

172

172%

336

444

132%

302,000

625,146

207%

30,000

30,689

102%

300,000,000

386,663,000

Outreach

30,000

30,689

Water Loan

9,000

17,451

90,000,000

213,157,000

Outreach

9,000

17,451

Energy Loan

1,000

1,272

5,000,000

6,262,000

1,000

1,272

Amount distributed

24600

23100

93.90%

No. of Beneficiaries

17

16

94.11%

377

377

100%

19095

15818

82.83%

HEALTH SERVICES
Health Education through Community Health Facilitators (CHFs)
No. of CHFs
CHF Outreach from Health
Education & Livelihood Program
Mini Health Clinic (MHC) and E-Clinics
No. of MHC
No. of E-Clinics
Families Outreach
HEALTH FINANCE
Sanitation Loan
Disbursement (in Rs.)

Disbursement (in Rs.)

Disbursement (in Rs.)
Outreach

194%

127%

EDUCATION SERVICES
Scholarship

CASHPOR Education Centre
No. of CEC (Addition)
No. of Beneficiaries (new addition)

Total number of students benefitted from Junior and Senior CECs
No. of  Children in Jr. CECs

33371

No. of  Children in Sr. CECs

17622

Total Number of Students benefitting

50993
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During the fiscal, CASHPOR was able to cater to
around 625,146 BPL beneficiaries’ families through
the Mini Health Clinics (MHCs) which was about
207% against the projected target. In addition to the
MHCs, “Tele-Medicine: Doctor on call facility” also
proved useful for the beneficiaries as well as staffs as
they get prompt consultation and medical advice in
need to stay fit and healthy during this pandemic.
Moving further with the Education Services, 50,993
children have been benefitted from CASHPOR Education
Centers. CASHPOR has also distributed scholarships
to facilitate the continued education of the bright and
capable students. Under Education Services, software
application is designed and developed for monitoring
of Educational Activities through CASHPOR’s inhouse software application which is indeed a great
achievement.

4.

IT Innovations

CASHPOR firmly believes that IT innovation is the
backbone of the Operations and Processes. During the
Year, the Information Technology staff has designed and
developed softwares and applications for Operations
Department, Internal Audit Department and Health
and Education Services departments of the Company
for automation of these process, ease of functioning
and increasing the effectiveness of the company.

5. HR Initiatives
CASHPOR constantly works on making its HR Policies
more employee-friendly and ensuring a conducive
and healthy working environment in the Company.
CASHPOR is also striving to attain more gender
diversity and balance amongst its field employees
by increasing the number of female employees and
continuously focusing on health and well-being
of employees and provide guidance and support
towards taking preventive measures to fight against
COVID-19.
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6. Regulatory Compliances and Revised
Code of Conduct
There has been no major change in the regulatory
environment to which the Company is subject to
however, on 14th March, 2022 Reserve Bank has issued
Master Direction – Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory
Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions, 2022
which mandated CASHPOR to get registration as a
NBFC-MFI and currently the Company is under the
process of submitting application for registration.
CASHPOR’s policies and procedures have been
compliant of the Uniform Industry Code of Conduct.
Further, CASHPOR has complied with the RBI
Fair Practices Code and other laws and regulations
applicable to the Company.

7. Auditor’s Qualification, Reservation or
Adverse Remark
M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/
N500013 hold office until FY 2023-24.
There are no qualification remarks in the report of
the Independent Statutory Auditors and Secretarial
Auditor. Auditor’s observations are self – explanatory.
Secretarial Audit Report is annexed as Annexure 2.

8. Composition of Audit Committee of
the Board
1. Mr. Abhijit Sen, Independent Director
(Chairman of the Committee)
2. Mr. Sudarshan Sen, Independent Director
(Member)
3. Mr. Bahram Navroz Vakil (Member)
4. Mr. Saneesh Singh (Member)

9. Risk Management
During the Year, CASHPOR also focused on
improving its Risk Management Practices and
strengthening its Risk Vertical and has implemented
a Board approved Risk Management policy including
Risk mitigation process and measures, which identifies
major risks which may threaten the existence of the

Company. During FY 2021-22, the Board Level Risk
Committee duly met two times on 3rd June, 2021 and
10th December, 2021 and the Management Level Risk
Committee duly met seven times on 16th April, 2021;
29th May, 2021; 31st July, 2021; 28th September, 2021;
23rd October, 2021; 29th November, 2021 and 21st
February, 2022.

10. Vigil Mechanism
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy in place
which applies to all the employees and encourages them
to express their concern so that proactive measures
are taken and any loss or impairment is avoided or
abated. This mechanism also safeguards the employees
reporting any unfair practice through this mechanism.

11. Change in Nature of Business
During the financial year under review, there were no
changes in nature of business of the company.

12. Change in Share Capital
There was no change in the Share Capital of the
company during the financial year under review.

13. Details of Subsidiary, Associate and
Joint Ventures
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint
Venture or Associate Company.

14. Constitution of Board of Directors and
Changes Therein
There has been no change in the constitution of Board
during the financial year i.e. the structure of the Board
remains the same.

15. Meetings of the Board of Directors
During FY 2021-22, the Board of Directors of
the Company duly met for six times on 04th June,
2021; 25th October, 2021; 11th November, 2021;  
10th December, 2021; 09th February, 2022 and 25th
February, 2022. Proper notices were given and the
proceedings were properly recorded and signed
and kept in loose leaf which are bound annually as

required by the Companies Act 2013 and secretarial
standards made thereunder.

16. Declaration by Independent Director
under Sub-Section (6) of Section 149
Declaration is given by Mr. Abhijit Sen and Mr.
Sudarshan Sen, Independent Directors under Section
149 (6) of Companies Act, 2013.

17. Changes in Key Managerial Personnel
There was no change in Key Managerial Personnel
and Senior Management during FY 2021-22.

18. Particulars of Related Party Transaction
Particulars of Related Party transaction entered into
by the Company has been disclosed in the Notes to
Accounts of the Financial Statements of the Company
for FY 2021-22. Further, the Company has not entered
into any transaction which falls under the purview of
Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence,
detail in Form AOC-2 is not required to be annexed.

19. Loans, Guarantees & Investments As Per
Section 186 of The Companies Act, 2013
NIL

20. Details of Material or Significant Orders
Passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals Impacting the Going Concern
Status and Company’s Future Operations
No such order has been passed by any regulator or
court or tribunal which impacts the Going Concern
Status of the Company or its ability to continue
operations in future.

21. Material Changes Affecting the Financial
Position of the Company Subsequent to
the Date of the Financial Statements
There are no material changes and commitments
affecting the financial position of the Company, which
has occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company i.e. March 31, 2022 and the date of the
Directors' Report.
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22. Extract of Annual Return

e.

The extract of Annual Return as per Section 92(3) of
Companies Act, 2013 is available on the website of
the Company (www.cashpor.in).

The Company is not accepting any public deposit, and
will not accept any public deposit in future without
the written permission of RBI in this respect.

23. Statutory Disclosures

24. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

A.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 the Board of Directors of the Company confirms
that-

Conservation of Energy

The Company’s operations are not energy-intensive
and as such involve low energy consumption in
the form of electricity consumption in the course
of operating administrative offices. However, the
Company provided solar lights in all its branch
offices as alternate source of energy & took adequate
measures to conserve the consumption of energy.
b. Technology Absorption
Operations of the company do not involve any kind
of special technology and there was no expenditure
on research & development during this financial
year. However, CASHPOR continues to upgrade its
technology.
c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
The Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during
the financial period ended 31st March, 2022 is as
follows:
31st March,
2022

31st March,
2021

Foreign Exchange
Earnings

NIL

NIL

Foreign Exchange
Outgo

74,27,150.00

73,75,180.00

Particulars

d.

Particulars of Employees

Rule 5 (2) of the Companies Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel Rules, 2014
prescribes the limits of remuneration to be paid by a
Public Company to its directors. As CASHPOR Micro
Credit is a private limited company the Rule is not
applicable to the Company.
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Non-Acceptance of Public Deposits

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;
b) the directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the company for that
period;
c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this
Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;
d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on
a going concern basis;
e) the directors had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively.
f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

25. Compliance of Secretarial Standard
The Company has complied with all the applicable
compliances of Secretarial Standards.

Responsibility Policy (CSR Policy) indicating the
activities to be undertaken by the Company, which
has been approved by the Board During the year.

26. Compliance With Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Annual Report on CSR activities is enclosed as
per prescribed format as Annexure 1 and forms part
of this report.

The company has complied with provisions relating
to the constitution of internal complaints committee
and other applicable provisions under ‘The Sexual
Harassment of Women at workplace (prevention,
prohibition and redressal) Act, 2013’.

27. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee) of the Company has formulated
and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social

28. Acknowledgements:
Your Directors would like to thank the hardworking
personnel at all levels of the organisation, the lenders,
the BPL Families associated with CASHPOR’s Program
and all other stakeholders of the Company for their
persistent support and encouragement during the year
and look forward to their continued support in the
years ahead. Directors wish for the health, safety and
prosperity of all in their walks of life.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of CASHPOR Micro Credit,
Sd/Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN -02696656

Sd/Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice-Chairman
DIN-00283980

Place : Varanasi
Date : 25th May, 2022
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ANNEXURE 1 TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

THE ANNUAL REPORT
ON CSR ACTIVITIES

FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH, 2022
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Even before the CSR provisions were mandated by Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company had been
providing Health and Education Services to its BPL beneficiaries and their families in addition to its microfinance
services as an integral part of its Poverty Reduction Program.
CASHPOR strongly believes that to be able to create a significant impact on the poverty of our BPL Members
through our microfinance program, it is important that they and their family members remain healthy and at
least one child in each family is educated up to class 10th in order to be able to secure a job and ensure that the
family permanently comes out of poverty.
To enable our BPL beneficiaries and their families to stay healthy and to help their children pass at least high
school and become capable of salaried or self-employment, the Company has already been providing Health and
Education Services as well as facilitating skill development trainings for their children for past several years.
During FY 2021-22, the Company decided to spend 2% of its Average Net surplus for immediately preceding
three years, in spreading mass awareness on Covid 19 vaccination and conducting skill development programs for
imparting skills through an Implementing Agency. The first has been carried out by the company itself whereas
the second being an ongoing project of skill development, is being carried out by an Implementing Agency known
as CASHPOR Trust and have CSR Reg. No.CSR00018538.
The ‘CSR Policy’ duly approved and subsequently amended by the Board of Directors of the Company during
the financial year provides for the following activities to be undertaken by the Company under its CSR initiative:
(i) Eradicating hunger, poverty & malnutrition, promoting healthcare including preventive healthcare, sanitation
and making available safe drinking water
(ii) Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills specially among
children, women, elderly and livelihood enhancement projects
(iii) Promoting gender equality & empowering women
(iv) Rural development projects
(v) Slum Area Development
(vi) Disaster management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities
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2. Composition of CSR Committee:
S.No.

Name of Director

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
attended during the year

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
held during the year

Designation in Committee

1.

Mr. Abhijit Sen

Chairman of the Committee

1

2.

Prof. David S. Gibbons

Member

0

3.

Mr. Bahram N Vakil

Member

4.

Ms. Moumita Sen Sarma

Member

1

5.

Mr. Mukul Jaiswal

Ex-Officio Member

1

1

1

3.

Details of the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
The web-link to view details about Company’s CSR initiatives is http://www.cashpor.in/pages/Policy.aspx

4.

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable

5.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any
S.No.

Financial Year

Amount available for set-off from
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount required to be set off for the
financial year, if any (in Rs)

1.

2020-21

29,82,544

–

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 535,320,151.00
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 10,706,403.00
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year: NIL
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 10,706,403.00
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Total Amount Spent for
the Financial Year (in Rs.)
Rs. 69,58,953

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) : 40,93,800 (ongoing project)
Total Amount transferred to Unspent
CSR Account as per Section 135(6)
Amount
40,93,800

Date of transfer
12th April, 2022

Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)
Name of the Fund
NA

Amount
NA

Date of transfer
NA
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

S.N.

Name of the
Project

Item from the
list of activities
in Schedule VII
to the Act

Local
area
(Yes/
No)

1
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Skill
Development
Program

(ii) promoting
education,
including
special
education and
employment
enhancing
vocation skills
especially
among children,
women,
elderly, and the
differently abled
and livelihood
enhancement
projects;

Yes

(5)

Location of the
project

State

District

Bihar
U.P
Bihar
U.P
U.P
U.P
U.P

Siwan
Gorakhpur
Kaimur
Chandauli
Fatehpur
Pratapgarh
Sonebhadra
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(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Project
duration

Amount
allocated
for the
project
(in Rs.)

Amount
spent in
the current
financial
Year
(in Rs.)

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR
Account for
the project as
per Section
135(6)
(in Rs.)

Mode of
Implementation
- Direct
(Yes/No)

Mode of Implementation Through Implementing Agency

68,23,000

27,92,000

40,93,800

No

15
Months

Name

Cashpor
Trust

CSR Registration
number

CSR00018538

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1)

S.
N.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Name of
the
Project

Item from the list
of activities in
schedule VII to
the Act

Local
area
(Yes/
No)

Location of the project

Mode of
implementation Direct (Yes/No)

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

State

District

Amount
spent for the
project
(in Rs.)

Uttar Pradesh

Ambedkarnagar

293,492

Yes

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

Aurangabad

113,150

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Ballia

53,480

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Chhattisgarh

Bilaspur

371,970

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Chandauli

271,330

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Chitrakoot

301,180

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

Darbhanga &
Sitamadi

145,481

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

East Champaran

93,646

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Jharkhand

Giridih

156,700

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Hmairpur

388,938

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Jharkhand

Hazaribagh

322,805

Yes

(8)
Mode of implementation
- Through implementing
agency

Name

CSR
registration
number
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(1)

S.
N.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

(2)

(3)

Name of
the
Project

Item from the list
of activities in
schedule VII to
the Act

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

(4)

(5)

(6)

Local
area
(Yes/
No)

Location of the project

Mode of
implementation Direct (Yes/No)

State

District

Amount
spent for the
project
(in Rs.)

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Varanasi

107,489

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Chhattisgarh

Jashpur

37,600

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Jaunpur

402,875

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Mirzapur

318,302

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

Muzaffarpur

71,335

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

Samastipur

75,388

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Bihar

Saran

38,325

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Chhattisgarh

Sarguja

183,282

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Uttar Pradesh

Sonebhadra

230,870

Yes

Mass awareness
campaign
on Covid 19
Vaccinations

“promoting health
care including
preventive health
care”

Madhya
Pradesh

Tikamgarh

252,115

Yes

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):Rs. 69, 58,953 /(g) Excess amount for set off, if any-Rs.346350 (From FY 2021-22)
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(8)
Mode of implementation
- Through implementing
agency

Name

CSR
registration
number

S.N.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(i)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

10,706,403

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

69,58,953

(iii)

Unspent amount parked for ongoing project*

40,93,800

(iv)

Excess amount spent for the financial year (i)-(iii)-(ii)

3,46,350

(v)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(vi)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]

Nil

Rs.29,82,544.00 (from FY 2020-21)
&
Rs.3,46,350 (from FY 2021-22)

* Point added for Unspent CSR Amount Parked for ongoing Project

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL
S.N.

Preceding
Financial
Year

Amount transferred
to Unspent CSR
Account under section
135 (6) (in Rs.)

Amount spent
in the reporting
Financial Year
(in Rs.)

NIL

NA

–

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule
VII as per section 135(6), if any

Name of the Fund

Amount (in Rs)

Date of transfer

NA

NA

NA

Amount remaining
to be spent in
succeeding financial
years (in Rs.)

NA

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NIL
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

S.N.

Project
ID

Name of
the
Project

Financial Year in
which the project
was commenced

Project
duration

Total amount
allocated for the
project (in Rs.)

Amount spent on the
project in the reporting
Financial Year (in Rs)

Cumulative amount
spent at the end of
reporting Financial
Year (in Rs.)

Status of the project Completed /Ongoing

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc: Not Applicable
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of
the capital asset). Not Applicable
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of CASHPOR Micro Credit,

Sd/

Sd/

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN -02696656
Place : Varanasi
Date : 25 May, 2022

Moumita Sen Sarma
Chairperson-CSR Committee		
DIN-00481775

62 |

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

ANNEXURE 2 TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

SECRETARIAL
AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

To,
The Members,
Cashpor Micro Credit
S-8/107, 107-A-1, 2nd Floor, Varanasi Trade Center,
Khajuri, Maqbool Alam Road, Varanasi- 221002, U. P.
We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Cashpor Micro Credit. (Hereinafter referred as “the company”)
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Cashpor Micro Credit’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board - processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
Further we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by Cashpor Micro Credit (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the
provisions of:
(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
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(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, Foreign
Contribution Regulation Act, 2010 and the rules made thereunder to the extent of receiving, utilizing and
reporting of foreign grants to the concerned department;
(iv) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii)

The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
We further report that:
1.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted as per provisions of the Act. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any are also taken care by the
Board.

2.

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

3.

During the period under review, the company has maintained its status of being a company licensed under
Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (previously Sec 25 of Companies Act, 1956). The position as stated
above has not undergone any change during the period under review.

4.

During the audit period the company has raised fund by way of issuing privately placed Non-Convertible
Debenture of Rs. 175 Crores Only.

5.

During the audit period the company has not raised any fund by way of
A. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares /sweat equity, etc.
B. Redemption / buy-back of securities.
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C. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013.
D. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.
E. Foreign technical collaborations.
6.

The company has not defaulted in filing Forms, returns, documents and resolutions with the Registrar of
Companies and the Central Government. Also has properly maintained the various statutory registers and
documents and is regularly making necessary entries therein.

7.

The company has not defaulted in making stipulated payments in respect of its borrowings from bankers,
financial institutions and other lenders. The company has been carrying out its business in conformity with
the objects specified in Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company (the M&A). Also the
company has obtained the approval from Board of Directors, members, Central Government, Regional
Director, Registrar of Companies, Banks and financial institutions, creditors, Company Law Board, wherever
necessary.

8.

The company has appointed M/s. Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP Chartered Accountants, Noida as Statutory
Auditors to hold office for a period of five years for Financial Years 2019-20 to FY 2023-24 as required by
law.

9.

The 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company was duly held on 31st August, 2021.

10. The company has borrowed moneys within the applicable limits and after availing the necessary contents as
required by law. The company has created the security on its properties/assets in favor of the lender as per the
stipulated terms and notified of the required charge particulars to the Registrar of Companies, U.P., Kanpur
within the prescribed time limits. Also, the satisfactions of charge have been made within the applicable time
limits.
11. The company has been duly complying with applicable statutory provisions under the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the Rules/Regulations made thereunder with regard to its corporate action
relating External Commercial Borrowing availed.
12. The Company has properly served the relevant documents to its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of
Companies, whenever required. Also, the notice of General Meetings, Board Meetings and the meetings of
Committees of Directors were properly served among the concerned people.
13. The meetings of Board of Directors and the committees of the Board were duly held in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act and the Articles of Association of the Company including passing of
resolutions by circulation u/s 175 of the Companies Act, 2013.
14. The Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings have been
properly prepared, dated, duly initialed and signed and maintained in bound form.
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15. There was no issue, allotment, transfer and transmission of shares of the company, during the period under
review.
16. The Company has not declared and made payment of dividends as it is a Section 8 company and it has duly
complied with the conditions as given in the license issued by the Regional Director.
17. The Company has safely kept and maintained Contracts/agreements, common seal, attendance register for
the Board Meetings and other relevant publications in the name of the Company.
18. There was no prosecution initiated against the Company and no fines or penalties were imposed on the
Company, its Directors and Officers during the year under review under the Companies Act and Rules,
regulations and Guidelines framed under the Act.
19. The Directors have complied with the requirement as to disclosure of interests and concerns in contracts and
arrangements, shareholding / debenture holdings and directorships in other companies and interests in other
entities.
20. The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the provisions of the Act, wherever required.
21. The Company has filed Form FC-4 with FCRA Dept. Ministry of Home Affairs for FY 2020-21 with additional
fee though the filing of the form FC-4 was optional for the company as the registration of the company under
FCRA had expired w.e.f 1st June, 2021 and the same is currently under process.
22. The Company complied with all the applicable statutory provisions relating to investment of Company’s
funds, preparation of its financial statements in accordance with revised schedule VI of the act, director’s
report and other laws and provisions applicable to the company.
Place: Varanasi
Date: 20.05.2022
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For Ajay Jaiswal & Co.
Company Secretary

Sd/Ajay Kumar Jaiswal
CP No. 3684
UDIN: F005112D000356518

Independent Auditor’s Report

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Plot No 19A, 2nd Floor
Sector - 16A,
Noida - 201 301
Uttar Pradesh, India
T +91 120 485 5999
F +91 120 485 5902

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Cashpor Micro Credit
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
1)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cashpor Micro Credit (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Income and Expenditure
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its surplus (including other comprehensive income),
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
3)

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘the ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
4)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Expected Credit Losses on loans carried at amortised cost
(Refer Note 2(f) for the accounting policy and Note 44 for the related disclosures)
As at 31 March 2022, Company has loans carried at
amortised cost amounting to Rs. 22,673.24 million. As
per Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments, the Company
is required to recognise allowance for expected credit
loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost and
has an allowance of Rs. 238.21 million carried as at
31 March 2022 against such loan assets.
Expected credit loss cannot be measured precisely,
but can only be estimated through use of statistics and
application of judgement. The calculation of expected
credit losses is complex and requires exercise of
judgement around both the timing of recognition of
impairment provisions and estimation of the amount
of provisions required in relation to loss events. Such
estimates involve probability of loss on the loans over
their life, considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions which could
impact the credit quality of the Company’s loan assets.
In this process, with the help of a management
expert, the Company has applied a three stage
approach based on changes in credit quality to
measure expected credit loss on loans which is as
follows:
•

If the loan outstanding is not past due and due for
1-14 days then it is classified in ‘Stage 1’ where
there is no significant increase in credit risk;

•

If the loan outstanding is past due for 15-28 days
and there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition but are not credit
impaired, it is classified in ‘Stage 2’;

•

If the loan is credit-impaired, then it is then moved
to ‘Stage 3’ i.e. the loan outstanding is past due for
more than 28 days.

ECL is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage 1 loan
assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage 3
loan assets. Significant management judgement in
measuring ECL is required with respect to:
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Our audit procedures in relation to expected credit
losses were focused on obtaining sufficient appropriate
audit evidence as to whether the expected credit
losses recognised in the financial statements were
reasonable and the related disclosures in the financial
statements made by the management were adequate.
These procedures included, but not limited, to the
following:
•

Obtained an understanding of the modelling
techniques adopted by the Company including
how management calculated the expected credit
losses and appropriateness of the data on which
calculation is based;

•

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
the key controls over calculation of the expected
credit losses;

•

Obtained the reports of the management's
expert and assessed the expert's professional
competence, independence and objectivity in
developing the ECL model;

•

Tested the accuracy of inputs through substantive
procedures and assessing the reasonableness of
the assumptions used which included the following;
-

As modelling assumptions and parameters are
based on historical data, we assessed whether
historical experience was representative of
current circumstances and was relevant in view
of the recent impairment losses incurred within
the portfolios.

-

Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s
determination of significant increase in credit risk
in accordance with the applicable accounting
standard considering impact of COVID-19 and
the basis for classification of various exposures
into various stages. For a sample of exposures,
we also tested the appropriateness of the
Company’s categorization across various stages.
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Key audit matter
•

determining the criteria for significant increase in
credit risk

•

factoring in future economic assumptions

•

techniques used to determine probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at default.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

These parameters are derived from the Company’s
internally developed statistical models, historical data
and macro-economic factors.
We draw attention to note in the accompanying
financial
statements
which
describes
the
uncertainties due to the COVID-19 on the
allowance for expected credit losses on loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets as the same
is fundamental to the understanding of the users of
the financial statements.
Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements, the degree of management
judgement involved, this area required significant
auditor attention required to test such complex
judgements and estimates. Therefore, we have
identified this as a key audit matter for current year
audit.

-

Assessed the critical assumptions including
management’s assessment of the impact of
COVID-19 on these assumptions and input data
used in the estimation of expected credit loss
models for specific key credit risk parameters,
such as the transfer logic between stages,
probability of default (PD) or loss given default
(LGD);

-

Performed an assessment of the adequacy of
the credit losses expected within 12 months
by reference to credit losses actually incurred
on similar portfolios historically and developed
a point estimate by making reference to the
expected credit losses recognised by entities that
carry comparable financial assets;

• Tested the arithmetical calculation of the expected
credit losses;
• Verified the appropriateness and adequacy of the
related disclosures in note 44 to the accompanying
financial statements as per applicable accounting
standards; and
• Obtained written representations from management
and those charged with governance whether they
believe significant assumptions used in calculation
of expected credit losses are reasonable.

Use of information processing system for accounting and financial reporting

The Company relies upon information processing
systems for recording, processing, classifying and
presenting the large volume of transactions entered
into by the Company. The Company has put in place
IT General Controls and automated IT Controls to
ensure that the information produced by the Company
is reliable. Among other things, the management
also uses the information produced by the entity’s
information processing systems for accounting and
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

Our key audit procedures on this matter included, but
were not limited, to the following:
•

Obtained an understanding of the Company’s
information processing systems, IT General
Controls and automated IT controls for applications,
databases and operating systems relevant to our
audit;

•

Also, obtained an understanding of the changes
that were made to the identified IT applications
during the audit period;
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company’s accounting and financial reporting
processes are dependent on automated controls
enabled by IT systems which impacts key financial
accounting and reporting items such as loans,
interest income, impairment on loans amongst others.
The controls implemented by the Company in its
IT environment determine the integrity, accuracy,
completeness and validity of data that is processed
by the applications and is ultimately used for financial
reporting.

•

Tested IT general controls which include logical
access, changes management and aspects of IT
operational controls;

•

Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
certain automated controls and report logic for
system generated reports that were considered as
key internal controls over financial reporting mainly
for loans, interest income, impairment of loans;

•

Obtained written representations from management
and those charged with governance on whether IT
general controls and automated IT controls are
designed and were operating effectively during the
period covered by our audit.

Since our audit strategy included focus on entity’s
information processing systems relevant to our audit due
to their pervasive impact on the financial statements,
we have determined the use of information processing
system for accounting and financial reporting as a key
audit matter for the current year audit.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
6)

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
7)
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The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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8)

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9)

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
10)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

11)

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12)

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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13)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

14)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
15)

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of the
Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

16)

This report does not include a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of
the Act since in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Order is not
applicable.

17)

As required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;
c)

The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act;
e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2022 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in Annexure A wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
i)
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the Company, as detailed in note 36(a) to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;
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ii)

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022;
iv)
a.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
48(h) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note
48(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and
c.

v)

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.
The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2022.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership No.: 095256
UDIN: 22095256AJPEFV9774
Place: Noida
Date: 25 May 2022
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Cashpor Micro Credit on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Annexure A
Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
1)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Cashpor Micro Credit (‘the Company’) as at and
for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls
2)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
3)

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

4)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
6)

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements
7)

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
8)

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership No.: 095256
UDIN: 22095256AJPEFV9774
Place: Noida
Date: 25 May 2022
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Notes

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

ASSETS
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

3A
3B
4
5
6

4,896.04
1,141.49
15.03
22,673.24
243.19

4,947.95
1,026.44
34.75
18,092.26
351.14

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Current tax asset (net)
Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Others non-financial assets

7
8
9
10

16.78
53.91
52.43

25.94
57.21
0.12
43.21

29,092.11

24,579.02

0.21
52.44

0.39
24.35

12
13
14
15

124.98
24,072.48
100.03
453.01

1,746.82
18,624.90
199.84
501.38

16
17

59.63
30.88

239.82
23.92

18
19

53.90
4,144.55

53.90
3,163.70

29,092.11

24,579.02

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro small and medium enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small and
medium enterprises
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Subordinated liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

11

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are integral part of financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cashpor Micro Credit
CIN: U6591 0UP2002NPL027113

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 095256

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN: 02696656

Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice Chairperson
DIN: 00283980

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date:  25 May 2022

Banke Bihari Singh
Chief Finance Officer
Place: Noida
Date:  25 May 2022
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CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Statement of Income and Expenditure for year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Notes

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

3,904.20
1,356.29
32.93

3,087.60
1,170.16
0.72

5,293.42

4,258.48

176.13

9.21

5,469.55

4,267.69

2,010.42
96.28
1,727.30
23.24
633.04

1,658.76
57.34
1,520.42
18.56
  296.43

4,490.28

3,551.51

979.27

716.18

  1.58

(0.22)

1.58

(0.22)

980.85

715.96

181.68
181.68

132.87
132.87

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Interest income
Fees and commission income
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost
category

20
21
22

TOTAL REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Other income

23

Total income
EXPENSES
Finance costs
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefit expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense
Others expenses

24
25
26
27
28

TOTAL EXPENSES
Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to Income or Expenditure
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Earnings per share (equity share par value of INR 10 each)
Computed on the basis of total surplus for the year
Basic
Diluted

31

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are integral part of financial statements.
This is the Statement of Income and Expenditure referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cashpor Micro Credit
CIN: U6591 0UP2002NPL027113

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 095256

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN: 02696656

Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice Chairperson
DIN: 00283980

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date:  25 May 2022

Banke Bihari Singh
Chief Finance Officer
Place: Noida
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022
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CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

A.

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

979.27

716.18

23.24
3.37
(0.01)
(32.93)
(172.41)
(24.61)
96.28

18.56
4.03
0.01
(0.72)
4.72
(5.17)
57.34

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest on lease liability
(Gain)/loss on sale of property plant and equipment
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category
Provision written back
First loss default guarantee expense
Effective interest rate adjustment for financial instruments
Impairment on financial instruments including write-off

872.20

794.95

Movements in working capital:
Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) in loans
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assets
(Increase) in other financial assets
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables
(Decrease) / Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions

Operating surplus before working capital changes

19.72
(4,615.94)
(9.23)
(22.31)
27.92
(48.37)
6.97
(6.81)

30.77
(3,488.16)
0.78
(337.13)
(8.14)
38.69
(4.98)
12.43

Cash used in operations

(3,775.85)

(2,960.79)

Income taxes (paid)/refunds (net of refunds/payments)

9.17

103.64

(3,766.68)

(2,857.15)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

(19.89)
0.08

(10.49)
0.02

Net cash used in investing activities ( B )

(19.81)

(10.47)

18,300.00
(12,929.34)
(1,625.00)
(7.71)
(3.37)

13,095.00
(9,637.94)
1,750.00
(6.52)
(4.03)

3,734.58

5,196.51

(51.91)

2,328.89

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

4,947.95

2,619.06

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

4,896.04

4,947.95

Component of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 3A)
Balance with banks
on current accounts
on saving accounts
on deposit accounts
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

1,945.87
2,955.99
(7.09)

3,058.55
1,851.46
2.39
(7.19)

Cash on hand

4,894.77
1.27

4,905.21
42.74

4,896.04

4,947.95

Net cash used in operating activities ( A )
B.

C.

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
(Repayment)/Proceeds from debt securities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Net cash generated from financing activities ( C )
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C )

Notes to cash flow statement
1

2

Refer note 41 for reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are integral part of financial statements.
This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cashpor Micro Credit
CIN: U6591 0UP2002NPL027113

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 095256

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN: 02696656

Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice Chairperson
DIN: 00283980

Banke Bihari Singh
Chief Finance Officer

Place: Noida
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022
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CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

A

Equity share capital (refer note 18)
As at 31 March 2022
Balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting year

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting year

Changes in equity
share capital during the
current year

Balance at the end
of the current
reporting year

53.90

-

53.90

-

53.90

Balance at the beginning
of the previous
reporting year

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
previous reporting year

Changes in equity
share capital during the
previous year

Balance at the end
of the previous
reporting year

53.90

-

53.90

-

53.90

As at 31 March 2022

B

Other equity (refer note 19)
Reserves and surplus

Particulars

Retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Total

2,447.74

2,447.74

716.18

716.18

Other comprehensive income

(0.22)

(0.22)

Balance as at 31 March 2021

3,163.70

3,163.70

979.27

979.27

Other comprehensive income

1.58

1.58

Balance as at 31 March 2022

4,144.55

4,144.55

Surplus for the year

Surplus for the year

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information are integral part of financial statements.
This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cashpor Micro Credit
CIN: U6591 0UP2002NPL027113

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 095256

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN: 02696656

Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice Chairperson
DIN: 00283980

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date:  25 May 2022

Banke Bihari Singh
Chief Finance Officer
Place: Noida
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022
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3A

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
- On current accounts*
- On saving accounts*
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

1.27

42.74

1,945.87
2,955.99
(7.09)

3,058.55
1,851.46
2.39
(7.19)

Total

4,896.04

4,947.95

620.27
524.73
(3.51)

372.48
656.87
(2.91)

1,141.49

1,026.44

* includes INR 3950.00 (31 March 2021: INR 3650.00) received towards onward lending
3B

BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Deposits with remaining maturity less than 12 months *
Long term deposits with maturity of more than 12 months *
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss
Total

* Fixed deposits of INR 950.18 (31 March 2021: INR 864.13) are pledged with banks and financial institutions on account of borrowings and deposits
of INR 166.05 (31 March 2021: INR 139.82) are pledged with banks and financial institutions on account of First Loss Default guarantee (FLDG) of
business correspondent operations.
4

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Receivables considered good-unsecured
Receivables - Credit impaired
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

15.03
7.53
(7.53)

34.75
7.53
(7.53)

Total

15.03

34.75

Trade receivable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment
FY 2021-22

Not due

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than
3 years

Total

Considered Good

-

15.03

-

-

-

-

15.03

Credit impaired

-

  -

-

7.53

-

-

7.53

-

15.03

-

7.53

-

-

22.56

Not due

Less than
6 months

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed trade
receivable

Total trade receivable

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment
FY 2020-21

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

Undisputed trade receivable
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Considered Good

-

34.75

-

-

-

-

34.75

Credit impaired

-

7.53

-

-

-

-

7.53

Total trade receivable

-

42.28

-

-

-

-

42.28
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5

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

22,892.35

18,313.90

LOANS
At Amortized cost
(A) Term loans
(i) Portfolio loans
(ii) Loans to employees
Total (A) - Gross
Less: Impairment loss allowance

19.10

17.18

22,911.45

18,331.08

(238.21)

(238.82)

22,673.24

18,092.26

(i) Secured by tangible assets and intangible assets
(ii) Unsecured

22,911.45

18,331.08

Total (B) - Gross

22,911.45

18,331.08

Total (A) - Net
(B)

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (B) - Net

(238.21)

(238.82)

22,673.24

18,092.26

(C)
(i) Public Sector

-

-

(ii) Others

22,911.45

18,331.08

Total (C) - Gross

22,911.45

18,331.08

Less: Impairment loss allowance

(238.21)

(238.82)

22,673.24

18,092.26

(i) In India
(ii) Outside India

22,911.45
-

18,331.08
-

Total (D) - Gross

22,911.45

18,331.08

Total (C) - Net
(D)

Less: Impairment loss allowance
Total (D) - Net

6

(238.21)

(238.82)

22,673.24

18,092.26

4.76
52.07
31.46
10.03
195.01

  5.01
56.94
  0.13
25.52
  266.04

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits
Receivable for disbursement as business correspondent
EIS receivable
Advances recoverable in cash #
Unbilled revenue
Less : Allowance for Impairment loss

  (50.14)

(2.50)

243.19

351.14

Tax deducted at source receivable

16.78

25.94

Total

16.78

25.94

Total
# Includes recoverable from related parties of INR Nil (31 March 2021: 8.48)

7

CURRENT TAX ASSETS
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8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Computers
and related
assets*

Furniture and
fixtures**

Electrical
fittings*

Office
equipment*

Vehicles^

Right of use

21.72

68.53

23.08

9.87

-

52.87

176.07

3.82

2.52

1.82

2.33

-

-

10.49

-

-

0.04

-

-

-

0.04

25.54

71.05

24.86

12.20

-

52.87

186.52

Additions during the year

6.84

6.18

5.54

1.33

-

-

19.89

Deletion during the year

0.10

1.60

0.71

0.63

-

-

3.04

32.28

75.63

29.69

12.90

-

52.87

203.37

19.09

59.05

16.00

8.45

-

8.83

111.42

1.80

3.26

1.51

2.50

-

8.83

17.90

-

-

0.01

-

-

-

0.01

20.89

62.31

17.50

10.95

-

17.66

129.31

Additions during the year

2.75

7.14

2.89

1.51

-

8.83

23.12

Deletion during the year

0.10

1.59

0.66

0.62

-

-

2.97

23.54

67.86

19.73

11.84

-

26.49

149.46

Balance as at 31 March 2021

4.65

8.74

7.36

1.25

-

35.21

57.21

Balance as at 31 March 2022

8.74

7.77

9.96

1.06

-

26.38

53.91

Particulars

Total

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions during the year
Deletion during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at 31 March 2022
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions during the year
Deletion during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at 31 March 2022

Net block

* Includes assets acquired out of grants received and carried at nominal value, the original cost of acquisition of which is INR 10.28
(31 March 2021: INR 3.80)
^ Amount is below rounding off norms, adopted by the Company

82 |

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All Amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)

9

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Particulars

Computer software

Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2022

9.21
  9.21
  9.21

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 31 March 2020

8.43

Additions during the year

0.66

Balance as at 31 March 2021

9.09

Additions during the year

0.12

Balance as at 31 March 2022

9.21

Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2021

0.12

Balance as at 31 March 2022

-
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As at 31 March 2022
10

As at 31 March 2021

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Prepaid expenses

39.63

32.77

Superannuation fund*

12.80

10.44

Total

52.43

43.21

* Refer note 32 employees benefits for details
11

TRADE PAYABLES
(i) Total outstanding dues to micro small and medium enterprises*
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro small and medium enterprises

0.21

0.39

52.44

24.35

52.65

24.74

* Disclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 in respect of micro and small suppliers based on the
information available with the Company:
(a) The principal amount due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

0.21

0.39

(b) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

-

-

(c) The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act 2006, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

-

-

(d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under
the MSMED Act 2006 not paid)

-

-

(e) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year; and

-

-

(f) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

-

-

The Ministry of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and
Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its beneficiaries the 'entrepreneurs memorandum number' as allotted after filling of the
memorandum. Accordingly the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such enterprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial
statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further, in view of the management, the impact of interest if any that may
be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 is not expected to be material. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

Trade payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

As at 31 March 2022
Not due

1-2 years

2-3 years

more than 3 years

Total

Outstanding due to MSME

-

0.21

Others

-

52.03

0.12

0.23

0.06

52.45

Total trade payable

-

52.24

0.12

0.23

0.06

52.66

0.21

2-3 years

more than 3 years

Total

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

As at 31 March 2021
Not due
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Less than 1 year

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

Outstanding due to MSME

-

0.39

-

-

-

0.39

Others

-

23.65

0.35

0.35

-

24.35

Total trade payable

-

24.04

0.35

0.35

-

24.75
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12

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

124.98

1,746.82

124.98

1,746.82

124.98

1,746.82

DEBT SECURITIES (AT AMORTISED COST)
125 (31 March 2021: 1750) 10% Redeemable Non-convertible debentures of Rs. 1,000,000 each

Debt securities in India*
Debt securities outside India

Secured*
Unsecured

-

-

124.98

1,746.82

124.98

1,746.82

-

-

124.98

1,746.82

* Net of prepaid ancillary borrowing cost INR 0.02 (31 March 2021: INR 3.18)
Terms of Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures (NCD's)- Redeemable at par
As at 31 March 2022
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

NCD - Bank of Baroda

62.50

62.50

NCD - State Bank of India

62.48

62.50

124.98

125.00

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first
repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

10%

19 August 2021

Quarterly

19 May 2022

10%

19 August 2021

Quarterly

19 May 2022

Date of first
repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

Secured

Total

As at 31 March 2021
Nature of facility

Rate of
interest

Secured
NCD - Bank of Baroda

249.96

250.00

10%

19 August 2021

Quarterly

19 May 2022

NCD - State Bank of India

249.49

250.00

10%

19 August 2021

Quarterly

19 May 2022

NCD - Punjab National Bank

248.32

250.00

10%

29 September
2021

Quarterly

29 March 2022

NCD - Uco Bank

499.99

500.00

10%

29 March 2022

Bullet payment

29 March 2022

NCD - Union Bank of India

499.06

500.00

10%

29 March 2022

Bullet payment

29 March 2022

1,746.82

1,750.00

Total

All NCDs are secured against first pari passu charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables pertaining to micro credit loans as per the respective
agreements.
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13

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

20,243.97
3,796.79

15,545.75
3,039.71

31.72

39.44

Total

24,072.48

18,624.90

Borrowings in India *
Borrowings outside India *

23,930.42

18,276.44

110.34

309.02

Total

24,040.76

18,585.46

Secured *
Unsecured

24,040.76

18,585.46

-

-

Total

24,040.76

18,585.46

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
At Amortised cost
(a) Term loans
(i) from banks
(ii) from financial institutions
(b) Lease liability (refer note no. 39 for details)

* Net of prepaid ancillary borrowing cost INR 80.68 (31 March 2021: INR 65.26)
Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

As at 31 March 2022
Secured loan
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Term loan from financial
institution

110.34

110.38

10.50%

15 April 2022

Bullet
payment

15 April 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

36.55

36.64

10.50%

29 February 2020

Quarterly

28 February 2023

Term loan from financial
institution

89.85

90.24

10.25%

30 April 2021

Monthly

31 December 2023

Term loan from financial
institution

105.50

105.60

6.43%

10 February 2020

Monthly

10 June 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

713.95

718.75

5.25%

10 July 2021

Monthly

10 February 2024

Term loan from financial
institution

393.11

396.55

5.25%

10 October 2021

Monthly

10 February 2024

Term loan from financial
institution

300.52

300.70

11.00%

10 July 2020

Monthly

10 December 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

299.93

300.00

8.75%

10 December 2021

Monthly

10 September 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

1,499.41

1,500.00

8.75%

10 April 2022

Monthly

10 September 2024

Term loan from financial
institution

247.64

250.00

9.25%

15 May 2022

Monthly

15 April 2024
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Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Term loan from bank

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

374.40

375.00

Term loan from bank

996.15

1,000.00

Term loan from bank*

190.28

190.68

Term loan from bank

1,989.68

1,999.94

Term loan from bank

54.47

Term loan from bank
Term loan from bank

Rate of
interest
11.25%

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

22 March 2021

Quarterly

22 December 2022

9.75%

28 July 2022

Monthly

28 April 2024

9.65%

23 May 2020

Monthly

23 May 2023

8.75%

30 April 2022

Monthly

31 December 2024

54.50

10.40%

20 June 2020

Monthly

20 September 2022

272.18

272.71

9.75%

09 June 2021

Monthly

09 March 2023

385.15

386.28

9.60%

26 November 2021

Monthly

26 August 2023

Term loan from bank

646.45

650.00

9.40%

30 June 2022

Monthly

30 March 2024

Term loan from bank

210.68

211.13

10.80%

31 July 2020

Monthly

20 May 2023

Term loan from bank

249.49

250.00

9.80%

27 April 2021

Monthly

27 March 2023

Term loan from bank

18.11

18.12

9.80%

07 October 2020

Monthly

07 July 2022

Term loan from bank

27.18

27.21

9.80%

11 December 2020

Monthly

11 September 2022

Term loan from bank

830.01

833.15

9.25%

31 December 2021

Monthly

30 November 2023

Term loan from bank

766.75

769.90

9.20%

28 February 2022

Monthly

29 January 2024

Term loan from bank

159.20

160.00

9.30%

18 June 2022

Monthly

18 May 2024

Term loan from bank

142.67

142.86

9.80%

31 July 2021

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

15.90

15.91

10.90%

10 April 2020

Monthly

10 April 2022

Term loan from bank

603.83

604.55

10.30%

10 January 2021

Monthly

10 October 2022

Term loan from bank

374.30

375.00

10.25%

10 May 2021

Monthly

10 February 2023

Term loan from bank

244.96

245.45

10.25%

10 June 2021

Monthly

10 March 2023

Term loan from bank

363.40

363.75

9.75%

10 June 2021

Monthly

10 September 2022

Term loan from bank

1,040.92

1,043.18

9.75%

10 November 2021

Monthly

10 August 2023

Term loan from bank

448.75

450.00

9.75%

10 April 2022

Monthly

10 January 2024

Term loan from bank

473.55

474.55

9.00%

05 December 2021

Monthly

05 September 2023

Term loan from bank

453.40

454.55

9.00%

05 February 2022

Monthly

05 November 2023

Term loan from bank

399.85

400.91

9.00%

05 March 2022

Monthly

05 December 2023

Term loan from bank

203.87

204.30

10.30%

31 March 2021

Monthly

31 December 2022

Term loan from bank

373.21

374.99

9.25%

01 May 2022

Monthly

01 February 2024

Term loan from bank

373.21

374.99

9.25%

01 May 2022

Monthly

01 February 2024

Term loan from bank

248.69

250.00

9.25%

14 June 2022

Monthly

13 March 2024

Term loan from bank

248.69

250.00

9.25%

14 June 2022

Monthly

13 March 2024
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Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

Term loan from bank

309.10

309.40

10.60%

01 August 2021

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

497.79

500.00

9.30%

01 October 2022

Quarterly

30 March 2024

Term loan from bank

67.85

67.96

10.00%

01 May 2020

Monthly

24 December 2022

Term loan from bank

180.90

181.54

9.70%

31 July 2021

Monthly

21 March 2024

Term loan from bank

248.79

250.00

9.25%

03 June 2022

Monthly

03 May 2024

Term loan from bank

298.78

299.04

9.60%

31 October 2020

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

543.13

544.72

9.20%

31 July 2021

Monthly

31 March 2024

Term loan from bank

679.19

681.40

9.20%

31 January 2022

Monthly

30 September 2024

Term loan from bank

149.81

150.00

9.85%

28 March 2021

Quarterly

28 December 2022

Term loan from bank

74.68

74.93

9.80%

07 January 2021

Monthly

07 December 2022

Term loan from bank

124.55

124.91

10.15%

31 July 2021

Monthly

30 June 2023

Term loan from bank

299.69

300.00

9.50%

25 June 2022

Monthly

25 May 2024

Term loan from bank

238.40

238.64

10.25%

29 January 2021

Monthly

29 October 2022

Term loan from bank

408.37

409.09

9.75%

30 December 2021

Monthly

30 September 2023

Term loan from bank

476.26

477.27

9.75%

13 March 2022

Monthly

13 December 2023

Term loan from bank

497.28

500.00

9.30%

31 July 2022

Monthly

31 March 2024

Term loan from bank

142.12

142.12

10.95%

05 May 2021

Monthly

05 April 2023

Term loan from bank

331.97

333.61

9.80%

31 May 2021

Monthly

30 January 2024

Term loan from bank

451.92

454.34

9.35%

31 January 2022

Monthly

30 September 2024

Term loan from bank

297.85

300.00

9.25%

31 July 2022

Monthly

30 March 2025

Term loan from bank

248.85

250.00

10.50%

10 April 2022

Monthly

10 June 2024

Term loan from bank

248.65

250.00

9.05%

23 July 2022

Monthly

22 March 2025

248.63

250.00

9.30%

31 July 2022

Monthly

29 March 2025

24,040.75

24,121.43

Term loan from bank
Total

All secured term loans from banks and financial institutions are secured against first pari passu charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables
pertaining to micro credit loans and cash collateral as per the respective agreements.
Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

As at 31 March 2022
Secured loan
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Term loan from financial
institution

104.21

104.62

10.50%

28 January 2022

Bullet payment

28 January 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

109.83

110.38

10.50%

15 April 2022

Bullet payment

15 April 2022
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Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

Term loan from financial
institution

94.98

95.00

11.00%

17 July 2021

Bullet payment

17 July 2021

Term loan from financial
institution

24.94

24.98

11.00%

31 October 2018

Quarterly

31 October 2021

Term loan from financial
institution

72.99

73.31

10.50%

29 February 2020

Quarterly

28 February 2023

Term loan from financial
institution

134.13

135.00

10.25%

30 April 2021

Monthly

31 December 2023

Term loan from financial
institution

44.65

44.80

6.85%

10 January 2019

Monthly

10 September 2021

Term loan from financial
institution

515.67

518.40

6.43%

10 February 2020

Monthly

10 June 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

989.12

1,000.00

5.45%

10 July 2021

Monthly

10 February 2024

Term loan from financial
institution

699.31

700.29

11.00%

10 July 2020

Monthly

10 December 2022

Term loan from financial
institution

149.88

150.00

11.25%

10 April 2019

Monthly

09 September 2021

Term loan from financial
institution

100.00

100.00

6.38%

09 August 2020

Monthly

09 April 2021

Term loan from bank

523.11

524.35

11.40%

04 March 2020

Quarterly

04 March 2022

Term loan from bank

872.23

875.00

11.25%

22 March 2021

Quarterly

22 December 2022

Term loan from bank*

353.18

354.51

9.65%

23 May 2020

Monthly

23 May 2023

Term loan from bank

118.03

118.42

10.80%

13 October 2019

Monthly

13 March 2022

Term loan from bank

163.38

163.64

10.40%

20 June 2020

Monthly

20 September 2022

Term loan from bank

497.94

500.00

9.75%

09 June 2021

Monthly

09 March 2023

Term loan from bank

65.75

65.80

10.55%

15 December 2018

Monthly

15 July 2021

Term loan from bank

392.10

393.60

10.80%

31 July 2020

Monthly

20 May 2023

Term loan from bank

19.42

19.44

10.55%

31 August 2018

Monthly

31 October 2021

Term loan from bank

2.08

2.08

10.20%

24 May 2019

Monthly

24 April 2021

Term loan from bank

498.11

500.00

9.80%

27 April 2021

Monthly

27 March 2023

Term loan from bank

7.14

7.14

10.20%

12 October 2019

Monthly

12 June 2021

Term loan from bank

39.95

40.00

9.80%

07 October 2020

Monthly

07 July 2021

Term loan from bank

72.49

72.73

9.80%

07 October 2020

Monthly

07 July 2022
11 September 2022

Term loan from bank

81.52

81.82

9.80%

11 December 2020

Monthly

Term loan from bank

166.54

166.67

10.50%

22 February 2020

Monthly

21 October 2021

Term loan from bank

214.09

214.29

10.50%

16 April 2020

Monthly

15 December 2021

Term loan from bank

249.32

250.00

9.80%

31 July 2021

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

45.44

45.45

10.35%

10 May 2019

Monthly

10 May 2021

Term loan from bank

479.65

480.35

11.35%

10 November 2019

Monthly

10 November 2021

Term loan from bank

161.06

161.35

11.15%

10 January 2020

Monthly

10 January 2022

Term loan from bank

208.91

209.38

10.90%

10 April 2020

Monthly

10 April 2022

Term loan from bank

1,635.63

1,640.91

10.30%

10 January 2021

Monthly

10 October 2022
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Terms of borrowings
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of maturity

10 February 2023

Term loan from bank

747.02

750.00

10.25%

10 May 2021

Monthly

Term loan from bank

448.07

450.00

10.25%

10 June 2021

Monthly

10 March 2023

Term loan from bank

966.88

970.00

9.75%

10 June 2021

Monthly

10 September 2022

Term loan from bank

124.70

124.94

10.10%

31 December 2019

Quarterly

30 September 2021

Term loan from bank

124.71

124.96

10.10%

31 January 2020

Quarterly

31 January 2022

Term loan from bank

93.51

93.74

10.10%

24 March 2020

Quarterly

24 December 2021

Term loan from bank

475.06

477.23

10.30%

31 March 2021

Monthly

31 December 2022

Term loan from bank

285.41

285.71

11.40%

01 March 2020

Quarterly

25 August 2021

Term loan from bank

399.67

400.00

11.00%

01 August 2020

Quarterly

20 January 2022
16 March 2022

Term loan from bank

214.10

214.29

11.00%

01 October 2020

Quarterly

Term loan from bank

498.88

500.00

10.60%

01 August 2021

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

71.71

71.85

10.00%

01 May 2020

Monthly

24 December 2022

Term loan from bank

158.51

159.06

10.00%

01 August 2019

Monthly

26 March 2022

Term loan from bank

248.82

250.18

9.70%

31 July 2021

Monthly

21 March 2024

Term loan from bank

62.47

62.50

11.18%

18 September 2018

Monthly

18 August 2021

Term loan from bank

299.47

299.92

9.50%

31 October 2019

Monthly

31 August 2022

Term loan from bank

598.96

599.92

9.60%

31 October 2020

Monthly

31 March 2023

Term loan from bank

746.62

750.00

9.20%

31 July 2021

Monthly

31 March 2024

Term loan from bank

349.15

350.00

9.85%

28 March 2021

Quarterly

28 December 2022

Term loan from bank

173.63

175.00

9.80%

07 January 2021

Monthly

07 December 2022

Term loan from bank

198.90

200.00

10.15%

31 July 2021

Monthly

30 June 2023

Term loan from bank

646.14

647.73

10.50%

29 January 2021

Monthly

29 October 2022

Term loan from bank

250.00

250.00

10.95%

05 May 2021

Monthly

05 April 2023

496.29

499.99

10.30%

31 May 2021

Monthly

30 January 2024

18,585.46

18,650.73

Term loan from bank
Total

All secured term loans from banks and financial institutions are secured against first pari passu charge on the standard assets portfolio receivables
pertaining to micro credit loans and cash collateral as per the respective agreements.
*Guarantees given by Holding Company towards borrowing outstanding is INR 190.68 (31 March 2021: INR 354.51)

14

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Subordinated borrowings

100.03

199.84

Total

100.03

199.84

Subordinated liabilities in India

100.03

199.84

-

-

100.03

199.84

Subordinated liabilities
At Amortised cost

Subordinated liabilities outside India
Total
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Terms of subordinated liabilities
As at 31 March 2022
Nature of facility

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first
repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of
maturity

Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited

100.03

100.05

10%

28 February 2022

Quarterly

28 May 2022

Total

100.03

100.05

Amount
outstanding

Contractual
amount
outstanding

Rate of
interest

Date of first
repayment

Terms of
repayment

Date of
maturity

10%

28 February 2022

Quarterly

28 May 2022

Unsecured

As at 31 March 2021
Nature of facility

Unsecured

15

Dia Vikas Capital Private Limited

199.84

200.10

Total

199.84

200.10

Other financial liabilities
Interest accrued but not due on non convertible debentures
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposit
Employee payable

39.74

35.07

157.49

129.99

Payable towards assignment transactions

48.94

25.15

37.25

36.08
148.51

Amount held as a business correspondent

56.95

Financial aid payable to rural women beneficiaries

25.42

-

Other liabilities

31.35

64.54

453.01

501.38

11.09

10.50

Provisions
Provision for gratuity *

17

6.16
55.88

Client insurance payable

Total
16

1.37
54.50

Provision for compensated absences *

34.76

43.73

Provision on managed loan

13.78

185.59

Total

59.63

239.82

30.88

23.82

Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable
Others
Total

-

0.10

30.88

23.92
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18

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

150.00

150.00

150.00

150.00

5,390,000 (31 March 2021 : 5,390,000) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up

53.90

53.90

Total

53.90

53.90

Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares
15,000,000 (31 March 2021 : 15,000,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued subscribed and paid-up
Equity shares

a)

Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the remaining assets of the Company shall not be distributed to the holders of equity
shares. The remaining assets of the Company, after payment of all liabilities, shall be given or transferred to such other company or institution
having object similar to the objects of the Company to be determined by the members of the Company.

b)

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and end
of the year:
As at 31 March 2022

Opening balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
c)

As at 31 March 2021

Number of shares

Amount

Number of shares

Amount

5,390,000

53.90

5,390,000

53.90

-

-

-

-

5,390,000

53.90

5,390,000

53.90

Details of shares held by holding Company and/or their
subsidiaries
As at 31 March 2022
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up, held by:
Cashpor Financial and Technical Services Private Limited Holding Company

d)

As at 31 March 2021

Number of shares

Percentage

Number of shares

Percentage

5,389,993

99.99%

5,389,993

99.99%

Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares:
As at 31 March 2022
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up, held by:
Cashpor Financial and Technical Services Private Limited Holding Company

As at 31 March 2021

Number of shares

Percentage

Number of shares

Percentage

5,389,993

99.99%

5,389,993

99.99%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
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e)

Details of promoter holding more than 5% equity shares:
As at 31 March 2022
Name of the promoter
Cashpor Financial and Technical
Services Private Limited

f)

As at 31 March 2021

Percentage
Change

Number of shares

Percentage

Number of shares

Percentage

5,389,993

99.99%

5,389,993

99.99%

-

Details of shares issued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully paid up by the way of bonus issues and
bought back during the last 5 years for each class of shares The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash nor allotted as fully paid up by the way
of bonus shares and there has not been any buy back of shares in the current period and the immediately preceding four years.

19

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Retained earnings

4,144.55

3,163.70

Total

4,144.55

3,163.70

Other equity

Nature and purpose of other reserve :
Retained earnings
The said amount represents accumulated surplus of the surplus earned by the Company

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans represents the following as per Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits:
(a) actuarial gains and losses
(b) the return on plan assets excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and
(c) any change in the effect of the asset ceiling excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
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20

Interest on term deposits with banks
Interest on saving bank accounts
Other interest income

23

49.21

211.32

128.16
2.24
3,087.60

Income from business correspondence operations

1,356.29

1,170.16

Total

1,356.29

1,170.16

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments

32.93

0.72

Total

32.93

0.72

Fees and commission income

Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost category

Other income
Interest on income tax refund
Miscellaneous income

1.88

7.19

172.41

-

1.84

2.02

176.13

9.21

157.72

82.50

1,823.85

1,547.36

19.29

20.23

Interest on lease liability

3.37

4.03

Other finance costs

6.19

4.64

2,010.42

1,658.76

Total
Finance costs (On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)
Interest on debt securities
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities
Interest on subordinated liabilities

Total
25

2,907.99

52.53

3,904.20

Provision written back

24

3,639.22

1.13

Total

22

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Interest income
Interest income on micro credits to rural poor women

21

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Impairment on financial instruments
(On financial instruments measured at amortised cost)
Portfolio loans
Portfolio loans written-off
Trade receivable
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-

43.68

48.15

-

-

7.51

Other financial assets

48.13

6.15

Total

96.28

57.34
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26

1,560.99

1,373.07

Contribution to provident and other funds

92.81

79.58

Staff welfare expenses

73.50

67.77

1,727.30

1,520.42

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

23.12

17.90

Amortisation of intangible assets

  0.12

  0.66

Total

23.24

18.56

Total

28

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Employee benefit expenses
Salaries wages and bonus

27

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses
Corporate social responsibility expense
- Skill development program expense

  6.48

-

- Health program expense*

54.11

51.92

- Education program expense**

58.79

16.31

Postage and telephone

  4.18

  3.46

Printing and stationery

22.46

13.68

Water and electricity

  7.10

  6.08

Lease rental

24.35

21.99

-

  4.72

Legal and professional charges

32.34

33.43

Auditors remuneration (refer note 29)

  4.78

  4.14

First loss default guarantee expense

Rates and taxes

  1.45

  1.38

128.29

103.36

Repairs and maintenance

  9.05

  9.75

Insurance

  3.00

  2.56

Staff recruitment and training

  8.25

  6.56

-

  0.01

  1.32

  1.20

237.34

-

Bank charges

24.26

12.55

Miscellaneous expenses

  5.49

  3.33

633.04

296.43

Travelling expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Director sitting fees
Financial aid to rural women

Total

* The amount is net of voluntary contribution received amounting to Rs. 6.81 (31 March 2021: Nil)
** The amount is net of voluntary contribution received amounting to Rs. 10.28 (31 March 2021: Rs. 5.15)
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29

30

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Statutory audit and limited review fees

3.80

3.80

Certificates issued in the capacity of statutory auditors

0.47

0.10

Reimbursement of expenses

0.12

0.08

Total

4.39

3.98

10.71

8.06

(b) amount of expenditure incurred *

6.96

8.06

(c) shortfall at the end of the year

3.75

-

-

-

On going project

-

Awareness campaign on
COVID19 vaccination and
skill development programs

Public health and
education services

(g) details of related party transactions

2.73

-

(h) provision is made for contractual obligation

3.75

-

Payment to Auditors (excluding Goods and Service Tax)

Corporate social responsibilities (CSR)
(a) amount required to be spent by the company during the year

(d) total of previous years shortfall
(e) reason for shortfall

(f) nature of CSR activities

*The amount spent above is exclusive of the expenditure incurred by the Company on health and education initiatives
31

Earning per share (EPS)
Net surplus for the year for basic and diluted EPS

979.27

716.18

10.00

10.00

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share

5.39

5.39

Weighted average number of equity shares used to compute diluted earnings per
share

5.39

5.39

Basic earning per share (INR)

181.68

132.87

Diluted earning per share (INR)

181.68

132.87

Nominal value of equity share (INR)
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32

Employee benefits
The Company operates the following post-employment plans -

i.

Defined contribution plan
The Company makes monthly specified contribution towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which is
a defined contribution plan. The Company has no obligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are charged to the
Statement of Income and Expenditure as they accrue. The amount recognised as expense towards such contribution are as follows:

Contribution to Provident Fund*

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

81.85

70.09

Contribution to Employee State Insurance

6.91

6.93

Contribution to Employee Deposit Linked Insurance

4.05

2.56

92.81

79.58

* Contribution to provident fund is netted off with amount of INR 2.32 received under the scheme "Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana" for the
year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 7.68).

ii.
A.

Defined benefit plan
Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. This plan entitles an employee who has
rendered at least five years of continuous service to gratuity at the rate of fifteen days wages for every completed year of service or part thereof in
excess of six months (No Maximum Limit) based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee concerned. The scheme is covered under a scheme
administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India. This defined benefit plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as longevity risk currency
risk interest rate risk and market (investment) risk.
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March
2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected
Unit Credit Method.
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

As at 31 March 2022
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net defined benefit liability / (assets)
Amount recognized in the statement of income and expenditure is as under:

As at 31 March 2021

321.80

273.67

(310.71)

(263.17)

11.09

10.50

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Current service cost

38.80

33.94

Net interest cost

(0.61)

(2.30)

Expenses recognized in the statement of income and expenditure

38.19

31.64

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

0.62

1.25

0.62

1.25

Amount recognized in the other comprehensive income:
Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized during the year
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(a)

Funding
The scheme is fully funded with insurance companies. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s actuarial measurement framework set
out in the funding policies of the plan. Employees do not contribute to the plan.
Expected contributions to gratuity plan for the year ending 31 March 2023 is INR 11.09.

(b)

Reconciliation of the net defined
benefit (asset) / liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its components:
As at 31 March 2022
Defined benefit
obligation
Balance at the beginning of the
year

273.67

Fair value of
plan assets

As at 31 March 2021
Net defined
benefit (asset)/
liability

263.17

Defined benefit
obligation

10.50

229.04

Fair value of
plan assets

Net defined
benefit (asset)/
liability

245.74

(16.70)

Included in income or
expenditure
Current service cost

38.80

-

38.80

33.94

-

33.94

Interest cost/ (income)

18.18

18.79

(0.61)

15.11

17.41

(2.30)

56.98

18.79

38.19

49.05

17.41

31.64

(14.12)

-

(14.12)

-

-

-

12.91

-

12.91

(0.78)

-

(0.78)

-

(1.83)

1.83

-

(2.03)

2.03

(1.21)

(1.83)

0.62

(0.78)

(2.03)

1.25

-

38.22

(38.22)

-

5.69

(5.69)

(7.64)

(7.64)

-

(3.64)

(3.64)

-

(7.64)

30.58

(38.22)

(3.64)

2.05

(5.69)

321.80

310.71

11.09

273.66

263.17

10.50

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

100%

100%

Included in Other comprehensive
income
Remeasurements loss /(gain)
- financial assumptions
- experience adjustment
- on plan assets
Other
Contributions paid by the
employer
Benefits paid

Balance at the end of the year
(c)

Plan assets
Investment with Insurance
Company

On an annual basis an asset-liability matching study is done by the Company whereby the Company contributes the net increase in the actuarial liability
to the plan manager (insurer) in order to manage the liability risk.
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(d)

Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Discount rate

7.25% p.a

6.85% p.a

Future salary growth

8.00% p.a

8.00% p.a

10.00% p.a at younger ages
reducing to 1.00% p.a at older ages

10.00% p.a at younger ages
reducing to 1.00% p.a at older ages

Withdrawal rate:
Retirement Age (in year)

60 & 80

60 & 80

7.25% p.a

6.85% p.a

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

Expected rate of return on plan assets
Mortality

(e)

Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions
The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption holding other assumptions constant showing how the defined
benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Impact on defined benefit
obligation

Increase
Discount rate (0.50% movement)
Future salary growth (0.50% movement)

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

(16.31)

17.81

(14.79)

16.20

11.72

(11.61)

10.94

(10.68)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
(f)

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
For the year ended 31 March 2022

For the year ended 31 March 2021

1 year

22.54

16.52

Between 2-5 years

84.48

70.66

Between 6-10 years

120.56

81.49

Total

227.58

168.67

As at 31 March 2022 the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 11.84 years (31 March 2021: 12.05 years).
(g)

Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow Salary increases : Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.
Investment risk : If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.
Discount rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality and disability : Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Withdrawals : Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact Plan’s liability.
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B.

Superannuation fund
Superannuation scheme is formed for providing pension benefits as described in the superannuation scheme. This policy covers Chairman of the
Company and is preserved with an insurance Company for providing pension benefit.
The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for superannuation were carried out as at 31
March 2022. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect the following table sets out the status of the superannuation plan and the amounts recognised in
the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Present value of obligation

20.35

20.59

Fair value of plan assets

33.15

31.03

(12.80)

(10.44)

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

0.60

20.59

Net defined benefit (assets)
Amount recognized in the statement of income and expenditure is as under:

Current service cost
Net interest cost

(0.76)

-

Expenses recognized in the statement of income and expenditure

(0.16)

20.59

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

For the year
ended
31 March 2021

(2.20)

(1.03)

(2.20)

(1.03)

Amount recognized in the other comprehensive income:

Actuarial gain/(loss) recognized
during the year

(a)

Funding
The scheme is fully funded with an insurance company. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s actuarial measurement framework set
out in the funding policies of the plan. Employees do not contribute to the plan.
Expected contributions to superannuation fund plan for the year ending 31 March 2023 is INR 1.13.
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(b)

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) / liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Defined benefit
obligation

Fair value of
plan assets

Net defined
benefit
(asset)/ liability

Defined benefit
obligation

Fair value of
plan assets

Net defined
benefit
(asset)/ liability

20.59

31.03

(10.44)

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at the beginning of the year
Included in income or expenditure
Current service cost

0.60

-

0.60

20.59

Interest cost (income)

1.36

2.11

(0.76)

-

20.59

22.55

33.14

(10.60)

20.59

-

20.59

-

Included in Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements loss (gain)
- financial assumptions

(0.26)

-

(0.26)

-

-

-

- experience adjustment

(1.93)

-

(1.93)

-

-

-

-

0.01

(0.01)

-

1.03

(1.03)

(2.19)

0.01

(2.20)

-

1.03

(1.03)

-

-

-

-

30.00

(30.00)

-

-

-

-

30.00

(30.00)

20.36

33.15

(12.80)

20.59

31.03

(10.44)

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

100%

100%

- on plan assets

Other
Contributions paid by the
employer

Balance at the end of the year

(c)

Plan assets

Investment with insurance company

Due to the restrictions in the type of investments that can be held by the fund, it may not be possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability matching strategy
to manage risk.
(d)

Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Discount rate

7.25% p.a

6.85% p.a

Future salary growth

0.00% p.a

0.00% p.a

10.00% p.a at younger ages
reducing to 1.00% p.a at older ages

10.00% p.a at younger ages
reducing to 1.00% p.a at older ages

Withdrawal rate:
Retirement Age (in year)
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Mortality

80

80

7.25% p.a

6.85% p.a

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14)

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
(2012-14)
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(e)

Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions
The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relevant actuarial assumption holding other assumptions constant showing how the defined
benefit obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possible at the reporting date.

Discount rate (0.50% movement)
Future salary growth (0.50% movement)

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

(0.32)

0.33

(0.40)

0.40

0.35

(0.34)

0.43

(0.42)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan it does provide an approximation of the
sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

(f)

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years
For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1 year

1.68

1.55

Between 2-5 years

23.56

25.03

Between 6-10 years
Total

-

-

25.23

26.58

As at 31 March 2022 the weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 2.83 years (As at March 2021: 3.68 years)

(g)

Description of risk exposures
Valuations are based on certain assumptions which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow Salary increases : Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also
increase the liability.
Investment risk : If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.
Discount rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.
Mortality and disability : Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Withdrawals : Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can
impact Plan’s liability.

iii

Compensated absences
The Company provides compensated absences benefits to the employees of the Company which can be carried forward to future years. Amount
recognised in the Statement of income and expenditure for compensated absences is as underParticulars
Amount recognised in statement of income and expenditure
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33

Related party disclosure

A.

Name of related parties (as per Ind AS 24)
Entities exercising control over the Company

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Cashpor Trust

Ultimate Holding Entity

Cashpor Financial and Technical
Services Private Limited

Holding Company

David Sprague Gibbons

Chairman

Mukul Jaiswal

Managing Director

Bahram Navroz Vakil

Director

Abhijit Sen

Director

Saneesh Singh

Director

Rajiv Kumar

Director

Moumita Sen Sharma

Director

Sudarshan Sen

Director

Sanjeev Anand

Director

Banke Bihari Singh

Chief Finance Officer

Aayushya Foundation
Entity in which KMP is interested

Kaleidofin Private Limited
Kings Learning Private Limited

i.

Summary of related party transactions:
Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Short-term employee benefits

For the year ended
31 March 2021

11.00

11.31

Sitting fees

0.04

0.04

Post-employment defined benefit plan

1.45

35.78

106.28

93.87

Sitting fees

0.19

0.17

Other long term benefits

0.48

0.48

Post-employment defined benefit plan

1.63

(0.41)

Repayment of loan

1.68

1.68

Bahram Navroz Vakil

0.25

0.20

Abhijit Sen

0.31

0.25

Saneesh Singh

0.15

0.11

David Sprague Gibbons

Short-term employee benefits

Mukul Jaiswal

Rajiv Kumar

Sitting fees

0.07

0.11

Moumita Sen Sharma

0.10

0.08

Sudarshan Sen

0.22

0.24
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Banke Bihari Singh

Aayushya Foundation

CASHPOR Trust

Kaleidofin Private Limited

Kings Learning Private Limited

ii.

Short term employee benefit

2.16

2.19

Public health wellness activities

2.26

8.66

-

8.48

Grant towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) activities

2.73

  -

Income from Micro Saving scheme
for rural women

0.39

0.14

Payment for Credit analytic services

1.45

1.39

Payment for Staff training

0.31

0.50

Advance for public health wellness
activities

The amount receivable from / (payable to) related parties:
Name of the related party

Nature of transaction

CASHPOR Financial and Technical Services
Private Limited

Guarantee given

Aayushya Foundation

Advance for public health wellness
activities

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

190.68

354.51

-

8.48

10.52

11.27

0.48

0.48

Post-employment defined benefit plan

11.71

10.09

David Sprague Gibbons

Post-employment defined benefit plan

39.24

37.78

Kings Learning Private Limited

Staff training

-

0.23

Loan outstanding Housing Loan*
Mukul Jaiswal

Other long term benefits

Notes:
			
All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis and at normal commercial terms.
* Loan provided to Managing Director of the Company is at discounted rate, and the amount is discounted to give effect of market rate of
interest.
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34

Operating segments
The Board of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segments.” The Company's operating segments are established in the manner consistent with the components of the Company that are
evaluated regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker as defined in 'Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments.' The Company is engaged
primarily in the operation of financing and there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

a.

Information about operation segment:
The Company deals in only one product i.e. granted loans to beneficiaries. Hence no separate disclosure is required.

b.

Information about geographical areas:
The entire revenue of the Company are made to beneficiaries which are domiciled in India. Also all the non-current assets of the Company
are located in India. The Company is engaged in the operation within India. The conditions prevailing in India being uniform no separate
geographical disclosure is considered necessary.

c.

Information about major beneficiaries (from external beneficiaries):
The Company earns revenues for more than 10 per cent from a single customer amounting to INR 958.09 (31 March 2021: INR 868.52).

35

Revenue from contracts with beneficiaries
For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Income from business correspondence services (over a period of time)

1,356.29

1,170.16

Total

1,356.29

1,170.16

1,356.29

1,170.16

-  

-  

1,356.29

1,170.16

Trade receivables (refer note 4)

  15.03

  34.75

Unbilled revenue (refer note 6)

195.01

266.04

210.04

300.78

Geographical markets
India
Outside India
Total
Contract balances
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36

Contingent Liabilities commitments and contingent assets

a.

Contingent liabilities
On managed portfolio as bank’s Business Correspondent (net)

As at 31 March 2022
Name of the bank

Portfolio
outstanding

FLDG (%) #

Contingent liability

IndusInd bank*

  10,669.89

6.00%

660.00

ICICI Bank^

2,678.01

6.00%

160.68

ICICI Bank^

50.00

10.00%

5.00

1,323.53

6.00%

  79.41

995.96

6.00%

  59.76

2,482.68

5.00%

124.13

Kotak Mahindra Bank^
SIDBI^
IDBI Bank^
Total

18,200.07

1,088.98

Less : Provision recognised on managed loan

(13.78)

Less: Amount pledged as fixed deposits

  (166.05)

Contingent liability

909.15

Contingent liability is calculated as a % of: *: total sanctioned limit INR 11,000.00; ^: portfolio outstanding
#: FLDG stands for First Loss Default Guarantee
As at 31 March 2021
Name of the bank

Portfolio
outstanding

FLDG (%) #

Contingent liability

IndusInd bank*

  10,537.15

6.00%

660.00

ICICI Bank^

780.69

6.00%

46.84

ICICI Bank^

50.00

10.00%

5.00

Kotak Mahindra Bank^

676.00

6.00%

40.56

SIDBI^

249.73

6.00%

14.98

2,248.34

5.00%

112.42

IDBI Bank^
Total
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Less : Provision recognised on managed loan

  (181.77)

Less: Amount pledged as fixed deposits

  (139.82)

Contingent liability

558.21

Contingent liability is calculated as a % of: *: total sanctioned limit INR 11,000.00; ^: portfolio outstanding
#: FLDG stands for First Loss Default Guarantee
(i) In addition to those mentioned above, the Company is subjected to a litigation, which has arisen due to the order of a District
Collector in Chhattisgarh with respect to the operations of the Company and the same has been challenged by the Company by way of
writ petition in the Honorable Chhattisgarh High Court. The management has assessed that this litigation is not likely to have a material
effect on the financial statements of the Company.
(ii) The Company has identified instances of cash embezzlements in certain branches, wherein the Company has recovered major amounts
and there is no material balance left to be recovered with respect to the said cases. These cases are not pending in any forum.
(iii) The Company has made an exemption application under section 17(2-a) of the Provident Fund Act, 1952 in 2014. The final order
is yet to be passed by the Provident Fund Authority. In the assessment of the management, the chances of the Company being required
to pay dues to Provident Fund Authority are remote. The management expects that the net demand, if any, would not be material to
financial statements.
b.

Commitments
There are no commitments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

c.

Contingent assets
There are no contingent assets as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.

d.

The Company has reviewed all litigations having an impact on the financial position where applicable has adequately provided for where
provision are required. As on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 the Company does not have any material litigation pending with
Income tax authorities Goods and service authorities and other statutory authorities in the ordinary course of business requiring any
provision to be provided in books of accounts.

37

Grant
The Company received grants from non-government entities for for disbursing the microfinance loans in specified areas. These grants are
treated as income grants and recognised to Statement of Income and Expenditure on receipt basis.
Grants are received with a lock-in period of 2-3 years INR 42.86 as on 31 March 2022 (INR 78.31 as on 31 March 2021) grants is
related to lock-in period, which is to be used for specified purpose.

38

Impact of COVID-19
COVID-19, a global pandemic has affected the world economy including India, leading to significant decline and volatility in financial
markets, decline in economic activities and changes in beneficiaries behavior which may persist. The Company’s operation is expected to
be impacted by lower lending opportunities and uncertainties associated with the historical collection efficiencies experienced. As at 31
March 2022, expected credit losses on financial assets have been recognized based on the information available including the forecasts
related to economic conditions. The Management has used prudent judgements and has considered the possible effects of the known
events arising out of COVID-19 pandemic in the estimation of expected credit losses on its financial assets.
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39

Leases
The Company has taken corporate office under leases which qualifies for lease accounting. The leases typically run for a period of 10 years.
Lease payments has annual escalations. It has availed exemption on the branch lease on the plea of short-term lease arrangements.
Following are the changes in the carrying values of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
Particulars
Balance as at 31 March 2020

31 March 2022
44.04

Additions during the year

  -

Depreciation for the year

(8.83)

Balance as at 31 March 2021

35.21

Additions during the period

-

Depreciation for the period

(8.83)

Balance as at 31 March 2022

26.38

The aggregate depreciation expense on Right of use of assets is included under
depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Income and Expenditure.
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:
Particulars
Balance as at 31 March 2020
Additions
Interest on lease liability
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as at 31 March 2021
Additions
Interest on lease liability
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance as at 31 March 2022
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The average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 is 9.35%
The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.
2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-to-use of assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date
of initial application.
3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-to-use assets at the date of initial application.
4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly Ind AS 116 is applied only to
contracts that were previously identified as leases under AS 17.
Lease payments made under cancellable and short term lease amounting to INR 24.35 disclosed as lease rental and the same have been
recognized as an expense in the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2022 and INR 21.99 for the year ended
31 March 2021.
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 on an
undiscounted basis:
Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Less than one year

11.61

11.07

One to five years

26.63

35.15

-

3.09

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

8.83

8.83

Interest expense on lease liabilities

3.37

4.03

Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses)

24.35

21.99

Total amount recognised in Statement of Income and Expenditure

36.55

34.85

More than five years

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of income and expenditure:
Particulars
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40

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. With
regard to loans and advances to borrowers the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavior as used for estimating the EIR.
Issued debt reflect the contractual coupon amortisations.

As at 31 March 2022
Particulars

Within 12
months

After 12
months

As at 31 March 2021
Total

Within 12
months

After 12
months

Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

4,896.04

-

4,896.04

4,947.95

-

4,947.95

618.37

523.12

1,141.49

371.43

655.01

1,026.44

15.03

-

15.03

34.75

-

34.75

17,698.80

4,974.44

22,673.24

13,851.67

4,240.59

18,092.26

237.00

6.19

243.19

344.27

6.87

351.14

Current tax assets (net)

-

16.78

16.78

-

25.94

25.94

Property, plant and equipment

-

53.91

53.91

-

57.21

57.21

Intangible assets

-

-

-

-

0.12

0.12

35.19

17.24

52.43

27.13

16.08

43.21

23,500.43

5,591.68

29,092.11

19,577.20

5,001.82

24,579.02

0.21

-

0.21

0.39

-

0.39

52.44

-

52.44

24.35

-

24.35

124.98

-

124.98

-

1,746.82

1,746.82

14,349.23

9,723.25

24,072.48

11,428.05

7,196.85

18,624.90

Subordinated liabilities

100.03

-

100.03

99.92

99.92

199.84

Other financial liabilities

413.27

39.74

453.01

466.31

35.07

501.38

Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents
Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Non-financial assets

Other non financial assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises
Debt securities
Borrowings (other than debt securities)

-
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Non-financial liabilities

-

Provisions

49.89

9.74

59.63

239.82

-

239.82

Other non-financial liabilities

30.88

-

30.88

23.92

-

23.92

15,120.93

9,772.73

24,893.66

12,282.76

9,078.66

21,361.42

8,379.50

(4,181.05)

4,198.45

7,294.44

(4,076.84)

3,217.60

Total liabilities

Net assets

41

-

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities can be classified as follows:
Particulars

Debt
securities

Borrowings
(other
than debt
securities)

Subordinated
liabilities

Lease
liabilities

Total

-

15,137.42

199.62

45.96

15,383.00

31 March 2020
Cash flows:
Repayment

1,750.00

(9,637.94)

-

(10.55)

(7,898.49)

-

13,095.00

-

-

13,095.00

0.22

4.03

(7.95)

199.84

39.44

20,571.56

Additions
Non cash:
Others
31 March 2021

(3.18)
1,746.82

(9.02)
18,585.46

Cash flows:
Repayment
Additions

(1,625.00)

(12,829.29)

(100.05)

(11.09)

-

18,300.00

-

-

(14,565.43)
18,300.00

Non cash:
Others
31 March 2022

3.16

(15.41)

0.24

3.37

(8.64)

124.98

24,040.76

100.03

31.72

24,297.49
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Financial instruments - fair value and risk management

A.

Financial instruments by category
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Amortised cost
Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

4,896.04

4,947.95

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

1,141.49

1,026.44

Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

15.03

34.75

22,673.24

18,092.26

243.19

351.14

28,968.99

24,452.54

52.65

24.74

Financial liabilities:
Trade payables
Debt securities

126.35

1,752.97

24,126.98

18,680.78

Subordinated liabilities

100.03

199.84

Other financial liabilities

397.14

439.34

24,803.15

21,097.67

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

B.

Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining the fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Carrying value

Fair value

Carrying value

Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

4,896.04

4,896.04

4,947.95

4,947.95

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

1,141.49

1,141.49

1,026.44

1,026.44

15.03

15.03

34.75

34.75

22,673.24

22,673.24

18,092.26

18,092.26

243.19

  243.19

351.14

351.14

28,968.99

28,968.99

24,452.54

24,452.54

Financial assets:

Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

Financial liabilities:
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Trade payables

52.65

52.65

24.74

24.74

Debt securities

126.35

  126.35

1,752.97

1,752.97
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Borrowings (other than debt securities)

C.

24,126.98

24,126.98

18,680.78

18,680.78

Subordinated liabilities

100.03

  100.03

199.84

199.84

Other financial liabilities

397.14

  397.14

439.34

439.34

24,803.15

24,803.15

21,097.67

21,097.67

Valuation framework
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use
of observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets for substantially the full
term of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, then the
instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments is included in level 3. That is, Level 3 inputs
incorporate market participants’ assumptions about the risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that risk. The Company
develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.
Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and
benchmark interest rates credit spreads and other premium used in estimating discount rates and expected price volatilities and correlations.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value measurement that reflects the price that would be received to sell the asset or that would
be paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair values of loans, advances and borrowings are estimated by discounted cash flow models that incorporate assumptions for credit risks probability
of default and loss given default estimates. The Company uses historical experience and other information used in its collective impairment models. The
credit risk is applied as a top-side adjustment based on the collective impairment model incorporating probability of defaults and loss given defaults.
There has been no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021.
Financial instruments valued at carrying value
The respective carrying values of certain on-balance sheet financial instruments approximated their fair value. These financial instruments include cash
in hand balances with other banks trade receivables, trade payables and certain other financial assets and liabilities. Carrying values were assumed to
approximate the fair values for these financial instruments as they are short-term in nature and their recorded amounts approximate the fair values or are
receivable or payable on demand.

43

Transfers of financial assets
Direct assignment transactions:
During the year ended 31 March 2022 the Company has sold some loans and advances as per assignment deals as a source of finance. As per the terms of
deal since the derecognition criteria as per IND AS 109 including transaction of substantially all the risks and rewards relating to assets being transferred
to the buyer being met the assets have been derecognized.
The management has evaluated the impact of the assignment transactions done during the year for its operation model. Based on the future operational
plan, the Company's operation model remains to  hold the assets for collecting contractual cash flows.
The table below summarizes the carrying amount of the derecognized financial assets and the gain/(loss) on the derecognition per type of asset:

Assignment

Carrying amount
of derecognized
financial assets

Gain/(loss) from
derecognition

As at 31 March 2022

31.46

32.93

As at 31 March 2021

  0.13

0.72

Since the Company transferred the above financial asset in a transfer that qualified for derecognition in its entirely, therefore the whole of the interest
spread (over the expected life of the asset) is recognized on the date of derecognition itself as excess interest spread and correspondingly recognised as
income on derecognition of financial asset.
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Financial risk management
Risk is an integral part of the Company's operation and sound risk management is critical to success. As a financial intermediary, the
Company is exposed to risks that are particular to its lending and the environment within which it operates which primarily includes credit
liquidity and market risks. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities.
The risk management policy is approved by the board of directors.
The Company has identified and implemented comprehensive policies and procedure to assess, monitor and manage risk through-out the
Company.The risk management process is continuously reviewed, improved and adopted in the context of changing risk scenario and the
agility of the risk management process is monitored and reviewed for its appropriateness in the changing risk landscape.
The Company has an elaborate process for risk management.The major risks identified by the operations and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

A.

Risk management framework
The Company’s board of directors has an overall responsibility for establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework.The board of directors has established the risk management committee which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.
Efficient and timely management of risks involved in the Company's activities is critical for the financial soundness and sustainability of the
Company. Risk management involves identifying measuring monitoring and managing of risks on a regular basis. For this, the Company
employs leading risk management practices and recruits skilled and experienced people.
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company through its training and management standards and procedures
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Company’s risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies
and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit
committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

B.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks, trade receivables, financial institutions and any
other financial assets.
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks trade receivables, loans and advances.
The Company is a rural focused MFI and offers loans under the joint liability group model exclusively to women from below poverty line
households in Rural Areas. Further as the Company focus on providing micro-loans in rural areas, the results of operations are affected
by the performance and the future growth potential of microfinance in rural India. The Company's rural loan beneficiaries typically have
limited sources of income savings and credit histories and our loans are typically provided free of collateral. Such rural loan beneficiaries
generally do not have a high level of financial resilience and as a result they can be adversely affected by declining economic conditions and
natural calamities.
The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each borrower. A financial asset is ‘creditimpaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
• significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
• a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
(a) Probability of default (PD)
PD describes the probability of a loan to eventually falling into stage 3. PD percentage is calculated for entire loan portfolio and is
determined by using available historical observations.
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(b) Exposure at default (EAD)
The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount for every year (in addition to the interest to be earned during the next
one year) of the financial instruments subject to impairment calculation, addressing both the loan beneficiaries ability to increase its exposure
while approaching default and potential early repayments too.
(c) Loss given default (LGD)
Loss given default (LGD) represents the estimated financial loss the Company is likely to suffer in the event of default and it is used to
calculate provision requirement on EAD along with probability of default.
(d) Significant increase in credit risk
The Company continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments
is subject to 12 months ECL or life time ECL, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 14 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to
have increased significantly since initial recognition.
(e) Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
The Company measures the amount of ECL on a financial instrument in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount.
The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts the same for current observable data. The key inputs into the measurement
of ECL are the probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. These parameters are derived from the Company’s
internally developed statistical model and other historical data. In addition the Company uses reasonable and supportable information on
future economic conditions including macroeconomic factors such as interest rates, gross domestic product inflation and expected direction
of the economic cycle. Since incorporating these forward looking information increases the judgment as to how the changes in these
macroeconomic factor will affect ECL, the methodology and assumptions are reviewed regularly.
The Company has applied a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses (ECL) on loans. Assets migrate through the following
three stages based on the changes in credit quality since initial recognition:
i) Stage 1: 12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not creditimpaired upon origination the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12months is recognized.
ii) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired: For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired a lifetime ECL is recognized.
iii) Stage 3: Lifetime ECL credit-impaired: Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired upon occurrence of one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. For financial assets that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost.
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk of its financial assets since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset. In determining whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
forward-looking information to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.
Expected credit loss on Trade receivables and other financial assets
The Company assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly on collective basis. For the purpose of collective
evaluation of impairment financial assets are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics taking into account accounting
instrument type credit risk ratings date of initial recognition remaining term to maturity industry geographical location of the borrower and
other relevant factors.
The Company monitors changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings. In order to determine whether published ratings
remain up to date and to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date that has not been reflected
in published ratings, the Company supplements this by reviewing changes in government bond yields together with available press and
regulatory information about issuers.
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Expected credit loss on Bank balances
The significant portion of Bank balances are held with bank and financial institution counterparties, which are rated A1+ to AAA and BBB,
based on Credit ratings.
Impairment on bank balances has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The
Company considers that its bank balances have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.
Expected credit loss on Loans
Day past dues (DPD) analysis is the preliminary inputs in the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Company collects
performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by the type of product and borrowers as well as by DPD. The
Company adjusts the ECL to reflect the expected changes (if any) in the economic environment for forward looking information in the form
of management overlay. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows should be reviewed regularly so that there
is minimum difference between expected loss and the actual loss expenses.
In management’s view and considering the guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, providing moratorium to
borrowers at a mass scale based on RBI directives, by itself is not considered to result in a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) for such
borrowers. The Company has recorded management overlay allowance as part of its Expected Credit Loss, to reflect, among other things, an
increased risk of deterioration in macro-economic factors caused by COVID-19 pandemic based on the information available at this point in
time. Accordingly, due to the current environment of COVID 19 pandemic, a loss rate of 1% is used in proportion to the ECL across stage
buckets for provisioning as management overlay. Given the unique nature and scale of the economic impact of this pandemic, and its timing
being close to the year-end, the management overlay is based on various variables and assumptions, which could result in actual credit loss
being different than that being estimated.
The Company’s exposure to credit risk for loans, cash and cash equivalents, bank balance, trade receivables and other financial assets by
type of counterparty is as follows.
As at 31 March 2022
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Total

Loans and advances at amortised cost
Current (not past due)

22,531.90

-

-

-

22,531.90

94.68

-

-

-

94.68

15-28 days past due

-

64.15

-

-

64.15

More than 28 days past due

-

-

220.72

-

220.72

22,626.58

64.15

220.72

-

22,911.45

Loss allowance

(41.20)

(30.79)

(166.21)

-

(238.21)

Carrying value

22,585.38

33.36

54.51

-

22,673.24

18,114.70

-

-

-

18,114.70

54.42

-

-

-

54.42

-

24.04

-

-

24.04

1-14 days past due

Business correspondence balances
Current (not past due)
1-14 days past due
15-28 days past due
More than 28 days past due

116 |

-

-

6.90

-

6.90

18,169.12

24.04

6.90

-

18,200.07

Loss allowance

(8.21)

(3.74)

(1.83)

-

(13.78)

Carrying value

18,160.91

20.30

5.07

-

18,186.28
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Managed loans
Current (not past due)
1-14 days past due

631.41

-

-

-

631.41

0.37

-

-

-

0.37

15-28 days past due

-

0.19

-

-

0.19

More than 28 days past due

-

-

2.55

-

2.55

631.78

0.19

2.55

-

634.52

Loss allowance

-

-

-

-

-

Carrying value

631.78

0.19

2.55

-

634.52

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
A1+

3,716.95

-

-

-

3,716.95

AAA

396.63

-

-

-

396.63

BBB

789.55

-

-

-

789.55

AA

-

-

-

-

-

4,903.13

-

-

-

4,903.13

Loss allowance

(7.09)

-

-

-

(7.09)

Carrying value

4,896.04

-

-

-

4,896.04

A1+

640.78

-

-

-

640.78

AAA

28.77

-

-

-

28.77

BBB

475.45

-

-

-

475.45

Bank Balances other than above at amortised cost

-

-

-

-

-

1,145.00

-

-

-

1,145.00

Loss allowance

(3.51)

-

-

-

(3.51)

Carrying value

1,141.49

-

-

-

1,141.49

22.56

-

-

-

22.56

22.56

-

-

-

22.56

Loss allowance

(7.53)

-

-

-

(7.53)

Carrying value

15.03

-

-

-

15.03

46.19

-

-

-

46.19

-

-

-

-

-

247.14

-

-

-

247.14

293.33

-

-

-

293.33

Loss allowance

(50.14)

-

-

-

(50.14)

Carrying value

243.19

-

-

-

243.19

Trade receivables at amortised cost
A1+

Other financial assets at amortised cost
BBB
AAA
A1+
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As at 31 March 2021
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

POCI

Total

Loans and advances at amortised cost
Current (not past due)

17,793.93

-

-

-

17,793.93

271.77

-

-

-

271.77

15-28 days past due

-

10.08

-

-

10.08

More than 28 days past due

-

-

255.30

-

255.30
18,331.08

1-14 days past due

18,065.70

10.08

255.30

-

Loss allowance

(177.32)

(2.33)

(59.17)

-

(238.82)

Carrying value

17,888.38

7.75

196.13

-

18,092.26

Business correspondence balances
Current (not past due)

14,538.57

-

-

-

14,538.57

1.33

-

-

-

1.33

15-28 days past due

-

1.46

-

-

1.46

More than 28 days past due

-

-

0.55

-

0.55
14,541.91

1-14 days past due

14,539.90

1.46

0.55

-

Loss allowance

(181.31)

(0.34)

(0.13)

-

(181.77)

Carrying value

14,358.59

1.12

0.42

-

14,360.14

Managed loans
Current (not past due)
1-14 days past due
15-28 days past due
More than 28 days past due

26.63

-

-

-

26.63

0.19

-

-

-

0.19

-

0.28

-

-

0.28

-

-

0.65

-

0.65

26.82

0.28

0.65

-

27.76

Loss allowance

(3.68)

-

(0.13)

-

(3.81)

Carrying value

23.14

0.28

0.52

-

23.95

A1+

2,768.26

-

-

-

2,768.26

AAA

1,322.42

-

-

-

1,322.42

863.68

-

-

-

863.68

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances

BBB
AA

0.78

-

-

-

0.78

4,955.14

-

-

-

4,955.14

Loss allowance

(7.19)

-

-

-

(7.19)

Carrying value

4,947.95

-

-

-

4,947.95

A1+

601.17

-

-

-

601.17

AAA

43.27

-

-

-

43.27

BBB

384.91

-

-

-

384.91

1,029.35

-

-

-

1,029.35

Loss allowance

(2.91)

-

-

-

(2.91)

Carrying value

1,026.44

-

-

-

1,026.44

Bank Balances other than above at amortised cost
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Trade receivables at amortised cost
A1+

42.28

-

-

-

42.28

42.28

-

-

-

42.28

Loss allowance

(7.53)

-

-

-

(7.53)

Carrying value

34.75

-

-

-

34.75

30.65

-

-

-

30.65

-

-

-

-

-

322.99

-

-

-

322.99

353.64

-

-

-

353.64

Loss allowance

(2.50)

-

-

-

(2.50)

Carrying value

351.14

-

-

-

351.14

Other financial assets at amortised cost
BBB
AAA
A1+

g) The following table presents the key macroeconomic indicators used for the purposes of measurement of ECL in the periods presented.
As at 31 March 2022
Macro economic indicator

2023

2024

2025

Base - 7.20

Base - 5.50

Base - 4.70

Real GDP

Upside - 7.92

Upside - 6.05

Upside - 5.17

Downside - 4.32

Downside - 3.30

Downside - 2.82

Macro economic indicator

2022

2023

2024

Base - 4.7

Base - 4.3

Base - 3.9

Consumer prices

Upside - 4.50

Upside - 4.23

Upside - 3.87

As at 31 March 2021

Downside - 7.00 Downside - 6.58 Downside - 6.02
h) The following table provides an explanation of how significant changes in the gross carrying amount of financial instruments during the
year contributed to changes in loss allowance.
Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

Reconciliation of portfolio loans

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly
and not creditimpaired

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

1.84

58.61

14,843.60

Balance as at 31 March 2020

14,783.15

New financial assets acquired/originated

13,954.98

9.63

0.24

13,964.85

0.07

(0.02)

(0.05)

-

(225.22)

225.32

(0.10)

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(230.03)

(1.63)

231.66

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(5,222.20)

(1.51)

(36.83)

(5,260.54)

Others

(4,995.05)

(223.55)

1.77

(5,216.83)

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

| 119

FI NANC I A L STAT EM ENTS

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All Amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)
Balance as at 31 March 2021

18,065.70

New financial assets acquired/originated

255.30

18,331.08

18,961.62
6.71

10.38

-

18,972.00

(6.48)

(0.23)

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(127.53)

(0.00)

127.81

(0.28)

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.00)

(181.81)

(36.38)

218.19

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(8,515.31)

(69.83)

(65.15)

(8,650.28)

Others

(5,582.80)

28.57

(187.12)

(5,741.35)

Balance as at 31 March 2022

22,626.58

64.15

220.72

22,911.45

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

10.08

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

Reconciliation of business correspondence

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly
and not creditimpaired

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

2.23

1.42

13,919.82

Balance as at 31 March 2020

13,916.17

New financial assets acquired/originated

10,488.53

0.06

-

10,488.59

0.33

(0.24)

(0.09)

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(3.48)

3.48

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(1.53)

-

1.53

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(4,598.33)

(1.97)

(1.33)

(4,601.63)

Others

(5,261.79)

(2.10)

(0.98)

(5,264.87)

Balance as at 31 March 2021

14,539.90

1.46

0.55

14,541.91

New financial assets acquired/originated

14,751.57

5.24

-

14,756.81

2.82

(2.72)

(0.09)

0.01

(49.39)

49.45

(0.06)

-

(161.16)

(9.21)

170.37

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(5,840.59)

(72.67)

(12.85)

(5,926.11)

Others

(5,074.03)

52.51

(151.03)

(5,172.55)

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss
Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

Balance as at 31 March 2022

18,169.12

24.04

6.91

18,200.07

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

Reconciliation of managed loans

Balance as at 31 March 2020
New financial assets acquired/originated
Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss
Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss
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Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

549.21

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly
and not creditimpaired

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

0.29

0.59

550.09

-

-

-

-

0.73

(0.21)

(0.52)

-

(0.02)

0.02

-

-

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All Amounts are in INR millions unless otherwise stated)
Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.03)

-

0.03

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(385.34)

(0.09)

(0.07)

(385.50)

Others

(137.73)

0.27

0.62

(136.84)

26.82

0.28

0.65

27.75
632.05

Balance as at 31 March 2021
New financial assets acquired/originated

631.86

0.19

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets
Financial assets recognition suspended during the year
Others
Balance as at 31 March 2022

(0.30)

(0.36)

0.66

-

(20.38)

(2.23)

(1.79)

(24.40)

(6.22)

2.30

3.03

(0.89)

631.78

0.18

2.55

634.51

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Reconciliation of loss allowance on Loans

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
not credit-impaired

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

Balance as at 31 March 2020

186.04

0.37

2.61

189.02

New financial assets acquired/originated

174.45

0.12

-

174.57

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(2.82)

2.82

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(2.88)

(0.02)

2.90

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year
Others
Balance as at 31 March 2021

(65.28)

(0.02)

(0.46)

(65.76)

(112.19)

(0.94)

54.12

(59.01)
238.82

177.32

2.33

59.17

New financial assets acquired/originated

34.59

4.98

-

39.57

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

0.01

(3.11)

(0.18)

(3.28)

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(0.23)

61.35

(0.21)

60.91

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.33)

(17.46)

164.31

146.52

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year
Others
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Reconciliation of loss allowance on business
correspondence

(15.42)

(33.52)

(49.06)

(98.00)

(154.72)

16.22

(7.83)

(146.33)

41.22

30.79

166.20

238.21

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

Total

Loss allowance
measured at 12 month
expected losses

Financial assets for
which credit risk has
increased significantly
and not credit-impaired

Financial assets for
which credit risk has
increased significantly
and credit-impaired

Balance as at 31 March 2020

173.95

0.03

0.02

174.00

New financial assets acquired/originated

131.11

-

-

131.11

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss
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Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(0.04)

0.04

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.02)

-

0.02

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(57.48)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(57.52)

Others

(66.21)

0.29

0.11

(65.81)

Balance as at 31 March 2021

181.31

0.34

0.13

181.78

New financial assets acquired/originated

6.67

0.81

-

7.48

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

0.00

(0.42)

(0.02)

(0.44)

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(0.02)

7.69

(0.02)

7.65

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.07)

(1.43)

45.17

43.67

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(2.64)

(11.30)

(3.41)

(17.35)

(177.04)

8.05

(40.02)

(209.01)

8.21

3.74

1.83

13.78

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses

Total

Others
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Reconciliation of loss allowance on managed loans

Balance as at 31 March 2020
New financial assets acquired/originated
Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly
and not creditimpaired

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

6.86

-

0.01

6.87

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

(0.10)

0.10

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

(0.12)

-

0.12

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

(4.82)

-

-

(4.82)

Others

1.86

(0.10)

-

1.76

Balance as at 31 March 2021

3.68

-

0.13

3.81

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

(3.68)

-

(0.13)

(3.81)

-

-

-

-

Others
Balance as at 31 March 2022
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Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Reconciliation of loss allowance on Cash and cash equivalents

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
not credit-impaired

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

4.54

-

-

4.54

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

2.65

-

-

2.65

Balance as at 31 March 2021

7.19

-

-

7.19

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

(0.10)

-

-

(0.10)

7.09

-

-

7.09

Others
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Reconciliation of loss allowance on other bank balances

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
not credit-impaired

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

0.95

-

-

0.95

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

1.96

-

-

1.96

Others
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Balance as at 31 March 2021

2.91

-

-

2.91

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

0.60

-

-

0.60

Balance as at 31 March 2022

3.51

-

-

3.51

Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which
credit risk
has increased
significantly
and not creditimpaired

Financial assets
for which
credit risk
has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

(0.03)

-

-

(0.03)

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

(7.50)

-

-

(7.50)

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

(7.53)

-

-

(7.53)

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

-

-

-

-

(7.53)

-

-

(7.53)

Reconciliation of loss allowance on trade receivables

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

Balance as at 31 March 2021

Balance as at 31 March 2022
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Loss allowance measured at life-time expected losses
Reconciliation of loss allowance on other financial assets

Balance as at 31 March 2020

Loss allowance
measured at 12
month expected
losses

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
not credit-impaired

0.95

-

Total

Financial assets
for which credit
risk has increased
significantly and
credit-impaired

-

0.95

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

1.55

-

-

1.55

Balance as at 31 March 2021

2.50

-

-

2.50

New financial assets acquired/originated

-

-

-

-

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to lifetime expected credit loss

-

-

-

-

Transfer to credit impaired financial assets

-

-

-

-

Financial assets recognition suspended during the year

-

-

-

-

Others

47.64

-

-

47.64

Balance as at 31 March 2022

50.14

-

-

50.14

The Company offers loans under the joint liability group model exclusively to women from below poverty line households in Rural areas in
India. Therefore, a concentration of credit risk exists because similar economic characteristics would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

45

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due under both normal and stressed conditions without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company uses activity-based costing to cost its products and services which
assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements.
The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly liquid assets at an amount in excess of expected
cash outflows on financial liabilities over the next 3 months. The ratio of cash and cash equivalents and other highly liquid assets to outflows
is 151.38% at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: 150%). The Company also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on asset on finance,
trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on borrowings,  payables and other financial liabilities.
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In addition, the Company maintains the following lines of credit.
- Overdraft facility secured by Fixed deposits Nil (31 March 2021: INR 23.85)
- INR 2450.00 term loan facility to be secured by hypothecation of book debts and can be drawn to meet microfinance loan disbursement
needs (31 March 2021 INR 500.00).
Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting date. The amount are gross and undiscounted
and exclude contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2022

Carrying amount

Gross nominal
inflow/(outflow)

0-1 year

1-5 year

More than
5 years

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

52.65

52.65

52.65

  -

  -

Debt securities

124.98

125.00

125.00

  -

  -

24,072.48

24,159.67

14,411.65

9,748.02

  -

Subordinated liabilities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

100.03

100.05

100.05

  -

  -

Other financial liabilities

453.01

453.01

413.27

39.74

  -

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

4,896.04

4,903.13

4,903.13

  -

  -

Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents

1,141.49

1,145.00

620.27

524.73

  -

Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets

15.03

22.56

22.56

  -

  -

22,673.24

22,911.45

17,884.75

5,021.05

5.65

243.19

293.33

287.14

6.19

  -

Contractual cash flows
As at 31 March 2021

Carrying amount

Gross nominal
inflow/ (outflow)

0-1 year

1-5 year

More than
5 years

Financial liabilities
Trade payables

24.74

24.74

24.74

  -

  -

Debt securities

1,746.82

1,750.00

1,625.00

125.00

  6.68

18,624.90

18,700.04

11,470.58

7,222.77

Subordinated liabilities

Borrowings (other than debt securities)

199.84

200.10

100.05

100.05

  -

Other financial liabilities

501.38

501.38

466.31

35.07

  -

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

4,947.95

4,955.14

4,955.14

  -

  -

Bank balance other than cash and cash
equivalents

1,026.44

1,029.35

372.48

656.87

    -

Trade receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
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34.75

42.28

42.28

  -

18,092.26

18,331.08

14,034.51

4,296.57

  -

351.14

353.64

346.77

6.87

  -
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46

Market risk
Market the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as
interest rates, etc. The Company is exposed to market risks as follows:

(i)

Foreign exchange risk
The Company does not have any foreign exchange risk as there are no foreign currency transaction.

(ii)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company is subject to interest rate risk principally because it lends to clients at fixed interest rates and for periods that may differ from
their funding sources while their borrowings are at both fixed and variable interest rates for different periods.
The Company assesses and manage interest rate risk by managing assets and liabilities. Assets Liability Management Committee evaluates
asset liability management and ensures that all significant mismatches, if any are being managed appropriately. The Company has board
approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy for managing interest rate risk and policy for determining the interest rate to be
charged on the loan given.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected.
With all other variables held constant, the surplus is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings as follows:
Exposure to interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the management is as follows:
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

28,968.99

24,452.54

5,716.44

9,140.96

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets
Financial liabilities

-

-

19,086.71

11,459.86

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate
instruments
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rate at the reporting date would have increased or decreased income or expenditure
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes all variables factors.
Income or expenditure
31 March 2022
Variable rate instruments

134.23

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

134.23

31 March 2021
Variable rate instruments

76.02

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

76.02
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(iii)

Legal risk

(a)

The Company is subjected to a litigation which has arisen due to the order of a District Collector in Chhattisgarh with respect to the
operations of the Company and the same being challenged by the Company by way of writ petition in the Honorable Chhattisgarh High
Court. Based on management assessment the probability of winning the matter is high and there is no material impact on the financial
statement of the Company.

(b)

The Company has identified instances of cash embezzlements In certain branches wherein the Company has recovered major amounts and
there is no material balance left to be recovered with respect to the said cases. These cases are not pending in any forum.

(c)

The Company has filed a writ petition in the Honorable Allahabad High court against the proceedings initiated by the office of Regional
Provident Fund commissioner, Varanasi u/s 17(2-A) of the Provident Fund Act, 1952 for exemption availed for depositing EDLI amount.
Based on management assessment the probability of winning the matter is high and there is no material impact on the financial statement
of the Company.

(iv)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the exposure to loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events.
The Company has clearly defined operations procedures for each of its products and services. It also has advanced computer systems that
enable it to run operations with speed and accuracy.
The operation risk department under risk department operates independently from other units of the Company and reports directly to
the Risk Management Committee of the Board. It conducts regular reviews of all operational areas of the Company and reports control
deficiencies and exceptions to the Company's policies and procedures. It also recommends measures to mitigate operational risk, which are
implemented by management immediately.
The Company also has a contingency plan to take care of any failure of its computer systems. Regular backups are made for all important
datasets, and stored outside the Company's premises. This ensures that in case of any system failure, the Company will be able to continue
its operations without losing critical data or operational transactions. As part of its disaster recovery plan, the Company has established a
back-up site which would and operate during an emergency.
The Company has a specific Operation Continuity Plan ("OCP") unit. The main objective of the OCP is to ensure that in the event of
full or partial disaster which includes Pandemic, the Company is well set to be able to continue providing essential services to borrowers,
minimizing any adverse effects on the Company 's operation, through operational impact analysis, operational restoration.
The Company is using various tools under operational risk for monitoring operational risk such as conducting risk & control self
assessments, capturing operational loss data and monitoring of KRIs.
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47

Capital management
The Company is a poverty focused not-for-profit company that provide micro finance and other financial services exclusively to women
of backward districts. Accordingly, the Company does not operate with the objective of offering returns to its shareholders / investors.
Therefore, Capital management note is not applicable to the Company.
The Company maintains a minimum capital to risk weighted assets ratio ("CRAR") consisting of Tier I and Tier II capital of 15% of our
aggregate risk weighted assets. Further the total of our Tier II capital cannot exceed 100% of our Tier I capital at any point of time. The
Capital management process of the Company ensures to maintain to healthy CRAR at all the time.
The Company has a board approved policy on resource planning which states that the resource planning of the Company shall be based
on the finance committee requirement. The policy of the Company on resource planning will also cover the objectives of the regulatory
requirement. The policy prescribes the sources of funds threshold for mix from various sources tenure manner of raising the funds etc.

48
a)

Additional regulatory disclosures
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2022
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

i)

Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR)

16.78%

16.91%

ii)

Tier I CRAR

16.62%

15.83%

iii)

Tier II CRAR

0.16%

1.08%

iv)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Not applicable

Not applicable

b)

The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

c)

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies, beyond the statutory
period prescribed.

d)

The Company has not entered into any transaction which has not been recorded in the books of accounts, that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year.

e)

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

f)

The Company does not have any Benami property and further, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company, in
this regard.

g)

The Company has not entered into any transactions with struck off companies, as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder.

h)

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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i)

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

j)

49

The quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of
the Company

Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform to the classification / disclosure adopted
in the current year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 001076N/N500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cashpor Micro Credit
CIN: U6591 0UP2002NPL027113

Lalit Kumar
Partner
Membership Number: 095256

Mukul Jaiswal
Managing Director
DIN: 02696656

Bahram Navroz Vakil
Vice Chairperson
DIN: 00283980

Place: Varanasi
Date:  25 May 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date:  25 May 2022

Banke Bihari Singh
Chief Finance Officer
Place: Noida
Date:  25 May 2022
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to register with RBI as NBFC-MFI and has to file
application for registration within three months from
date of issuance of the circular. The Company is in the
process of filling application with the RBI to register
itself as NBFC-MFI.
 The Company has registered office at S 8/107, 107-A1, 2nd Floor, Varanasi Trade Center, Khajuri, Maqbool
Alam Road, Varanasi, Uttar Pradesh, India.

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW
Cashpor Micro Credit (‘the Company’) is non-banking
finance company formed for carrying micro finance
activities exclusively to rural women living below
poverty line identified and organized in Joint Liability
Groups (JLGs) in weekly group meetings conducted by
the Company’s field staffs. It is registered as Section 8
Company under the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
(corresponding Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956)
with limited liability and is not required to maintain
minimum paid up capital. It is licensed to drop the word
‘Private Limited’, enjoys all privileges specified in the
provisions of Section 8 Company under the Companies
Act, 2013 (corresponding Section 25 of the Companies
Act, 1956), and is subject to all the obligations of Private
Limited Companies. The Company is exempt from the
purview of section 45 IA (Requirement of registration
and net owned fund), 45 IB (Maintenance of percentage
of assets) and 45 IC (Reserve fund) of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (the RBI Act, 1934) and as per Master
Circular DNBR.PD. 001/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 25
August 2016 (as amended on 17 February 2020). The
Company does not accept any public deposit.
During the year ending 31 March 2022, Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) vide circular no. RBI/DOR/2021-22/89
dated 14 March 2022 has withdrawn the exemptions
from Section 45-IA, 45-IB and 45-IC of the RBI Act,
1934 and accordingly, the Company is now required

 The financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 (the financial statements) were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 May 2022.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a) Basis of preparation of
financial statements
i)

Statement of compliance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
These financial statements have been prepared
by the Company in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as
amended from time to time, in this regard.
New and amended standards
The Company applied for the first-time certain
standards and amendments, which are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 Apr 2021.
The Company has not early adopted any other
standard or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.
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A.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase
2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107,
Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
address the financial reporting effects when an
interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an
alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).
The amendments include the following practical
expedients:
• A practical expedient to require contractual
changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated
as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent
to a movement in a market rate of interest
• Permit changes required by IBOR reform
to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued
• Provide temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR instrument is designated as a
hedge of a risk component
These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company. The Company intends
to use the practical expedients in future periods if
they become applicable.
B.

Conceptual framework for financial
reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not
override any specific standard. Therefore, this does
not form part of a set of standards pronounced
by the standard-setters. While, the Framework
is primarily meant for the standard-setter for
formulating the standards, it has relevance to the
preparers in certain situations such as to develop
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consistent accounting policies for areas that are
not covered by a standard or where there is choice
of accounting policy, and to assist all parties to
understand and interpret the Standards.
The amendments made in following standards due
to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote
to the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS
102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added
for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability
is not revised on account of revision of definition
in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets etc.
The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS
consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind
AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework
is applicable for preparers for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.
C. Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions
MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to
apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from
30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021. (In case a lessee has not yet approved the
financial statements for issue before the issuance
of this amendment, then the same may be applied
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for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2020.)
These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.
D.

Ind AS 103: Business combination

The amendment states that to qualify for
recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions
of assets and liabilities in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date.
Therefore, the acquirer does not recognise those
costs as part of applying the acquisition method.
Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in
its post-combination financial statements in
accordance with other Ind AS.
These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.
E.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and
Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount” is
amended such that the words “the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use” are replaced with “higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use”.
The consequential amendments are made in Ind
AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.
These amendments had no impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

ii) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for net defined benefit
(asset)/ liability - fair value of plan assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

iii) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in
Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest million rupees, unless
otherwise stated.

iv) Use of judgements and estimates
In preparing these financial statements,
management has made judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of the
Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of these financial statements are
prudent and reasonable.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively.
I.

Significant management judgements
Information about the judgements made
in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements have
been given below:
• Note 39 - Measurement of lease liabilities
and right of use assets
• Note 42 - Classification of financial

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

| 133

FI NANC I A L STAT EM ENTS

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

assets: assessment of operational model
within which the assets are held and
assessment of whether the contractual
terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
• Note 44 - Impairment of financial assets:
key assumptions in determining the
average loss rate
II.

Significant assumptions and estimation
uncertainties
Information
about
assumptions
and
estimation uncertainties that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the financial statements for the
every period ended is included below:
• Note 32 - Measurement of defined benefit
obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
• Note 8 - Useful life and residual value of
property, plant and equipment
• Note 42 - Fair value measurement of
financial instruments

b) Revenue recognition
The Company earns revenue primarily from
giving loans. Revenue is recognized to the extent
that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The Company records interest
income for all financial instruments using Effective
Interest Rate (‘EIR’)

i)

As per Ind AS 109, Interest income from
financial assets is recognised on an
accrual basis using EIR method.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
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life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset. The EIR is computed basis
the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument.
The calculation includes all fees, transaction
costs, prepayment options all other premiums or
discounts paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, but not future credit losses.
The interest revenue continues to be recognised
at the original EIR applied on the gross carrying
amount for financial assets (when the asset is not
credit impaired). However, for the financial assets
that have become credit impaired subsequent to the
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer
credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest
income reverts to the gross basis.
For financial assets that were credit impaired on
initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset.

ii) Income from assignment transactions
Income from assignment transactions i.e. present
value of excess interest spread is recognized when
the related loan assets are de-recognized.

iii) Revenue (other than for those items to
which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments
are applicable)
Revenue other than for those items to which
Ind AS 109 Financial Instrument is applicable
is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from
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contracts with beneficiaries outlines a single
comprehensive model of accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with beneficiaries. The
Company recognises revenue from contracts with
beneficiaries based on a five step model as set out
in Ind 115:
Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a beneficiary: A
contract is defined as an agreement between two
or more parties that creates enforceable rights
and obligations and sets out the criteria for every
contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the
contract: A performance obligation is a promise
in a contract with a beneficiary to transfer a goods
or service to the beneficiary.
Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The
transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods
or services to a beneficiary, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

iv) Income from business correspondence
services
Income from business correspondence services is
recognized as and when the services are rendered
as per agreed terms and conditions of the contract.

v) Income from interest on deposits and
saving accounts
Income from interest on deposits and saving
accounts is recognised on a time proportion basis
taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.

c) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contracts such as foreign exchange
forward contracts, embedded derivatives in the
host contract, etc.

i)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to which
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.
Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
Company satisfies a performance obligation

The Company initially recognises loans and
advances on the date on which they are originated.
All other financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, which is the date on which the
Company becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instrument.
Financial instruments are initially measured at
their fair value, except in the case of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at Fair
value through income or expenditure (FVTIE),
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transaction costs are added to, subtracted from,
this amount. Trade receivables are measured at
the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Classifications
The Company classifies its financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value depending on the Company’s
operational model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets.
Operational model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the
objective of a operational model in which an
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best
reflects the way the operation is managed and
information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:
• How the performance of the operational
model and the financial assets held within that
operational model are evaluated and reported
to the entity's key management personnel.
• How managers of the operation are
compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collected).
• The stated policies and objectives for the
portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest
revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are
funding those assets or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets;

136 |

TWENTIETH ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22

• The frequency, volume, and timing of sales in
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity is
not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Company’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.
• The risks that affect the performance of the
operational model (and the financial assets
held within that operational model) and how
those risks are managed.
Assessment whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as surplus margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition.
Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost
only if both of the following conditions are met:
• It is held within an operational model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.
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• The contractual terms of the financial asset
represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the Income and expenditure
statement. The losses arising from Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) impairment are recognised in
the Income and expenditure.
Debt instrument at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost
only if both of the following conditions are met:
• It is held within a operational model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
• The contractual terms of the financial asset
represent contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income (OCI). Interest income is recognised basis
EIR method and the losses arising from ECL
impairment are recognised in the Income and
expenditure statement.
Debt instrument at fair value through income
and expenditure (FVTIE)
Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or
as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTIE.

Debt instruments included within the FVTIE
category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognised in the Statement of income or
expenditure.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of
a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or
• The Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset
When the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if
and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. If the Company evaluates
that substantial risk and reward have not been
transferred, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset. If the Company evaluates
that substantial risk and rewards are neither
transferred nor retained and the control of the asset
is also not transferred, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
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are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Company could be required to repay.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of
(i) the consideration received (including any new
asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in OCI is recognised in Income and
expenditure statement.

ii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through income or expenditure or amortised cost,
as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value and, in the case of amortised cost, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
Classification and subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
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losses are recognised in income or expenditure when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
Statement of income or expenditure.
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through income and expenditure
When a financial liability contract contains one
or more embedded derivative, the Company may
designate the entire hybrid contract as at fair value
through income and expenditure unless:
• the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows that otherwise would be
required by the contract; or
• it is clear with little or no analysis when a
similar hybrid instrument is first considered
that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited, such as a prepayment option
embedded in a loan that permits the holder to
prepay the loan for approximately its amortised
cost.
The fair valuation change on the liabilities
subsequently measured at fair value through income
and expenditure account is recognised in statement
of income or expenditure account except the changes
in the liability’s credit risk which is recognised in
‘Other Comprehensive Income’.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.
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iii) Modifications of financial assets and
financial liabilities
Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the
Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash
flows are substantially different, then the contractual
rights to cash flows from the original financial asset
are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original
financial asset is derecognised and a new financial
asset is recognised at fair value.
If the cash flows of the modified asset carried at
amortised cost are not substantially different, then
the modification does not result in derecognition
of the financial asset. In this case, the Company
recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset and recognises the amount arising
from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a
modification gain or loss in income and expenditure
statement. If such a modification is carried out
because of financial difficulties of the borrower,
then the gain or loss is presented together with
impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as
interest income.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified liability are substantially different. In
this case, a new financial liability or equity based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial
liability or equity recognized with modified terms is
recognised in income and expenditure statement or
in other equity in case the same is a transaction with
the shareholders.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the
offset criteria’).
Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which
the Company has access at that date. Accordingly,
the Company uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs. The Company has classified the financial
instruments based on a hierarchy of valuation
techniques, as summarized below:
Level 1: financial instrument, the Company
measures the fair value of an instrument using
the quoted price in an active market for that
instrument. A market is regarded as active if
transactions for the asset or liability take place
with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.
Level 2: financial instrument, If there is no quoted
price in an active market, then the Company uses
valuation techniques that maximize the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs. The valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market
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participants would take into account in pricing
a transaction like quoted price for identical
instruments, interest rates and yields adjusted for
condition and location of the asset or to the extent
to which it relates.
Level 3: financial instrument, if adjustments are
based on one or more unobservable inputs where
there is no market activity for the asset or liability
at the measurement date.
The best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price i.e. the fair value of consideration
given or received. If the Company determines
that the fair value on initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and the fair value is
evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market nor based on a valuation technique for
which any unobservable inputs are judged to be
insignificant in relation to measurement, then the
financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the
fair value and the transaction price. Subsequently,
that difference is recognised in Income and
expenditure statement on an appropriate basis
over the life of the instrument.

d) Interest expense
Interest expense includes issue costs that are
initially recognized as part of the carrying value
of the financial liability and amortized over the
expected life using the effective interest method.
These include fees and commissions payable to
arrangers and other expenses such as external
legal costs, processing fees, stamp duty, etc.
provided these are incremental costs that are
directly related to the issue of a financial liability.
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e) Impairment of non-financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses
whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an
asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognised in the Statement of Income
and Expenditure. If at the reporting date there
is an indication that if a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable
amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount.
Compensation for impairment
Compensation from third parties for items of
property, plant and equipment that were impaired,
lost or given up are recognised in statement of
income and expenditure when the compensation
becomes receivable.

f) Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises impairment allowances
for ECL on all the financial assets that are not
measured at FVTIE:
• Financial assets that are debt instruments
• Trade receivable
• Bank balances
• Other financial assets
No impairment loss is recognised on equity
investments. ECL are probability weighted estimate
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of credit losses. They are measured as follows:
• Financial assets that are not credit impaired
– as the present value of all cash shortfalls
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.
• Financial assets with significant increase in
credit risk but not credit impaired – as the
present value of all cash shortfalls that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial asset.
• Financial assets that are credit impaired – as
the difference between the gross carrying
amount and the present value of estimated cash
flows
Financial assets that are debt instruments
The Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for
impairment based on changes in credit quality
since initial recognition as summarised below:
• Stage 1: (0 -14 days) includes assets that have
not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at
the reporting date.
• Stage 2: (15-28 days) includes loan assets that
have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment.
• Stage 3: (more than 28 days) includes loan assets
that have objective evidence of impairment at
the reporting date.  
The ECL is measured at 12-month ECL for Stage
1 assets and at lifetime ECL for Stage 2 and Stage
3 assets. ECL is the product of the Probability
of Default, Exposure at Default and Loss Given
Default, defined as follows:
Exposure at Default (EAD) – EAD is based on the

amounts the Company owed from the borrower.
For a revolving commitment, the Company
includes the current drawn balance plus any
further amount that is expected to be drawn up
to the current contractual limit by the time of
default, should it occur.
Probability of Default (PD) - The PD represents
the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation (as per “Definition of default
and credit-impaired” above), either over the next
12 months (12 months PD), or over the remaining
lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.
Loss Given Default (LGD) – LGD represents
the Company’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and preference of claim and
availability of collateral or other credit support.
Forward-looking economic information (including
management overlay) is included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD.
The assumptions underlying the expected credit
loss are monitored and reviewed on an ongoing
basis.
Trade receivables
With respect to trade receivables and other
financial assets, the Company measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.
Other financial assets
In respect of its other financial assets, the Company
assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
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If the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. For financial assets
at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in the
Statement of income or expenditure.

g) Write off’s
If the Company determines that the borrower
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts the Company stops persuing the recovery
and write off the loans. If the amount to be written
off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance,
the difference is first treated as an addition to the
allowance that is then applied against the gross
carrying amount.
Any subsequent recoveries against such loan are
credited to the Statement of income or expenditure.

h) Grants
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Grants to be utilised for disbursing the microfinance
loans in specified areas have been treated as income
grants and credited to Statement of Income and
Expenditure and any income earned on the grant
funds is also credited to Statement of Income and
Expenditure.

i) Foreign currency transactions
and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded using
the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the
respective transactions. Exchange differences
arising on foreign currency transactions settled
during the year are recognised in the Statement of
income and expenditure.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
as at the balance sheet date, not covered by
forward exchange contracts, are translated at
year end rates. The resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the Statement of income or
expenditure. Non-monetary items are recorded at
the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.

j) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Grants received in relation to property, plant and
equipment including non-monetary grants at fair
value are presented in the balance sheet by deducting
the grant from the carrying value of asset.

Initial measurement
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation as adjusted for
impairment, if any.

Grants received in relation to operating expenses
are treated as income grants. These are held with
the Company until used for the purpose specified.
Revenue from these funds is recognised in the
Statement of Income and Expenditure to match
the related expenditure.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as a separate items (major
components) of property, plant, and equipment.
Any gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in Statement of income
or expenditure.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it
is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.
Impairment
Carrying amounts of cash generating assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine
whether there is any impairment. Impairment loss,
if any, is recognised in the statement of income
or expenditure whenever the carrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount.
Depreciation
The management believes that life currently used,
fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
which are in accordance with lives prescribed under
Schedule II of the Act. Depreciation is provided as
per straight-line method from the date of addition
over the estimated useful life of the asset. The
Company has carried out a technical assessment
of the useful life of its assets taking into account
changes in environment, changes in technology, the
utility and efficacy of the asset in use. Depreciation
on assets sold during the year is charged to the
Statement of income or expenditure up to the date
of sale. If the management's estimate of the useful
life of a property, plant, and equipment at the
time of acquisition of the asset or of the remaining
useful life on a subsequent review is shorter, then
the depreciation is provided at a higher rate based
on management's estimate of the useful life/
remaining useful life. Assets value upto Rs. 5,000
are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Improvements and installations of capital nature
on the leasehold property are depreciated over
the primary lease term. Depreciation methods,
useful lives and residual values are reviewed in
each financial year end and changes, if any, are
accounted for prospectively.
De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is recognised in the Statement of income or
expenditure, when the asset is de-recognised.

k) Intangible assets
Initial measurement
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company
are measured initially at cost and are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation as adjusted for
impairment, if any.
Any gain on disposal of intangible asset is
recognised in Statement of income or expenditure.
The Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value for all of its intangible assets as
recognised in the financial statements as at the
date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the
previous GAAP and used it as its deemed cost as
at the date of transition.
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Subsequent measurement
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it
is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company.
Impairment
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date
whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's net selling price and its value in use.
If such recoverable amount of the asset is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized
in the Statement of income or expenditure. If at
the Balance Sheet date there is an indication that
a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and
the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount
subject to a maximum of depreciable historical
cost.
Amortisation
Intangible assets are amortised in the Statement
of income or expenditure over their estimated
useful lives from the date they are available for
use based on the expected pattern of consumption
of economic benefits of the asset. Intangible assets
are amortised on straight line basis. Computer
software are amortised on straight line basis over
their estimated useful life of three years.
Amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed in each financial year end and changes,
if any, are accounted for prospectively.
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l) Leases
The Company, at the inception of a contract,
assesses whether the contract is a lease or not
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a time in exchange for a
consideration.
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, less any lease incentives received.
The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the Company’s incremental borrowing rate.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life
of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset and the lease term.
The Company has elected not to recognise rightof-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense over the lease term.

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

m) Employee benefits
i.

Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

ii. Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are expensed as the related
service is provided. The Company has a defined
contribution plans namely provident fund, pension
fund and employees state insurance scheme. The
contribution made by the Company in respect of
these plans are charged to the Statement of income
or expenditure.

iii. Defined benefit plans
The Company’s net obligation in respect of
gratuity is calculated separately for each plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount, and deducting
the fair value of any plan assets.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation
results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in

future contributions to the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and
the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income. Net interest expense
(income) on the net defined liability (assets) is
computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability (asset), to the net
defined liability (asset) at the start of the financial
year after taking into account any changes as a
result of contribution and benefit payments during
the year. Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
Income and expenditure statement.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when
a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment is recognised immediately in income
or expenditure. The Company recognises gains
and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

iv. Other long-term employee benefits
The Company’s net obligation in respect of longterm employee benefits is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods.
Liability in respect of this is estimated on the
basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an
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independent actuary using the Projected unit
credit method as on the date of reporting date.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Re-measurements are recognised in income
or expenditure in the period in which they arise.

n) Income-tax
The Company is registered under Section 12A
of Income-tax Act, 1961 for claiming income as
exempted income under Section 11 & Section
12, whereby it is exempted from taxes based on
fulfilment of specific conditions.

o) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The Board
of directors of the Company has been identified
as the chief operating decision maker for the
Company.
The Company is engaged primarily in the
operation of micro financing and there are no
separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108.

p) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
demand deposits, balances with other banks, fixed
deposits with original maturity of three months
or less.

q) Provision, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets
The Company creates a provision when there is a
present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
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be made. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability where
time value of money is material. The unwinding of
the discount is recognised as finance cost.
The provisions are reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
A disclosure for Contingent Liability is made when
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow
of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.
Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an
entity shall disclose a brief description of the nature
of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting
period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their
financial effect.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the books
but disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefit
is probable.

r) Amendment to Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) issued but not
yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies
new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards)

CASHPOR MICRO CREDIT
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Rules as issued from time to time. On 23 March
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
applicable from 1 April 2022, as below:
Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual
Framework
The amendments specify that to qualify for
recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of
assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly
change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The
Company does not expect the amendment to have
any significant impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use
The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items
produced while the company is preparing the asset
for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise
such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.
The Company does not expect the amendments to
have any impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of
Fulfilling a Contract
The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to

a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (examples would be direct labour,
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is
essentially a clarification and the Company does
not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact on its financial statements.
Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS
(2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity
includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of
Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact on
its financial statements.

s) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the net surplus of deficit for the period attributable
to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events including a bonus issue, if any.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net surplus or deficit (interest and other
finance cost associated) for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period
are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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